
Page 1 of 12 
 

STATE OF HAWAIʻI  
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA 
Hilton Garden Inn Kauai Wailua Bay, Kuhio Ballroom, 3-5920 Kūhiō Highway, Kapa‘a, Kauaʻi  

 and Zoom Meeting ID: 609 754 2925 
Monday, August 19, 2024, at 9:30 a.m. to be continued, if necessary,  

on Tuesday, August 20, 2024, at 9:30 a.m. 
Livestream available at www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live 

Note: Commission Meeting Packets will be available at dhhl.hawaii.gov by Wednesday, August 14, 2024. 
 

I. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
A. Roll Call 
B. Approval of Agenda 
C. Approval of Minutes:  

a. July 15 & 16, 2024 Regular Meeting 
D. Public Testimony on Agendized Items - see information below 
 
Public testimony on any item relevant to this agenda may be taken at this time, or a testifier may wait to 
testify when the agenda item is called for discussion. Pursuant to section 92-3, Hawaii Revised Statutes, and 
section 10-2-11(c), Hawaii Administrative Rules, the Chair of the Commission has the authority to impose 
reasonable conditions to ensure an orderly and efficient meeting.  

 
II. ITEMS FOR DECISION MAKING 

 
A. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Homestead Services Division 
 
D-2    Approval of Consent to Mortgage (see exhibit) 
D-3  Approval of Streamline Refinance of Loans (see exhibit) 
D-6     Approval of Homestead Application Transfers / Cancellations (see exhibit) 
D-7    Approval to Certify Applications of Qualified Applicants for the month of July 2024 
          (see exhibit) 
D-8    Commission Designation of Successors to Application Rights – Public Notice 2023 
          (see exhibit) 
D-9    Approval of Assignment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit) 
D-10  Approval of Amendment of Leasehold Interest (see exhibit) 
D-11  Approval to Issue Non-Exclusive Licenses for Rooftop Photovoltaic Systems for 
           Certain Lessees (see exhibit) 
D-12   Commission Designation of Successor – NOLAN I. MAHUKA, Residential Lease  
           No. 8308, Lot No. 17, PKE, Oahu    
D-13   Commission Designation of Successor – DOREEN N. KANAHELE, Residential   
            Lease No. 8881, Lot No. 40, Hanapepe, Kauai    

               
B.    REGULAR AGENDA  

 

Land Management Division  
 

F-1    Approval to Issue a License Agreement to Ko‛olau Limu Project, Anahola, Kauai Island, 
TMK No.: (4)4-8-012:001&010 

F-2 Approval to Issue a Right of Entry Permit to Ho‛akeolapono Trades Academy and 
Institute, Anahola, Kauai Island, TMK No.: (4)4-8-003:011(por.) 

F-3 Approval to Annual Renewal of Right of Entry Permits and Conversion to Revocable 
Permits, Kauai Island (see exhibit) 

http://www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live


Page 2 of 12 
 

III. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
The Commission anticipates convening an executive meeting pursuant to Section 92-5(a)(4), HRS, 
to consult with its attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Commission’s powers, duties, 
privileges, immunities, and liabilities on the following matters: 
 
1. Discussion Regarding Telecommunications on Hawaiian Home Lands 

 
IV. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 
A. REGULAR ITEMS 

 
 Office of the Chairman 

 
C-1 For Information Only – Appointment of Permitted Interaction Group –Act 279 Strategic 

Plan Budget Revisions 
C-2 For Information Only – Appointment of Permitted Interaction Group – to Evaluate and 

Make Recommendations as to Mitigation of Hilo Airport’s Impact on Surrounding 
DHHL lands 

C-3 For Information Only – DHHL NAHASDA Down Payment Assistance Program Policy 
C-4 For Information Only – Draft 2024 Annual Performance Report (APR) - Native 

Hawaiian Housing Block Grant 
C-5 For Information Only – Summary of Responses to Proposed Legislative Action Request 

& Draft Legislative Proposals 
C-6 For Information Only – Status Report of DHHL Enforcement Unit Efforts and Statistics 

(July 8, 2024 – August 11, 2024) 
 
Homestead Services Division 

 
D-1 HSD Status Reports 

 A.-Homestead Lease and Application Totals and Monthly Activity Reports 
 B.-Delinquency Reports 
 

       D-5   For Information Only – Memorandum of Agreement Between the State of Hawaii 
                Department of Hawaiian Home Lands and Hawaii Lending & Investments 
  

Land Development Division  
 

E-1    For Information Only – Kauaʻi Project Updates  
 
Land Management Division 
 
F-4 For Information Only – Request from Hawaii Land and Power, LLC on Renewal Energy 

Project in Waiakea, Island of Hawaii, TMK No.: (3) 2-1-025:086 
 
Planning Office 
 
G-1  For Information Only - Status Update on Plan Implementation on the Island of Kauai 
G-2  For Information Only - Kauai Water Issues and Projects 
  

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND RECESS 
 
1. DHHL Community Meeting, Monday, August 19, 2024. 6:30 p.m. King Kaumualii 

Elementary School Cafeteria, 4380 Hanamaulu Road, Lihue, Hawaii, 96766. 



Page 3 of 12 
 

STATE OF HAWAIʻI 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION MEETING/WORKSHOP AGENDA 
Hilton Garden Inn Kauai Wailua Bay, Kuhio Ballroom, 3-5920 Kūhiō Highway, Kapa‘a, Kauaʻi  

and Zoom Meeting ID: 609 754 2925 
Tuesday, August 20, 2024, at 9:30 a.m. 

Livestream available at www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live 
 

I. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

A. Roll Call 
B. Public Testimony on Agendized Items - see information below 

 
Public testimony on any item relevant to this agenda may be taken at this time, or a testifier may 
wait to testify at the time the agenda item is called for discussion. Pursuant to section 92-3, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes, and section 10-2-11(c), Hawaii Administrative Rules, the Chair of the Commission 
has the authority to impose reasonable conditions to ensure an orderly and efficient meeting.  

 
II. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

 
A. REGULAR AGENDA 

 
Homestead Services Division 
 
D-4    Approval of Memorandum of Agreement Between the State of Hawaii 
          Department of Hawaiian Home Lands and Hawaii Lending & Investments 
 

B. GENERAL AGENDA 
 
Requests to Address the Commission 

 
J-1 Kipukai Kualii  – Anahola 
J-2 Jeremie Makepa – Aina Alliance Update 
J-3 Claire Niheu-Yong – Beneficiary Concern 
J-4 Starlynn Kaupu - Beneficiary Concern 
J-5 Harold Vidinha – Kauaʻi Lessee 
J-6 Rosemary Vaivao – Kauaʻi Lessee 
J-7 Lucky Kanahele – Kauaʻi Beneficiary Concern 
J-8 Makana Kia - Kauaʻi Beneficiary Concern 
J-9 Thomas Nizo – Kauʻi Lease concerns  
J-10 Janelle Kaohu-Kauahi – Nānākuli Residential Lease 
J-11 Billi Smith – Beneficiary Concern 
J-12 Chanel Josiah – Hawaiʻi Community Lending 
J-13 Noe Asuega Stark – Puʻuhona Hawaiian Homes Association 
J-14 Kapolei Kiili – Beneficiary Concerns Maui 
J-15 Blossom Feiteira – Kauaʻi Housing Concerns 
J-16 Kainoa MacDonald – Maui Mokupuni 
J-17 Craig Bo Kahui – LaʻiʻŌpua  
J-18 Bill Brown -Panaʻewa Hawaiian Home Lands Community Association 
J-19 Kelly Lincoln – Panaʻewa Community Alliance 
J-20 Charlene Manu – Panaʻewa Hawaiian Home Lands Community Association 

   
III. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ADJOURNMENT 

 

http://www.dhhl.hawaii.gov/live


Page 4 of 12 

A. Next Regular HHC Meeting – September 16 & 17, 2024, Hale Ponoʻi, 91-5420 Kapolei
Parkway, Kapolei, Oʻahu, 96707,

B. Adjournment

________________________________ 
Kali Watson, Chairman 
Hawaiian Homes Commission 

COMMISSION MEMBERS 

Dennis L. Neves, Kauaʻi Pauline N. Namuʻo, Oʻahu  
Michael L. Kaleikini, East Hawaiʻi Makai Freitas, West Hawaiʻi 
Sanoe Marfil, Oʻahu    Walter Kaneakua, Oʻahu   
Archie Kalepa, Maui   Lawrence Lasua, Molokaʻi 

If you need an auxiliary aid/service or other accommodation due to a disability, contact Michael Lowe at 620-9512 or 
michael.l.lowe@hawaii.gov as soon as possible, preferably by August 15, 2024. If a response is received after that, 
we will try to obtain the auxiliary aid/service or accommodation, but we cannot guarantee that the request will be 
fulfilled. Upon request, this notice is available in alternate formats. 

Public Testimony on Agendized Items can be provided either as (1) in person at the meeting location by filling out 
a form at the reception table, (2) written testimony mailed to Commission Testimony, P.O. Box 1879, Honolulu, HI, 
96815, or emailed to DHHL.icro@hawaii.gov by August 14, 2024, or (3) live, oral testimony online by joining the 
Zoom meeting and relabeling your profile to include the agenda item you wish to testify on.  Please keep your 
computer muted and your camera off until you are called. You will need a computer with internet access, a video 
camera, and a microphone to participate. 

Disruption of Interactive Technology – If all participating Commissioners cannot maintain audiovisual 
communication and a quorum is lost, the meeting will automatically be recessed for 30 minutes. During that time, an 
attempt to restore audiovisual communication will be made. If such an attempt to restore is unsuccessful within 30 
minutes, all Commissioners, public members, staff, and other interested individuals shall log on again to the Zoom 
link on this Notice, whereby audio communication will be established for all participants, and the meeting will 
continue. If reconvening the meeting is impossible because audio and visual communication cannot be re-established, 
the meeting will be terminated. 



Page 5 of 12 
 

ITEM D-2 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT TO MORTGAGE 

 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

AH MOOK SANG, Kainalu J.M. 2119Z Kewalo, Oahu 
DEBLAKE, Bradley K. 12970 Kauluokahai, Oahu 
HEMA, Alika K. 7342 Nanakuli, Oahu 
KAHANAOI, Edward 8595 Nanakuli, Oahu 
KALEI, Chris H. 644 Papakolea, Oahu 
KALEO, Tanya I. 10009 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
LOA-CALLIA, Ginger P.A. 8360 PKE, Oahu 
LOWE, Rene L.L. 3691 Waimanalo, Oahu 
MAIKOWSKI, Francis M.P. 12459 Kauluokahai, Oahu 
MCCANDLESS, Pomaikai 5650 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
OSATO, Stephanie K. 5291 Waianae, Oahu 
PUAHI-KAPOLOLU, Kaiaokamaile N. 12826 Kauluokahai, Oahu 
 

 
ITEM D-3 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF STREAMLINE REFINANCE OF LOANS 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 
GALINDO, Richard F.T. 10004 Waianae, Oahu 
NAMAHOE, Dwayne K. 8406 Waianae, Oahu  

 
ITEM D-6 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF HOMESTEAD APPLICATION TRANSFER / CANCELLATIONS 

APPLICANT AREA 
ADRIC, Randall B. Oahu IW Agr to Molokai IW Agr 
ADRIC, Randall B. Oahu IW Res to Molokai IW Res 
AINA, Sanoe Oahu IW Res 
AKI, Kalina S. Maui IW Agr 
AKU, Adam I. Oahu IW Res to Hawaii IW Res 
ALAVAZO, Denise N. Maui IW Agr 
CALLES, Elgin K. Oahu IW Res 
CORPUZ, Lennie L. Molokai IW Agr 
DELOS REYES, Eddie A. Oahu IW Res 
FELICIANO, Frances D.P. Oahu IW Res 
FU, Marleen K. Kauai IW Agr 
FU, Marleen K. Kauai IW Res 
HANAWAHINE, Jake K. Oahu IW Res 
HAO, Nalani M. Oahu IW Res to Molokai IW Res 
HAO, Nalani M. Hawaii IW Agr to Molokai IW Pas 
HATCHIE, Jerome K. Maui IW Agr to Oahu IW Agr 

 



Page 6 of 12 
 

ITEM D-6 EXHIBIT (continued) 
APPROVAL OF HOMESTEAD APPLICATION TRANSFER / CANCELLATIONS 

APPLICANT AREA 
 

JOHNASEN, Adele M.K. Maui IW Agr to Oahu IW Agr 
JOHNASEN, Adele M.K. Maui IW Res to Oahu IW Res 
KAIWI, Gayleen K. Oahu IW Res 
KAUAHIKAUA, Dwight P. Molokai IW Agr to Oahu IW Agr 
KEA, Leialohalani D. Maui IW Res 
KIKILA, Rubyann K. Oahu IW Agr 
MAC NEAL, Janet L. Maui IW Res 
MATTHEWS, Tinamarie L. Molokai IW Agr 
PINON-KAAWALOA, Ranielle P. Oahu IW Res 
PINON-KAAWALOA, Ranielle P Hawaii IW Agr 
PUOU, Lesley K. Hawaii IW Agr 
SAFFERY, Regina L. Maui IW Agr 
SAFFERY, Regina L. Maui IW Res 
SILVA, Sterling N. Hawaii IW Pas 
VASQUEZ, Mariann K. Maui IW Res 
WILLIAMS, Lois M. Oahu IW Res 
WONG, Jacob C. Hawaii IW Agr 
WOODLYN, Bronco K.K. Oahu IW Agr to Hawaii IW Agr 
WOODLYN, Bronco K.K. Oahu IW Res to Hawaii IW Res 
WRIGHT, Taylor-Nikole Molokai IW Res to Hawaii IW Res 
  

                        * IW = Islandwide 
ITEM D-7 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL TO CERTIFY APPLICATIONS OF QUALIFIED APPLICANTS   
 

APPLICANT AREA 
AKUNA, Stephanie K. Hawaii IW Res 
ALAPAI, Alohalina K. Hawaii IW Agr 
ALAPAI, Alohalina K. Hawaii IW Res 
ELI, Chayden K.M. Oahu IW Res 
ELI, Chayden K.M. Kauai IW Agr 
ELI, Coty K.M. Oahu IW Agr 
ELI, Coty K.M. Oahu IW Res 
FERREIRA, Hiram A. Hawaii IW Agr 
FERREIRA, Hiram A. Hawaii IW Res 
FOSTER, Raymond L. Maui IW Agr 
FOSTER, Raymond L. Maui IW Res 
GILES-KALAULI, Frances Mae P.P. Hawaii IW Pas 
GILES-KALAULI, Frances Mae P.P. Hawaii IW Res 
HAWELU, Micah Alan N. Oahu IW Agr 
HAWELU, Micah Alan N. Oahu IW Res 
HO, Kenneth K.L., Jr. Oahu IW Agr 



Page 7 of 12 
 

ITEM D-7 EXHIBIT (continued) 
APPROVAL TO CERTIFY APPLICATIONS OF QUALIFIED APPLICANTS   

 
APPLICANT AREA 

 

JAVIER STANLEY, Anela N. Oahu IW Agr 
JAVIER STANLEY, Anela N. Oahu IW Res 
KAAHANUI, Kent V.K. Oahu IW Agr 
KAAHANUI, Kent V.K. Oahu IW Res 
KAEO, Aaron K.P. Maui IW Res 
KAEO, Aaron K.P. Hawaii IW Agr 
KAHELE, Arnolette K. Maui IW Res 
KALAMA, Kealii Oahu IW Res 
KALAMAU, Kaimana L. Oahu IW Agr 
KALAMAU, Kaimana L. Oahu IW Res 
KALAULI, Rochele Marie K. Hawaii IW Pas 
KALAULI, Rochele Marie K. Hawaii IW Res 
KALELEIKI, Davin S. Maui IW Res 
KAMAI, Jocelyn U. Oahu IW Res 
KAMAI, Kamealoha A. Oahu IW Agr 
KAMAI, Kamealoha A. Oahu IW Res 
KANA, Jacob H., Jr. Maui IW Pas 
KANA, Jacob H., Jr. Maui IW Res 
KANEHOLANI, Pualehua J. Kauai IW Agr 
KANEHOLANI, Pualehua J. Kauai IW Res 
KEANAAINA, Vornell K. Hawaii IW Res 
KEOHULOA, Pua-Lilia H. Hawaii IW Res 
KEPA-HEANU, Isaac J.P. Oahu IW Agr 
KEPA-HEANU, Isaac J.P. Oahu IW Res 
KIKILA, Coreen K.A. Oahu IW Res 
KIKILA, Coreen K.A. Hawaii IW Agr 
LAURETA, Elizabeth K.L. Kauai IW Pas 
LAURETA, Elizabeth K.L. Kauai IW Res 
LOVELL, Joerdan M. Oahu IW Agr 
LOVELL, Joerdan M. Oahu IW Res 
MAHI-KALAUKOA, Geraldine Z. Hawaii IW Agr 
MARDONADA, Anthony S.K. Kauai IW Agr 
MARDONADA, Anthony S.K. Kauai IW Res 
NAHALE, Sheynen-Wyatt K. Hawaii IW Pas 
NAHALE, Sheynen-Wyatt K. Hawaii IW Res 
NAHALE, Shyann M.M.M.N.A.M. Hawaii IW Agr 
NAHALE, Shyann M.M.M.N.A.M. Hawaii IW Res 
PAULO, Louis Jr. Hawaii IW Agr 
PAULO, Louis Jr. Hawaii IW Res 
PUOU, Adonnis P. Oahu IW Agr 
PUOU, Adonnis P. Oahu IW Res 
RAMOS, Phyllis N. Oahu IW Res 



Page 8 of 12 
 

ITEM D-7 EXHIBIT (continued) 
APPROVAL TO CERTIFY APPLICATIONS OF QUALIFIED APPLICANTS   

 
APPLICANT AREA 

 

SAHUT, Ronson K.A. Kauai IW Agr 
SAHUT, Ronson K.A. Kauai IW Res 
VETERE, Charmayne P. Oahu IW Agr 
VETERE, Charmayne P. Oahu IW Res 
VICKERS, Vernon A., Jr. Oahu IW Agr 
VIEAU, Yvonne W. Kauai IW Agr 
 * IW = Islandwide 

 
ITEM D-8 EXHIBIT 

COMMISSION DESIGNATION OF SUCCESSORS – PUBLIC NOTICE 2023 
 

AINA, Sanoe Oahu IW Res 
AKI, Kalina S. Maui IW Agr 
ALAVAZO, Denise N. Maui IW Agr 
BAKER, Lorrie K. Hawaii IW Agr 
CORPUZ, Lennie L. Molokai IW Agr 
FELICIANO, Frances D.P. Oahu IW Res 
FU, Marleen K. Kauai IW Pas 
FU, Marleen K. Kauai IW Res 
KAHALEWAI, Yolanda K. Oahu IW Res 
KAHOONEY, Marlene R. Hawaii IW Agr 
KAIWI, Gayleen K. Oahu IW Res 
KAIWI, Gayleen K. Hawaii IW Agr 
MAC NEAL, Janet L. Maui IW Res 
MAKAHANALOA, Arline N. Maui IW Agr 
MAKAHANALOA, Arline N. Maui IW Res 
MALDONADO, Zandra M. Maui IW Pas 
MATTHEWS, Tinamarie L. Molokai IW Agr 
PINON-KAAWALOA, Ranielle P. Hawaii IW Agr 
PINON-KAAWALOA, Ranielle P. Hawaii IW Res 
PUOU, Lesley K. Hawaii IW Pas 
PUOU, Lesley K. Hawaii IW Res 
SILVA, Sterling N. Oahu IW Agr 
VASQUEZ, Mariann K. Nanakuli Area / Oahu IW Res 
WILLIAMS, Lois M. Oahu IW Res 
WONG, Jacob C. Hawaii IW Agr 
YOSHIZUMI, Johnette K. Hawaii IW Agr 
  

                                    * IW = Islandwide 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 12 
 

ITEM D-9 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL OF ASSIGNMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST 

 
LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 

HAO, Lydia L. 7342 Nanakuli, Oahu 
KHIM, Rosalind W. 8141 Waianae, Oahu 
KINI, Debbie P. 5213 Nanakuli, Oahu 
NAEOLE, Joseph K., Jr. 7323 Nanakuli, Oahu 
PILIALOHA, Danielle A. 258 Nanakuli, Oahu 
RODRIGUES, Cathleen C. 5518 Lualualei, Oahu 
KAMAKA, Philip L. 5518 Lualualei, Oahu 
SPOON, Nadine N. 8362 PKE, Oahu 
KAAHANUI, Anthony S. 11069 Anahola, Kauai 
PAHINUI, Robinson K. 12491 Kapolei, Oahu 
KAHALEWAI, Sharleen I. 13041 Panaewa, Hawaii 
   

 
ITEM D-10 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT OF LEASEHOLD INTEREST 
           

LESSEE 
 

LEASE NO. 
 

AREA 

AINA, William K. 1327 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
AIPELENA-THOREN, Keola F. 1637 Kewalo, Oahu 
EVANGELISTA, Eleanor 7004 Makuu, Hawaii 
HIAPO, Gwendolyn  1009 Keaukaha, Hawaii 
NAIHE, Daisy L. 4032 Waiakea, Hawaii 
WALKER, Vincent Gordon 3793 Kewalo, Oahu 
   

ITEM D-11 EXHIBIT 
APPROVAL TO ISSUE A NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE FOR ROOFTOP PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEMS 

FOR CERTAIN LESSEES 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 
BUSTILLOS, Joseph H. 12270 Waiehu 4, Maui 
ELLIS, Bryan G. K. 9378 Kaniohale, Hawaii 
GARCIA, William E. 8186 Paukukalo, Maui 
GIER, Burton E. L. 11494 Leialii, Maui 
GLOVER, Robert W. 8621 Nanakuli, Oahu 
HOSEA, Jay K. 12550 Kanehili, Oahu 
KAMANA, Glenn K. 392 Nanakuli, Oahu 
KIHUNE, Mychelle K. C. L. 12216 Waiehu 4, Maui 
KU, Phillip G. 4389 Nanakuli, Oahu 
LAPILIO, Kirk A. 12742 Maluohai, Oahu 
MANINI-EBOS, Donna Mae 12583 Kanehili, Oahu 
MEYERS, Jason K. Q. 12135 Kaupea, Oahu 
PERALTA, Marlene M. 12281 Waiehu 4, Maui 



Page 10 of 12 
 

ITEM D-11 EXHIBIT (continued) 
APPROVAL TO ISSUE A NON-EXCLUSIVE LICENSE FOR ROOFTOP PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEMS 

FOR CERTAIN LESSEES 
 

LESSEE LEASE NO. AREA 
PONCE, Gerald L. 10439 Waiohuli, Maui 
SAM FONG, Willard K. 2203 Kewalo, Oahu 
SOUZA, Leona L. 11284 Kumuhau, Oahu 
TECHUR, Rena L. 7358 Nanakuli, Oahu 

 
ITEM NO. E-1 EXHIBIT 

APPROVAL OF LEASE AWARD PU’UHONA SUBDIVISION RESIDENTIAL OFFERING –  
PHASE 1, WAIKAPU, MAUI 

 
NAME APPL DATE LOT NO. TAX MAP KEY LEASE NO. 

KASEY L AMURO 08/06/1974 52 (2) 3-5-044-052 13085 
ESTHER D HONOKAUPU 08/14/1984 50 (2) 3-5-044-050 13086 
ORLANDO K SPENCER 08/23/1985 54 (2) 3-5-044-054 13087 

ALICE P.K. FRANCO 01/02/1986 73 (2) 3-5-044-073 13088 
KAWELO N.K. WONG 07/16/1986 47 (2) 3-5-044-047 13089 

HELEN F. BISSEN 01/06/1987 31 (2) 3-5-044-031 13090 
ELLABELLE C KAIAMA 03/27/1987 44 (2) 3-5-044-044 13091 
EDWARD C CASHMAN 04/07/1987 65 (2) 3-5-044-065 13092 
SHIRLEY A KEKONA 08/31/1987 66 (2) 3-5-044-066 13093 
ULULANI J KAUPE 01/19/1988 69 (2) 3-5-044-069 13094 

DENISE S.M. TANAKA 01/28/1988 75 (2) 3-5-044-075 13095 
STERLING G PEDRO 02/09/1989 72 (2) 3-5-044-072 13096 

MARY ANN L.K. KAHANA 06/30/1989 67 (2) 3-5-044-067 13097 
IVY NUUHIWA 08/10/1990 40 (2) 3-5-044-040 13098 

WILLIAM K KAMA 07/30/1992 22 (2) 3-5-044-022 13099 
DORALEE P FLORES 09/21/1992 27 (2) 3-5-044-027 13100 
MATTHEW N PAIO 02/21/2001 32 (2) 3-5-044-032 13101 

MARK L.K. NAAUAO 10/04/2002 77 (2) 3-5-044-077 13102 
ASHLEY N ASUEGA-STARK 03/13/2003 42 (2) 3-5-044-042 13103 

NOELANI K KANEKOA 06/09/2003 36 (2) 3-5-044-036 13104 
WILLIAM E ANANA JR 08/13/2003 43 (2) 3-5-044-043 13105 
MARCIAL P BASBAS 11/25/2003 70 (2) 3-5-044-070 13106 

ISAAC K KAHALEWAI 08/02/2004 49 (2) 3-5-044-049 13107 
SAREE P KALANI 08/28/2004 30 (2) 3-5-044-030 13108 

KAMAKA R.B. ROSARIO 03/22/2005 76 (2) 3-5-044-076 13109 
SANDRA E DELA CRUZ 04/26/2005 41 (2) 3-5-044-041 13110 

CURTIS J.T. WONG 05/23/2005 145 (2) 3-5-044-145 13111 
RUBEN J NAVARRO JR 06/06/2005 28 (2) 3-5-044-028 13112 
LUCINDA H ESTRELLA 08/08/2005 71 (2) 3-5-044-071 13113 

ELMER K KAAI 12/14/2005 37 (2) 3-5-044-037 13114 



Page 11 of 12 
 

ITEM NO. E-1 EXHIBIT (continued) 
APPROVAL OF LEASE AWARD PU’UHONA SUBDIVISION RESIDENTIAL OFFERING –  

PHASE 1, WAIKAPU, MAUI 
NAME APPL DATE LOT NO. TAX MAP KEY LEASE NO. 

 

SAMUEL K KAEO 01/13/2006 38 (2) 3-5-044-038 13115 
JERROLD AKAHI 02/15/2006 74 (2) 3-5-044-074 13116 

ALFRED K GANER 02/22/2006 35 (2) 3-5-044-035 13117 
COLLEEN M WICKES 03/08/2006 23 (2) 3-5-044-023 13118 

JAMES R HAIA 05/09/2006 68 (2) 3-5-044-068 13119 
AYSIA A KAHOOHANOHANO 05/23/2006 39 (2) 3-5-044-039 13120 

AMOS K LONOKAILUA-
HEWETT 

06/07/2006 25 (2) 3-5-044-025 13121 

     
 

ITEM NO. F-3 
ANNUAL RENEWAL OF RIGHT OF ENTRY PERMITS, KAUAI ISLAND 

 

NO. ACRE PERMITTEE LOCATION TMK                         Date Started 

533 11.00 * Don Mahi Jr. Anahola (4) 4-8-018:031 10/1/1990 

550 0.344 * Kuini Contrades and Carla 
Contrades-Barrett Anahola (4) 4-8-008:001 (p) 5/1/2003 

554 8.00 * Linda Kaauwai-Iwamoto Anahola (4) 4-8-005:042 (p) 11/1/2000 

558 1.07 *Frank S. Rivera, Sr. and Amber 
Rivera Anahola (4) 4-8-003:020 (p) 5/1/2005 

543 20.0000 Charley Raco, Palakiko Farms Kekaha (4) 1-2-002:023 (p) 7/28/2009 
575 18.00 *Gary Cummings, Jr. Anahola (4) 4-8-008:049 (p) 7/23/2013 

565 12.00 *Angelina Koli and Kalei 
Kanahele Anahola (4) 4-8-005:038 & :044 7/1/2005 

569 0.164 * Puanani Cummings Anahola (4) 4-8-003:020 (p) 9/1/2022 
553 0.092 * Sunny L. Honda Anahola (4) 4-8-009:010 (p) 6/1/1992 
560 3.6 Valerie Woods Anahola (4) 4-8-006:046 (p) 3/8/2002 

536 0.009 *Patricia Contrades and Carla 
Contrades-Barrett Anahola (4) 4-8-011:045 (p) 7/23/2013 

564 0.023 *Woodrow K. Contrades and Carla 
Contrades-Barrett Anahola (4) 4-8-011:045 (p) 4/1/1994 

572 0.34 *Hokualele Canoe Club  Anahola (4) 4-8-012:010 (p) 9/1/2022 
703 0.917 *Kukulu Kumuhana O Anahola Anahola (4) 4-8-005:026 (p) 4/12/2023 

709 432.00 *Aina Alliance Anahola 
(4) 4-8-03:018, 019(p), 021 & 
036; (4) 4-8-014:003; (4) 4-7-

004:003,004 & 007 
4/12/2023 

722 103.07 *Kahu O Ka Paka Kahakai O 
Anahola Anahola 

(4) 4-9-003:011 & 017; (4) 4-
8-010:003, 005, 006 & 010; (4) 

4-8-014:005 
3/3/2023 

710 3.44 *Keakai Kauai, Inc. Anahola (4) 4-8-008:016 & 080 5/9/2022 

712 109.80 *Kaivin Educational Farm 
Program Kekaha (4) 1-2-002:023 (p) 5/2/2022 

475 16.072 Mona Lisa and Randy Boyer Kapaa (4) 4-5-015:003 (p) & 034   
538 0.46 Kauai Habitat for Humanity Hanapepe (4) 1-8-008:035 (p) 7/1/1996 
542 0.58 Wallace Rita Hanapepe (4) 1-8-008:081 (p) 4/1/2007 
574 0.059 Jesse Lam Kapaa (4) 4-5-015:048 2/1/1986 



Page 12 of 12 
 

537 0.23 *Roger Palama Hanapepe (4) 1-8-008:035 (p) 10/1/1995 
541 0.344 Wallace Rita  Hanapepe (4) 1-8-008:035 (p) 7/1/2005 
544 0.367 Akita Enterprises, Ltd. Hanapepe (4) 1-8-008:035 (p) 7/1/1999 
546 0.55 Akita Enterprises, Ltd. Kapaa (4) 4-5-005:006 (p) 7/22/2013 
566 0.918 Jack L. and Margaret C. Phillips Kapaa (4) 4-5-005:006 (p) 3/1/2001 
531 3.264 * Solomon Lovell Anahola (4) 4-8-006:004 12/1/1981 

532 14.903 *Kalei Medeiros Anahola (4) 8-011:005, 006, 011, 013 & 
049 2/1/1984 

535 13.00 *Gordon Rosa Anahola (4) 4-8-005:038 (p) 4/1/1994 

545 2.866 *Clay, Patrick, and Bruce 
Kelekoma Anahola (4) 4-8-015:024 to 026 4/15/1982 

547 50.00 * Patrick, Clay, and Bruce 
Kelekoma Anahola (4) 4-7-004:022 (p) 7/5/2005 

552 2.849 * Lynn K.M. Fu Anahola-
Kamalomaloo (4) 4-8-003:020 (p) 9/1/2005 

556 0.55 *Richard and Kuulei Ornellas Anahola/ 
Kamalomaloo (4) 4-8-011:063 (p) 8/1/2003 

557 173.00 Tarey and Darryl Low Anahola/ 
Kamalomaloo (4) 4-7-002:004 (p) 4/1/2004 

559 315.97 *Stuart Keahiahi Hanchett Moloa’a (4) 4-9-010:002 & 005 10/1/2019 

562 21.03 Joseph Borden Anahola/ 
Kamalomaloo (4) 4-8-003:004 (p) 7/23/2013 

567 45.023 William Sanchez Wailua (4) 3-9-002:003 9/1/2022 
568 5.00 * Henry Aviguetero Hanapepe (4) 1-8-007:003 9/1/2022 
571 11.60 * Norman Cummings Anahola (4) 4-8-003:020 (p) 9/1/2022 

573 320.00 *Ralph Kaui and Rhonda 
Refamonte Wailua (4) 3-9-002:012 & 025 9/1/2022 

578 10.00 *Henry Kupihea Anahola (4) 4-8-003:006 (p) 9/1/2020 

583 80.00 *Edward K Taniguchi Anahola/ 
Kamalomaloo (4) 4-7-002:004 (p) 5/23/2016 

 





Item C-1 

STATE OF HAWAI‘I 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

August 19-20, 2024 

TO: Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission (“HHC”) 

FROM: Kali Watson, Chairperson 

Subject: Act 279 Permitted Interaction Group pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes 
section 92-2.5 and Hawaii Administrative Rules section 10-2-16 (b) (1) 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 

None. For information only. 

DISCUSSION: 

An investigative committee of the Hawaiian Homes Commission is appointed effective 
August 19, 2024. The purpose of the committee is to determine the viability of current projects 
on the Act 279 strategic plan lapse-fix list, review potential new opportunities that may more 
efficiently address the DHHL Waitlist and recommend changes, if any, to the Act 279 strategic 
plan and budget.  

I am establishing this Committee at this time so that staff can move expeditiously with 
the assistance of the Committee to evaluate the evolving landscape of previously identified 
projects against new opportunities that were not previously known. This is necessary given the 
truncated time frames to encumber the remaining lapse-fix funds.  

The members of the Committee include Commissioners Walter Kaneakua, Lawrence 
Lasua and Archie Kalepa. Commissioner Kaneakua will serve as Chair of the Committee. The 
Committee’s report to the Hawaiian Homes Commission of the Committee’s findings and 
recommendations, including a revised draft of the Act 279 strategic plan and budget, if 
appropriate, will be presented at the next regular meeting scheduled in September 2024, with 
deliberation and decision-making at a subsequently noticed meeting as required by law. 



STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

August 19 & 20, 2024 

 

TO:  Members of the Hawaiian Homes Commission 

FROM:  Chairman Kali Watson 

SUBJECT: For Information Only - Appointment of Permitted Interaction Group Pursuant to 
HRS Section 92-2.5 and HAR section 10-2-16(b)(1), to Evaluate and Make 
Recommendations to Mitigate Hilo Airport Impact on Surrounding DHHL lands 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION  

None.  For information only.  

DISCUSSION:  

A permitted interaction group of the Hawaiian Homes Commission is appointed effective August 
19, 2024.  The purpose of this group is to evaluate and make recommendations to mitigate Hilo 
Airport impact on surrounding DHHL lands including Keaukaha Tract I and Keaukaha Tract II 
(Kings Landing).  During the HRS 343 EA process conducted for the DHHL King’s Landing 
Kuleana Homestead Settlement Plan, DHHL received comments from DOT-Airport that 
identified concerns with DHHL’s settlement plan and the effect it would have on Airport 
operations.  DHHL responded to DOT that the Hilo Airport should not impede DHHL’s ability to 
provide homesteading opportunities on Hawaiian Home Lands, but would try to work with DOT-
Airport to find solutions that would be acceptable for both agencies. 

Subsequent public testimony on the King’s Landing Homestead Settlement Plan Draft 
Environmental Assessment Presentation at the May 2024 Hawaiian Homes Commission meeting 
was provided by a Keaukaha lessee.  In his testimony, the lessee urged DHHL to also work with 
the Hilo Airport to mitigate impact to the existing Keaukaha homestead community in addition to 
the King’s Landing tract.  

The members of this committee include Commissioners Dennis Neves, Walter Kaneakua and 
Michael Kaleikini to serve as chair of the committee.  The committee’s work is expected to be 
completed when a draft agreement with DOT-Airport and/or other mitigation proposals are ready 
to be presented to the full Commission for its consideration and approval. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

None.  For information only. 

































































































































































































   
 

1 
  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 

 
STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
 

August 19-20, 2024 
 

To:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
From:  Oriana Leao, NAHASDA Government Relations Program Specialist 
 
Subject: Item C-5 For Information Only – Summary of Responses to Proposed Legislative 

Action Request for 2025 & Draft Legislative Proposals 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION/MOTION: 
 
 None; For information only. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 

Outreach commenced since the June 2024 Hawaiian Homes Commission meeting 
requesting input on the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands’s (DHHL) Legislative Package for 
the 2025 legislative session.  An email was sent to 146 DHHL staff, 196 testifiers on DHHL 
related measures from the 2016-2024 legislative sessions, 36 legislative talk story attendees, 
and 129 homestead associations and other stakeholders.  The outreach list is attached as 
Exhibit ‘A’. The information was posted on DHHL’s website and NAHASDA participated in virtual 
and in-person community meetings to solicit legislative proposals for DHHL’s 2025 Legislative 
Package. 
 

23 proposals were received.  Here’s a summary of the proposals: 
 

Issue Submitted by Result 
HHCA BLOOD QUANTUM REQUIREMENT   
Petition Congress to amend the HHCA blood quantum 
requirement for successors to lessees and successors to 
applicants to a 1/32 blood quantum requirement 

Lessee 
 

More review  

Petition Congress to amend the HHCA blood quantum 
requirement for successors to lessees from ¼ to a lesser 
amount 

Lessee More review 

Petition Congress to amend the HHCA blood quantum 
requirement for successors to lessees from ¼ to a lesser 
amount 

Lessee More review 



   
 

 
2 

  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 
 

Petition Congress to amend the HHCA blood quantum 
requirement for application to the DHHL waiting list, 
from 50% (current quantum requirement) to 25% 
(proposed quantum requirement) and/or individuals 
that can trace their Hawaiian ancestry to 1777 or earlier 

Public More review 

Requested by DHHL Chairperson and Previously 
Approved by the Hawaiian Homes Commission 

  

Independent Legal Counsel 
 
Allow the Hawaiian Homes Commission to retain 
independent legal counsel to be paid by the State and 
also use the services of the Attorney General as needed 

Chair  Included 

Representation on CWRM 
 
Add the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission or the Chairperson's designee to the 
Commission on Water Resource Management as a 
voting member 

Chair  Included 

GET Exemption 
 
Exempt any development of homestead lots or housing 
for the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands from 
general excise and use taxes 

Chair  Included 

SHPD 
 
Allow the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands to 
assume review of the effect of any proposed project for 
lands under its jurisdiction except for projects affecting 
properties listed or nominated for inclusion in the 
Hawaii register of historic places or the national register 
of historic places 

Chair  Included 

School Impact Fees  
 
Exempt housing developed by the Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands from school impact fees 

Chair  Included 

Representation on HHFDC 
 
Add the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission or the Chairperson's designee to the Hawaii 
Housing Finance and Development Corporation’s board 
of directors as a voting member 

Chair  Included 



   
 

 
3 

  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 
 

Representation on HCDA 
 
Add the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission or the Chairperson's designee to the Hawaii 
Community Development Authority as a voting member 

Chair  Included 

Geothermal 
 
Request follow-up funds for the next steps in the 
investigation, exploration, and identification of 
geothermal resources on Hawaiian Home Lands 

Chair  Included 

STATE BUILDING CODES AND COUNTY CLEARANCE   
Amend section 46-1.5 (5) (e) and (23)(d), Hawaii Revised 
Statutes 
 
Exempt DHHL from county user fees while ensuring 
county services to the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands for Hawaiian Home Lands 

Staff Included 

Amend section 46-20.1 (b)(1)(C), Hawaii Revised 
Statutes 
 
Ensure that county sewer transmission lines on 
Hawaiian Home Lands that are in compliance, are 
transferred to the respective county within 60 days after 
the receipt by the appropriate county agency of a 
completed application for maintenance request 

Staff Included 

Amend section 107-26(1) and 107-31, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes 
 
Ensure that state building code compliance is equivalent 
to county building code compliance 

Staff Included 

Amend section 281-56, Hawaii Revised Statutes, by 
adding a new subsection (9) 
 
Ensure that clearance from a state agency in responsible 
charge of a property is acceptable and equivalent to a 
county clearance for building and zoning code 
compliance 

Staff Included 

Amend sections 445-94 and 445-95, Hawaii Revised 
Statutes 
 

Staff Included 



   
 

 
4 

  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 
 

To allow a state agency to provide a building and zoning 
code clearance for buildings on land under the state 
agency’s jurisdiction 
OTHER   
Amend Act 130, SLH 2024 
 
Amends section 4 of Act 130, Session Laws of Hawaii 
2024, to confirm that the Act shall take effect on the 
date of the Secretary of the Interior’s notification letter 
to the Congressional Chairpersons that this Act meets 
none of the criteria in 43 CFR section 48.20 

Staff Included 

Allow the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands to 
utilize the dwelling unit revolving fund as collateral 
when acting as an eligible borrower of a Section 184A 
Loan Guarantee for Native Hawaiian Housing 

Staff Included 

Request appropriations to add administrative staff to 
manage broadband related activities at DHHL 

Staff Does not require 
legislation 
 
Sufficient Sums 
Request 

Request state appropriations for DHHL to purchase and 
acquire lands to develop – particularly ranch land on 
Hawai‘i island 

Lessee Does not require 
legislation 
 
Sufficient Sums 
Request 

Pass legislation that provides preference and priority to 
beneficiary associations before private vendors 

Lessee More review 

Request state appropriations for Kailapa Subdivision 
request for infrastructure over the Honokoa Gulch 
including: 
-Funding for water transmission infrastructure 
-Funding for emergency route to 6 mile mountain road. 
Build road bypassing the flooding bridges that may 
break under pressure 
-Funding for Kupuna Housing Complex and Preschool 
Program 

Lessee Does not require 
legislation 
 
Sufficient Sums 
Request 

 
After considering the responses received and measures previously approved by the 

Hawaiian Homes Commission, fifteen (15) draft legislative proposals are summarized below and 
the actual draft of the bills and/or justification sheets are enclosed in Exhibit ‘B’. 



   
 

 
5 

  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 
 

PROPOSAL SUMMARIES 
 
Proposal HHL-01(25) 
RELATING TO INDEPENDENT LEGAL COUNSEL  
 

This proposal allows the Hawaiian Homes Commission to retain independent legal 
counsel to be paid by the State and use the services of the attorney general as needed when 
the interests of the State and the department are aligned. 
 

The Hawaiian Homes Commission has a trust duty to its beneficiaries and in the 
fulfillment of its trust obligations, the Hawaiian Homes Commission may at times be at odds 
with the interests of the State.  It is at these times that the department must be assured that its 
counsel provides legal guidance strictly in the interest of its client.  Independent counsel that is 
hired and retained by the Hawaiian Homes Commission eliminates any cloud of uncertainty 
that there is a conflict of interest that the Hawaiian Homes Commission is represented by the 
Attorney General’s office that also represents the State.  

 
This measure has not been part of the Administration’s legislative package but has been 

introduced by several legislators over the past few years and has not passed. 
 

Proposal HHL-02(25) 
RELATING TO THE COMMISSION ON WATER RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
 

This proposal adds the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson’s designee to the Commission on Water Resource Management. 
 

The Water Code requires that planning decisions of the Commission on Water Resource 
Management ensure that sufficient water remain available for current and foreseeable 
development and use of Hawaiian Home Lands.  In order to further the interest of beneficiaries, 
the Chairman of the Hawaiian Homes Commission or the Chairperson’s designee should serve 
as an ex officio voting member of the Commission on Water Resource Management. 

 
This measure has not been part of the Administration’s legislative package but has been 

introduced and has not passed. 
 
Proposal HHL-03(25) 
RELATING TO HOUSING  
 

This proposal exempts any development of homestead lots or housing for the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands from general excise taxes. 

 



   
 

 
6 

  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 
 

The Department provides homesteads for native Hawaiians at affordable rates when 
compared to similar development available in Hawaii.  In order to further the interest of 
beneficiaries, any development of homestead lots or housing for the Department should be 
exempt from general excise taxes. 

 
This measure was not included in the Administration’s legislative package and has not 

passed. 
 
Proposal HHL-04(25) 
RELATING TO HISTORIC PRESERVATION REVIEWS  
 

This proposal allows the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands to assume review of the 
effect of any proposed project on historic properties or burial sites for lands under its 
jurisdiction. 
 

Instead of requiring the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands to consult with the 
Department of Land and Natural Resources regarding the effect of a project upon historic 
properties or burial sites, this proposal would streamline the process by allowing the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands to assume this review. 

 
This measure was included in the Administration’s legislative package but has not 

passed. 
 

Proposal HHL-05(25) 
RELATING TO SCHOOL IMPACT FEES 
 

This proposal amends section 302A-1603, Hawaii Revised Statutes to exclude housing 
developed by the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands from school impact fees. 

 
The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands currently leases educational facilities for 

public schools, public charter schools, early learning facilities, and other similar facilities at 
minimal to no cost. By making the exemption of DHHL from school impact fees, the savings can 
be allocated toward developing more housing. 
 
Proposal HHL-06(25) 
RELATING TO THE HAWAII HOUSING AND FINANCE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 This proposal adds the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson’s designee to the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation. 
 

The Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation is administratively attached 
to the Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism. It is governed by a nine-



   
 

 
7 

  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 
 

member Board of Directors which establishes policies and executive direction for the 
Corporation. This proposal would allow DHHL to have representation on the Board of Directors 
of the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation. 

 
This measure was included in the Administration’s legislative package but has not 

passed. 
  
Proposal HHL-07(25) 
RELATING TO THE HAWAII COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

This proposal adds the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson’s designee to the Hawaii Community Development Corporation. 

 
The Hawaii Community Development Corporation is a State agency that was established 

to supplement traditional community renewal methods by promoting and coordinating public 
and private sector community development. The 1976 State Legislature created the Hawaii 
Community Development Authority to plan development of underutilized urban areas of 
Hawaii. This proposal would allow DHHL to have representation on the Hawaii Community 
Development Corporation. 

 
This measure was included in the Administration’s legislative package but has not 

passed. 
 
Proposal HHL-08(25) 
RELATING TO THE HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION ACT, 1920, AS AMENDED  
 

Act 130, Session Laws of Hawaii 2024, increased the Federal Housing Administration 
loan limit for DHHL Direct Loans to be seventy-five percent of the maximum single residence 
loan amount, instead of fifty percent. This proposal amends section 4 of Act 130, Session Laws 
of Hawaii 2024, to confirm that the Act shall take effect on the date of the Secretary of the 
Interior’s notification letter to the Congressional Committee Chairpersons that this Act meets 
none of the criteria in 43 CFR section 48.20.  
 
Proposal HHL-09(25) 
RELATING TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS (Geothermal) 
 
 This proposal requests an appropriation of $6,000,000 dollars for the next steps in the 
investigation, exploration, and identification of geothermal resources on Hawaiian Home Lands. 
 
 To build upon the initial funding provided in Act 205, Session Laws of Hawaii 2022, this 
proposal will allow DHHL to further investigate, explore, and identify geothermal resources on 
Hawaiian Home Lands as these resources may be used for the generation, transmission, or 



   
 

 
8 

  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 
 

production of electricity and renewable energy resources, including but not limited to hydrogen 
generation. 
 
Proposal HHL-10(25) 
RELATING TO COUNTY USER FEES 
 

This legislative proposal exempts the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands from county 
user fees, $100,000 in the aggregate per year, while ensuring county services to the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands for Hawaiian Home Lands. Funds saved by the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands due to exemption from county user fees, $100,000 in the 
aggregate per year, could be used for infrastructure and housing needs for Hawaiian Home 
Lands managed by the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands. 

 
This is a new legislative proposal by the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands that has 

not been previously included in the Administration’s legislative package. 
 
Proposal HHL-11(25) 
RELATING TO COUNTY SEWER TRANSMISISON LINES 
 

This legislative proposal is to ensure that county sewer transmission lines on Hawaiian 
Home Lands that are in compliance or brought into compliance by the Department of Hawaiian 
Home Lands, are transferred to the respective county within 60 days after the receipt by the 
appropriate county agency of a completed application for maintenance request. 
 
 This is a new legislative proposal by the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands that has 
not been previously included in the Administration’s legislative package. 
 
Proposal HHL-12(25) 
RELATING TO STATE BUILING CODES 
 
 This legislative proposal is to ensure that state building code compliance is equivalent to 
county building code compliance by allowing state agencies to administer the state building 
code. 
 

This is a new legislative proposal by the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands that has 
not been previously included in the Administration’s legislative package. 
 
Proposal HHL-13(25) 
RELATING TO STATE BUILDING CODE CLEARANCE 
 



   
 

 
9 

  HHC ITEM NO. C-5 
 
 

This legislative proposal is to ensure that clearance from a state agency in responsible 
charge of a property is acceptable and equivalent to a county clearance for building and zoning 
code compliance. 
 

This is a new legislative proposal by the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands that has 
not been previously included in the Administration’s legislative package. 
 
Proposal HHL-14(25) 
RELATING TO COUNTY LICENSES 
 

This legislative proposal is to allow a state agency to provide a building and zoning code 
clearance for buildings on land under the state agency’s jurisdiction. 
 

This is a new legislative proposal by the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands that has 
not been previously included in the Administration’s legislative package. 
 
Proposal HHL-15(25) 
RELATING TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 
 

This proposal allows the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands to utilize the dwelling 
unit revolving fund as collateral when acting as an eligible borrower of a Section 184A Loan 
Guarantee for Native Hawaiian Housing. 

 
This is a new legislative proposal by the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands that has 

not been previously included in the Administration’s legislative package. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 

These draft legislative proposals will be finalized and submitted for approval by the 
Commission next month and submitted for review by the Governor, Department of the 
Attorney General, and the Department of Budget & Finance.  The proposals are pending final 
approval and no proposal is considered part of the package until final approval is granted by the 
Governor.  In this phase of the review process, the department may amend or withdraw any 
measure. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION/MOTION: 
 
 None; For information only. 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

HHC Item C-5: For Information Only – Summary of Responses to Proposed 
Legislative Action Request for 2025 & Draft Legislative Proposals 



Name Organization 
TESTIFIERS ON DHHL RELATED MEASURES  
FROM 2016 - 2024   
Paula Ailā   
Kainea Aiwohi   
Micah Alameda   
Aldene Albinio   
Kahana Albinio   
Annelle Amaral Association of Hawaiian Civic Clubs 
Amber   
Kamakana Aquino Waimānalo Hawaiian Homes Association 
Don Aweau   
Natasha Boteilho   
Michelle Tancayo   

Bill Brown 
Pana'ewa Hawaiian Home Lands Community 
Association 

Doreen N. Canto   
Shelly Carreira   
Kathleen Pua Chin   
Demont Conner Ho`omana Pono, LLC 
Leimana DaMate ‘Aha Moku Advisory Council 

Robin Danner 
Sovereign Council of Hawaiian Homestead 
Associations 

  Association of Hawaiians for Homestead Lands 
Rosie F. Davis   
Vince Kana‘i Dodge   
Doreen Gaspar Kapa‘akea Hawaiian Homestead Association 
Makanalani Gomes   
Kama Hopkins   
Sharronlee Joseph   
Wilma Noelani Joy   
Ka‘ala   
Patrick Kahawaiola‘a Keaukaha Community Association 
Kate Kahoano   
Rachel L. Ka‘ilianu Ho`omana Pono, LLC 
Carol Lee Kamekona   
Diane Kāneali‘i Kailapa Community Association 
Roger Kāneali‘i   
Lilia Kapuni‘ai   
Marion Kapuni‘ai   
Michelle Kauhane   
Puni Kekauoha   



Kapua Keli‘ikoa-Kamai   
Leimomi Khan Kalihi Palama Hawaiian Civic Club 
Derek Kimura   
Lemonie Kolowena   
Kipukai Kuali‘i Kaua‘i Councilmember 
Stephanie Lauifi   
Joe Kūhiō Lewis Council for Native Hawaiian Advancement 
Sybil Lopez Kalama'ula Mauka Homestead Association 
Malcolm Mackey   
Makaha   
Keali‘i Makekau   
Leif Mokuahi Jr.   
Kaimo Muhlestein   
Viola Mundrick   
Brent Keli‘iokamalu Nakihei   
Madeline Neely   
Dean Oshiro   
Karen Poepoe   
Kilia Purdy-Avelino   
Charlie Ka‘ahanui   
Alice Cabael Ka‘ahanui   
Claudia Quintanilla   
Loretta Ritte   
Gene Ross Davis   
Homelani Schaedel   
Jame K. Schaedel   
Kehaulani Shintani   
Cappy Solatorio Kewalo Hawaiian Homes Community Association 
Healani Sonoda-Pale Ka Lāhui Hawai‘i Political Action Committee 
Stacelynn Eli   
Wendy Waipa Keaukaha Community Association 
Faye Liko Wallace   
Charlie White   
Allen Yanos   
Lawrence Lasua Kalama‘ula Homesteaders Association 
Alexander Akana   
Melody Alcon   
Jim Cisler   
Asti Merino   
Teri Heede   
Lorry A Merino   



Pi‘ilani Akana   
Melissa Rietfors   
Suzanne Marciel   
Kalola Kaulili   
Faataatia Lauifi Jr.   
Tanya Lauifi   
Shane Nelsen   
Mapu Kekahuna   
Dawn Tanimoto   
Noelani   
Reis Haitsuka   
Kalani Johnston   
Robert Ka‘aihue   
Jerry Wayne Flowers Jr.   
Solomon P Kaho‘ohalahala   
Crystal Kia Paul   
Jimmy Gomes   
Tyson Kubo   
Verna Uyetake   
Kealakai Knoche   
Sherry Sasada   
Frances Dinnan   
Kahili Norman   
Debbie Kini   
Kimberlee Woodward   
Maxine Anderson   
  League of Women Voters 
Melodie Aduja OCC Legislative Priorities Committee 
Kuhea Asiu   
Rhiannon Chandler-Iao   
Randy Ching   
Robert Chong   
Kris Coffield Imua Alliance 
Henry Curtis Life of the Land 
Kaipo Gomes   
Jean Lilley Hawaii Habitat for Humanity 
Tina Andrade Catholic Charities Hawaii 
Peter Apo   
Rochelle Kawelo Wai‘anae Hawaiian Civic Club 
Maile Lu‘uwai Keaukaha Pana‘ewa Farmers Association 
Jodi Akau Kānehili NSW Patrol Coordinator 



Josiah Jury   
Linda Jury   
Harold Johnston Jr.   
Raytan Vares   
Bobby Hall   
Mahealani Cypher Ko'olaupoko Hawaiian Civic Club 
  Kupuna for the Mo'opuna 
Lacey Akau   
Kekailoa Perry   
Cheryl Burghardt   
Antoinette Almeida   
Paul Shinkawa   
Jonathan Likeke Scheuer   
Maydeen Lu   
Kapua Medeiros   
Herring Kalua Jr.   
Ku Ching   
Keli‘i Ioane Jr.   
Lance Nobriga   
Daniel Arias   
Leah Pereira   
Melvin Ioane Hanohano Sr.   
Sharon Freitas   
Mele Spencer   
Allyson Dunan   
Kahealani Hanohano-Nunez   
Iwalani Kadowaki   
Puanani Woo   
Rolina Faagai   
Donna Simpson   
Garrett Ikaika Danner   
Charmaine Bugado   
Kim Balauro   
Larry Kamai   
C. Ku‘ulei Laumauna   
Allen K. Hoe   
Mele Hanohano   
Melody Kapilialoha MacKenzie   
Kirstin Kahaloa   
Patricia Waipa   
Lorilynn Pua   



Peter Pua   
Bob Douglas   
Howard Pea   

Glenn Teves   
Kili Namau‘u   
Rosanne Goo   
Kamuela Werner   
Malia Nobrega-Olivera   
Kaile C.   
Kawai Lopez   
Lu Ann Lankford-Faborito   
Luwella Leonardi   
Madonna Leilani Ka‘ilimoku Kaleiohi   
Manuel Aila   
Mary Jane Kahalewai   
Melanie Kala-Hunt   
Purdyka Wahilani   
Renolds Fruean   
Tanya Alana   
Thompson Faboreito   
  Beneficiary Trust Council 
Anthony Makana Paris Prince Kūhiō Hawaiian Civic Club 
  Partners In Care 
Johnnie-Mae L. Perry   
Kenneth R. Conklin, PhD Center for Hawaiian Sovereignty Studies 
Kipukai Kuali‘i and Rolina Faagai SCHHA Policy Committee 
Pamela Tumpap, President Maui Chamber of Commerce 

Mark Cave 
William S. Richardson SOL - J.D. Candidate, Class 
of 2024 

Mel Rapozo, Chair 
Kipukai Kuali'i, Council Vice Chair County of Kaua'i - Council Services Division 
Susan L.K. Lee Loy Hawaii County Council - District 3 
Kiersten Faulkner, Exec. Dir. Historic Hawaii Foundation 
Elmer Ka'ai, President Hui Kāko'o 'Āina Ho'opulapula 
Nancy Jones Hydroponics Alternatives LLC 

Jason Okuhama, President 
Hawaii Alliance for Community Based Economic 
Development (HACBED) 



Mara Mulrooney, Ph.D. 
President, Society of Hawaiian Archaeology Society for Hawaiian Archaeology 

Noel Morin, Chair, Board of Directors Sustainable Energy Hawaii 
LEGISLATIVE TALK STORY SESSIONS  
April Kealoha   
Lori Buchanan   
Jewellyn Kirkland   
Germaine Toguchi   
Senator Maile Shimabukuro   
Helen N. Wai   
Germaine Meyers   
Noe Lopes   
Diane Marshall   
David Keola   
Cheryl Moore   
Nani Kaina   
Kekoa Enomoto Pa'upena Community Development Inc. 
Kai Pelayo   
Kawehilani Enriques   
Kehau Filimoeatu   
Kuulei Nishiyama   
Kaiulani Lambert   
Joanna Howard   
Chanell Omerod   
Carol Catian   
Donna Pōmaika‘i   
Arthur M. Nae‘ole Jr.   
Ron Wise   
Mansha Catian   
Lono Koholua   
Kanani Sang   
Leo Bright   
Kahaunani Mahoe Thoene   
Robert Akau   
Cora Schnackenberg   
Zhan Lindo   
Juanita Reyher-Colon   
Keani Rawlins   
Ardis Farris   
Hala Pakala   



HOMESTEAD ASSOCIATIONS  
Jeffrey Kekoa Ka'ū Hawaiian Home Lands Association 

Charlie Keene 
Kaūmana Hawaiian Homes Community 
Association 

Maydean Bowman Kawaihae Puaka'ilima Community Association 
Nālani Reich Lālāmilo Residence Lots Association 
Dora Aio Villages of La‘ī‘ōpua Association 
Mike Hodson Waimea Hawaiian Homesteaders Association, Inc. 
Kawai Warren Kekaha Hawaiian Homestead Association 
Karen Kahanu Keawe Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai Community Association 
Harry Rodrigues Waiohuli Undivided Interest 
Harry Newman Ka ‘Ohana O Kahikinui 
  Kahikinui Hawaiian Homestead Association 
Kaulana Mossman Kēōkea Homestead Farm Lots Association 
Rod Pa‘ahana Villages of Leiali‘i Phase 1A Association 
Alapaki Heanu Waiehu Kou Community Homestead Association 
Mark Adams Waiehu Kou Residence Lots Phase II Association 
Perry Artates Waiohuli Hawaiian Homesteaders Association 
Ochie Bush Ho‘olehua Homestead Association 
Gayla Haliniak-Lloyd Kalama‘ula Homesteaders Association 
Faith Tuipulotu MHFA, Inc. 
Ronald Davis Moloka‘i Homestead Livestock Association 
Tamar DeFries Hui Maka‘āinana a Kalawahine 
Randy Akau Kānehili Community Association 
U‘ilani Keli‘ikoa Kaupuni Village Community Association 
Nathan Kaipo Punahele Kumuhau and Kakaina 

Kamaki Kanahele 
Nānākuli Hawaiian Homestead Community 
Association 

Avery Choy Princess Kahanu Estates Association 

Lokana Keli‘ikoa-Pua 
Wai‘anae Valley Homestead Community 
Association 

OTHER STAKEHOLDERS  
Ke‘eaumoku Kapu ‘Aha Moku o Maui Inc. 
Kammy Purdy Ahupua`a o Moloka`i 
Black Ho'ohuli Ahupua`a o Nānākuli 
Dre Kalili Association of Hawaiian Civic Clubs 
Blossom Feiteira Association of Hawaiians for Homestead Lands 
Samson Brown Aupuni O Hawai‘i 
Jeff Gilbreath Hawaiian Community Assets, Inc. 
Keali‘i Lopez Imua Hawai‘i 
Melissa Pavlicek Kamehameha Schools 
Vivian Ainoa Kamiloloa One Ali‘i Homestead Association 



Roth Puahala Ke One O Kākuhihewa 
Paula Kekahuna Maku`u Farmers Association 
U‘ilani Kapu Nā Aikāne O Maui 
Mililani Trask Nā Koa Ikaika Ka Lāhui Hawaii 
Roxanne Hanawahine Nā ‘Ohana o Pua‘oi a me Hanawahine 
Paige Kapi‘olani Barber Nānākuli Housing Corporation 
  Native Hawaiian Education Council 
Elena Farden Native Hawaiian Education Council 
Pohai Ryan Native Hawaiian Hospitality Association 

David Kopper Native Hawaiian Legal Corporation 
  Native Hawaiian Legal Corporation 
Kaliko Chun Nelson case 
Deja Ostrowski   

Ke'ōpū Relitz Office of Hawaiian Affairs 
Apela Pe‘ahi Pe‘ahi ‘Ohana 

Ronald Kodani 
Pi‘ihonua Hawaiian Homestead Community 
Association 

Roy Oliveira Waiehu Kou Phase 3 Association 
Cynthia Rezentes   
Keoni Agard   
Keoni Bunag   
Sharlette Poe   
Carrie Ann Shirota   
Pauahi Ho‘okano   
Nina Fisher   
Kahunawai Wright   
Patti Barbee   
Karen Awana   
Jolyn Ballenti   
Esther Kia‘āina   
Geanine Gomes   
Georgie Navarro   
Kauka‘ohu Wahilani   
Scott Abrigo Kapolei Community Development Corporation 
  Queens Medical Center 
  Papa Ola Lōkahi 
  Lili‘uokalani Trust 
Namaka Rawlins ‘Aha Pūnana Leo 



Sheri Daniels Papa Ola Lōkahi 
Mervina Cash-Kaeo Alu Like 
Ka'ano'i Walk Kamehameha Schools 
Melissa Umemori Hampe Kamehameha Schools 
Sam Kippen Kamehameha Schools 
Hailama Farden Association of Hawaiian Civic Clubs 
Makana Paris Association of Hawaiian Civic Clubs 
Ka‘iwi Yoon Bishop Museum 
Mehana Hind Council for Native Hawaiian Advancement 

Kau‘i Sang Department of Education 
Kevin Chang Kua‘āina Ulu ‘Auamo 
Taffi Wise Kanu o ka ‘Āina Learning ‘Ohana 
David Forman William S. Richardson School of Law 

Kapua Sproat William S. Richardson School of Law 
    
Kukui Maunakea-Forth MA'O Organic Farms 
Tyler Gomes  
William Ailā Jr.  

Annie Aki  
Alex Connelly Kua‘āina Ulu ‘Auamo - E Alu Pū 
Brenda Asuncion Kua‘āina Ulu ‘Auamo - Hui Mālama Loko I'a 
Malia Heimuli Kua‘āina Ulu ‘Auamo - Limu Hui 

Ginger 
Kua‘āina Ulu ‘Auamo - Community Engagement & 
Development 

Fukumitsu Kua‘āina Ulu ‘Auamo - Lohe Pono 
Niegel Kua‘āina Ulu ‘Auamo 
Kanani Higbee   
Salvatore Marino   
Walter Ritte   
Linda Chock   
Jojo Tanimoto   
Daryl Johnson   
Kathleen Miller   
Melissa Rietfors   
Jim Cisler   



  
Kau‘i Almeida  
Legislative Hui including:  
Keapo Bissen   
Rufino Magliba Council for Native Hawaiian Advancement 
Chansen Fukushima Kamehameha Schools 
Palakiko Chandler Kamehameha Schools 
Olan Leimomi Fisher Kua‘āina Ulu ‘Auamo 

 



EXHIBIT B 
 

HHC Item C-5: For Information Only – Summary of Responses to Proposed 
Legislative Action Request for 2025 & Draft Legislative Proposals 



  

 HHL-01(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO INDEPENDENT LEGAL COUNSEL. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The legislature finds that Congress through the 1 

Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended (HHCA), set 2 

aside lands to be used for the benefit of native Hawaiians.  As 3 

required by the Admission Act and as a compact with the United 4 

States, the State of Hawaii and the people of Hawaii adopted the 5 

HHCA as a provision of the Hawaii State Constitution and agreed 6 

to faithfully carry out the spirit of the HHCA for the 7 

rehabilitation of the Hawaiian race.  These trust 8 

responsibilities remain to this day.   9 

Given this unique and significant history, the Hawaiian 10 

homes commission should be allowed to retain independent legal 11 

counsel. At the same time, the option of utilizing the services 12 

of the attorney general as needed remains available. 13 

The purpose of this Act is to allow the Hawaiian homes 14 

commission to retain independent legal counsel.  15 

SECTION 2.  Section 28-8.3, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 16 

amended as follows: 17 

(1)  By amending subsection (a) to read as follows: 18 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-01(25) 

Page 2 

"(a)  No department of the State other than the attorney 1 

general may employ or retain any attorney, by contract or 2 

otherwise, for the purpose of representing the State or the 3 

department in any litigation, rendering legal counsel to the 4 

department, or drafting legal documents for the department; 5 

provided that the foregoing provision shall not apply to the 6 

employment or retention of attorneys: 7 

(1) By the public utilities commission, the labor and 8 

industrial relations appeals board, and the Hawaii 9 

labor relations board; 10 

(2) By any court or judicial or legislative office of the 11 

State; provided that if the attorney general is 12 

requested to provide representation to a court or 13 

judicial office by the chief justice or the chief 14 

justice's designee, or to a legislative office by the 15 

speaker of the house of representatives and the 16 

president of the senate jointly, and the attorney 17 

general declines to provide such representation on the 18 

grounds of conflict of interest, the attorney general 19 

shall retain an attorney for the court, judicial, or 20 

legislative office, subject to approval by the court, 21 

judicial, or legislative office; 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-01(25) 

Page 3 

(3) By the legislative reference bureau; 1 

(4) By any compilation commission that may be constituted 2 

from time to time; 3 

(5) By the real estate commission for any action involving 4 

the real estate recovery fund; 5 

(6) By the contractors license board for any action 6 

involving the contractors recovery fund; 7 

(7) By the office of Hawaiian affairs; 8 

(8) By the department of commerce and consumer affairs for 9 

the enforcement of violations of chapters 480 and 10 

485A; 11 

(9) As grand jury counsel; 12 

(10) By the Hawaii health systems corporation, or its 13 

regional system boards, or any of their facilities; 14 

(11) By the auditor; 15 

(12) By the office of ombudsman; 16 

(13) By the insurance division; 17 

(14) By the University of Hawaii; 18 

(15) By the Kahoolawe island reserve commission; 19 

(16) By the division of consumer advocacy; 20 

(17) By the office of elections; 21 

(18) By the campaign spending commission; 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-01(25) 

Page 4 

(19) By the Hawaii tourism authority, as provided in 1 

section 201B-2.5; 2 

(20) By the division of financial institutions; 3 

(21) By the office of information practices; 4 

(22) By the school facilities authority; 5 

(23)  By the Mauna Kea stewardship and oversight authority; 6 

[or] 7 

(24) By the Hawaiian homes commission; provided that: 8 

(A) The Hawaiian homes commission may use the 9 

services of the attorney general as needed; and 10 

(B) Legal fees owed to independent counsel shall be 11 

paid by the State; or 12 

[(24)] (25)  By a department, if the attorney general, for 13 

reasons deemed by the attorney general to be good and 14 

sufficient, declines to employ or retain an attorney 15 

for a department; provided that the governor waives 16 

the provision of this section." 17 

 (2) By amending subsection (c) to read as follows: 18 

 "(c)  Every attorney employed by any department on a full-19 

time basis, except an attorney employed by the public utilities 20 

commission, the labor and industrial relations appeals board, 21 

the Hawaii labor relations board, the office of Hawaiian 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-01(25) 

Page 5 

affairs, the Hawaii health systems corporation or its regional 1 

system boards, the department of commerce and consumer affairs 2 

in prosecution of consumer complaints, insurance division, the 3 

division of consumer advocacy, the University of Hawaii, the 4 

Hawaii tourism authority as provided in section 201B-2.5, the 5 

Mauna Kea stewardship and oversight authority, the office of 6 

information practices, the Hawaiian homes commission, or as 7 

grand jury counsel, shall be a deputy attorney general." 8 

 SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 9 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 10 

 SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 11 

  12 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 13 

      BY REQUEST  14 



  

 HHL-01(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
Hawaiian Homes Commission; Independent Legal Counsel 
 
Description: 
Allows the Hawaiian Homes Commission to retain independent legal 
counsel.  Authorizes the Hawaiian Homes Commission to use the 
services of the Attorney General as needed.  Provides that funds 
owed to independent legal counsel shall be paid by the State. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-01(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO INDEPENDENT 

LEGAL COUNSEL. 

PURPOSE: To allow the Hawaiian Homes Commission to 
retain independent legal counsel to be 
paid by the State and also use the 
services of the Attorney General as 
needed. 

 
MEANS: Amend section 28-8.3(a) and (c), Hawaii 

Revised Statutes.      
 
JUSTIFICATION: The Hawaiian Homes Commission has a trust 

duty to its beneficiaries and in the 
fulfillment of its trust obligations, the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission may at times be at 
odds with the interests of the State.  It is 
at these times that the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission must be assured that its counsel 
provides legal guidance strictly in the 
interest of its client.  Independent counsel 
that is hired and retained by the Hawaiian 
Homes Commission eliminates any cloud of 
uncertainty that there is a conflict of 
interest that the Hawaiian Homes Commission 
is represented by the Department of the 
Attorney General that also represents the 
State of Hawaii. 
 

 Impact on the public:  This bill will 
further protect the interest of 
beneficiaries of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission Act, 1920, as amended, by 
allowing the Hawaiian Homes Commission to 
retain independent legal counsel.   

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
This bill could reduce the legal services 
provided by the Department of the Attorney 
General.  

  
GENERAL FUND:  $500,000.  
 



Page 2 

HHL-01(25) 

OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: None. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 
 



  

 HHL-02(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO THE COMMISSION ON WATER RESOURCE MANAGEMENT. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The legislature finds that section 174C-101(a), 1 

Hawaii Revised Statutes, requires decisions of the commission on 2 

water resource management to incorporate and protect adequate 3 

reserves of water for current and foreseeable development and 4 

use of Hawaiian home lands.  The purpose of this Act is to add 5 

the chairperson of the Hawaiian homes commission, or the 6 

chairperson's designee, to the commission on water resource 7 

management in a similar ex officio membership as the director of 8 

health or the director's designee. 9 

SECTION 2.  Section 174C-7, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 10 

amended by amending subsections (a) and (b) to read as follows: 11 

"(a)  There is established within the department a 12 

commission on water resource management consisting of [seven] 13 

eight members which shall have exclusive jurisdiction and final 14 

authority in all matters relating to implementation and 15 

administration of the state water code, except as otherwise 16 

specifically provided in this chapter. 17 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-02(25) 

Page 2 

(b)  Five members shall be appointed by the governor 1 

subject to confirmation by the senate in the manner prescribed 2 

in subsection (d).  Each [member] of these five members shall 3 

have substantial experience in the area of water resource 4 

management; provided that at least one member shall have 5 

substantial experience or expertise in traditional Hawaiian 6 

water resource management techniques and in traditional Hawaiian 7 

riparian usage such as those preserved by section 174C-101.  The 8 

chairperson of the board of land and natural resources shall be 9 

the chairperson of the commission.  The director of health and 10 

the chairperson of the Hawaiian homes commission or [the 11 

director's designee] their respective designees shall serve as 12 

[an] ex officio[[],[]] voting [member.] members." 13 

 SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 14 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 15 

 SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 16 

  17 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 18 

      BY REQUEST  19 



  

 HHL-02(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
Commission on Water Resource Management; Membership 
 
Description: 
Adds the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson's designee to the Commission on Water Resource 
Management.  Increases number of commission members from seven 
to eight, with only five of eight required to have substantial 
experience in water resource management. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-02(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO THE COMMISSION 

ON WATER RESOURCE MANAGEMENT. 

PURPOSE: To add the Chairperson of the Hawaiian 
Homes Commission or the Chairperson's 
designee to the Commission on Water 
Resource Management. 

 
MEANS: Amend section 174C-7(a) and (b), Hawaii 

Revised Statutes (HRS).   
 
JUSTIFICATION: The State Water Code requires that decisions 

of the Commission on Water Resource 
Management incorporate and protect adequate 
reserves of water for current and 
foreseeable development and use of Hawaiian 
Home Lands.  Allowing the Chairperson of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson's designee to serve on the 
Commission on Water Resource Management, 
would provide an opportunity for the 
Chairperson or the Chairperson's designee to 
participate in setting policies, defining 
uses, and establishing priorities and 
procedures over land-based surface water and 
ground water resources, which are key 
components of the development and use of 
Hawaiian Home Lands. 

 
 Clarifies in section 174C-7(b), HRS, that 

only five water commission members selected 
by the Governor must have substantial 
experience in the area of water resource 
management. 
 

 Impact on the public:  This bill protects 
the interests of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as 
amended, by allowing the Chairperson of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson's designee to serve as an ex 
officio voting member of the Commission on 
Water Resource Management.   



Page 2 

HHL-02(25) 

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
An additional member would serve on the 
Commission on Water Resource Management.  

  
GENERAL FUND:  None.  
 
OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: Commission on Water Resource Management. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 
 



  

 HHL-03(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO HOUSING. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The legislature finds that homestead lots or 1 

housing developed for the department of Hawaiian home lands 2 

awarded to native Hawaiians are offered at affordable rates when 3 

compared to similar housing opportunities available in Hawaii.  4 

The purpose of this Act is to exempt any development of 5 

homestead lots or housing for the department of Hawaiian home 6 

lands from general excise and use taxes. 7 

SECTION 2.  Chapter 237, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 8 

amended by adding a new section to be appropriately designated 9 

and to read as follows: 10 

"§237-   Exemptions for any development of homestead lots 11 

or housing for the department of Hawaiian home lands.  (a)  Any 12 

amounts related to planning, design, financing, or construction 13 

activities conducted by a qualified person or firm for a new 14 

construction, moderate rehabilitation, or substantial 15 

rehabilitation project for homestead lots or housing for the 16 

department of Hawaiian home lands shall be exempted from the tax 17 

imposed by this chapter.  The project may also be developed: 18 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-03(25) 

Page 2 

(1)  Under a government assistance program approved by the 1 

department of Hawaiian home lands; 2 

(2) Under the sponsorship of a nonprofit organization 3 

providing home rehabilitation or new homes on Hawaiian 4 

home lands for qualified families in need of decent, 5 

low-cost housing; or 6 

(3)  To provide affordable rental housing where at least 7 

fifty per cent of the available units are for 8 

households with incomes at or below eighty per cent of 9 

the area median family income as determined by the 10 

United States Department of Housing and Urban 11 

Development. 12 

(b) All claims for exemption under this section shall be 13 

filed with and certified by the department of Hawaiian home 14 

lands and forwarded to the department of taxation by the 15 

claimant.  Any claim for exemption that is filed and approved 16 

shall not be considered a subsidy. 17 

(c) The department of Hawaiian home lands may establish, 18 

revise, charge, and collect a reasonable service fee in 19 

connection with its approvals and certifications of the 20 

exemption under this section.  The fees shall be deposited into 21 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-03(25) 

Page 3 

the Hawaiian home operating fund pursuant to section 213(e) of 1 

the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended. 2 

(d) For purposes of this section: 3 

"Homestead lot" means a lot of residential, agricultural, 4 

or pastoral use to be awarded pursuant to the Hawaiian Homes 5 

Commission Act, 1920, as amended, including but not limited to 6 

on- and off-site infrastructure requirements, appurtenances, and 7 

dwelling units.  8 

"Moderate rehabilitation" shall have the same meaning as 9 

defined in section 201H-36.  10 

"Qualified person or firm" means any individual, 11 

partnership, joint venture, corporation, association, limited 12 

liability partnership, limited liability company, business, 13 

trust, or any organized group of persons or legal entities, or 14 

any combination thereof, that possesses all professional or 15 

vocational licenses necessary to do business in the State. 16 

"Substantial rehabilitation" shall have the same meaning as 17 

defined in section 201H-36." 18 

 SECTION 3.  Section 238-3, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 19 

amended by amending subsection (j) to read as follows: 20 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-03(25) 

Page 4 

 "(j)  The tax imposed by this chapter shall not apply to 1 

any use of property, services, or contracting exempted by 2 

section 237-26 [or], section 237-29[.], or section 237-    ." 3 

SECTION 4.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 4 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 5 

 SECTION 5.  This Act, upon its approval, shall take effect 6 

on January 1, 2026. 7 

  8 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 9 

      BY REQUEST  10 



  

 HHL-03(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
DHHL; General Excise Tax Exemption; Use Tax Exemption 
 
Description: 
Exempts any development of homestead lots or housing for the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands from general excise and use 
taxes. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-03(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO HOUSING. 

PURPOSE: To exempt any development of homestead 
lots or housing for the Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands from general excise 
and use taxes. 

 
MEANS: Add a new section to chapter 237 and amend 

section 238-3(j), Hawaii Revised Statutes.   
 
JUSTIFICATION: The savings resulting from the exemption 

from general excise and use taxes that the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands can 
potentially accrue from this bill would be 
applied to the development of additional 
housing and associated infrastructure.  This 
additional saving would allow the Department 
to more fully commit the funding received 
toward its mission, development of more 
homestead lots or housing units for 
beneficiaries of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission Act, 1920, as amended. 
 

 Impact on the public:  This bill further 
protects the interest of beneficiaries of 
the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as 
amended, by exempting any development of 
homestead lots or housing for the Department 
of Hawaiian Home Lands from general excise 
and use taxes.   

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
More funding could be allocated toward the 
development of homestead lots or housing.  

  
GENERAL FUND: $1,000,000 is the estimated amount of lost 

tax revenue.  
 
OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 



Page 2 

HHL-03(25) 

OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: Department of Taxation and Department of 

Budget and Finance. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: January 1, 2026. 



  

 HHL-04(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO HISTORIC PRESERVATION REVIEWS. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The legislature finds that section 6E-8, Hawaii 1 

Revised Statutes, plays an important role in the protection and 2 

management of the State's historic properties and burial sites.  3 

Section 6E-8(b) requires the department of Hawaiian home lands, 4 

prior to any proposed project relating to lands under its 5 

jurisdiction, to consult with the department of land and natural 6 

resources regarding the effect of the project upon historic 7 

property or a burial site.  The purpose of this Act is to allow 8 

the department of Hawaiian home lands to assume review of the 9 

effect of any proposed project on historic properties or burial 10 

sites for lands under its jurisdiction. 11 

SECTION 2.  Section 6E-8, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 12 

amended by amending subsection (b) to read as follows: 13 

"(b)  [The] Notwithstanding subsection (a), the department 14 

of Hawaiian home lands[, prior to] may assume review of any 15 

proposed project relating to lands under its jurisdiction[, 16 

shall consult with the department regarding the effect of the 17 

project upon historic property or a burial site.] pursuant to 18 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-04(25) 

Page 2 

this section and pursuant to any administrative rule adopted 1 

thereunder; provided that the department of Hawaiian home lands 2 

shall: 3 

(1) Designate the review to a Hawaiian home lands 4 

preservation officer who has professional competence 5 

and experience in the field of historic preservation; 6 

and 7 

(2) Ensure that copies of all reports, maps, and 8 

documents, including those reflecting the Hawaiian 9 

home lands preservation official's comments, 10 

recommendations, and decisions, are provided to the 11 

department to be incorporated into the historic 12 

preservation digital document management system and 13 

library. 14 

The department shall retain authority for review under this 15 

section for projects affecting properties listed or nominated 16 

for inclusion in the Hawaii register of historic places or the 17 

national register of historic places." 18 

 SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 19 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 20 

21 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-04(25) 

Page 3 

 SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 1 

  2 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 3 

      BY REQUEST  4 



  

 HHL-04(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
Historic Preservation; DHHL; Project Reviews of Proposed State 
Projects 
 
Description: 
Allows the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands to assume historic 
preservation review of the effect of any proposed project for 
lands under its jurisdiction except for projects affecting 
properties listed or nominated for inclusion in the Hawaii 
register of historic places or the national register of historic 
places. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-04(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO HISTORIC 

PRESERVATION REVIEWS. 

PURPOSE: To allow the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands to assume review of the effect of 
any proposed project for lands under its 
jurisdiction except for projects 
affecting properties listed or nominated 
for inclusion in the Hawaii register of 
historic places or the national register 
of historic places. 

 
MEANS: Amend section 6E-8(b), Hawaii Revised 

Statutes.   
 
JUSTIFICATION: Instead of requiring the Department of 

Hawaiian Home Lands to consult with the 
Department of Land and Natural Resources 
regarding the effect of a project upon 
historic properties or burial sites, this 
bill would streamline the process by 
allowing the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands to assume this review, which would 
allow for the ability to expedite the 
construction of proposed projects. 
 

 Impact on the public:  This bill advances 
the interest of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act 1920, as 
amended, by streamlining the review process 
for any proposed project on Hawaiian Home 
Lands.   

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands would 
assume this function for lands under its 
jurisdiction freeing up those resources for 
the Department of Land and Natural Resources 
to service other agencies.  

  
GENERAL FUND:  None.  
 
OTHER FUNDS:  None. 



Page 2 

HHL-04(25) 

 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: Department of Land and Natural Resources. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 
 



 

 HHL-05(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO SCHOOL IMPACT FEES. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  Section 302A-1603, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 1 

amended by amending subsection (b) to read as follows: 2 

"(b)  The following shall be exempt from this section: 3 

(1)  Any form of housing permanently excluding school-aged 4 

children, with necessary covenants or declarations of 5 

restrictions recorded on the property; 6 

(2) Any form of housing that is or will be paying the 7 

transient accommodations tax under chapter 237D; 8 

(3) All nonresidential development; 9 

(4) Any development with an executed education 10 

contribution agreement or other like document with the 11 

authority or the department for the contribution of 12 

school sites or payment of fees for school land or 13 

school construction; 14 

(5) Any form of housing developed by the department of 15 

Hawaiian home lands for use by beneficiaries of the 16 

Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended; and 17 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-05(25) 

Page 2 

(6) Any form of development by the Hawaii community 1 

development authority pursuant to part XII of chapter 2 

206E." 3 

SECTION 2.  This Act does not affect rights and duties that 4 

matured penalties that were incurred, and proceedings that were 5 

begun before its effective date. 6 

SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 7 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 8 

SECTION 4. This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 9 

  10 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 11 

      BY REQUEST  12 



 

 HHL-05(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
School Impact Fees; Education; Housing; DHHL 
 
Description: 
Excludes housing developed by the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands from school impact fees. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-05(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO SCHOOL IMPACT 

FEES.  
 
PURPOSE: Exempts any housing development for the 

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands from 
school impact fees. 

MEANS: Amend section 302A-1603(b), Hawaii Revised 
Statutes.   

 
JUSTIFICATION: Lands set aside for use as Hawaiian Home 

Lands were withdrawn for other purposes, 
including public schools, since the 
enactment of the Hawaiian Homes Commission 
Act, 1920, as amended.  Additionally, the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands provides 
affordable housing that often account for 
the educational facilities that may be 
needed to support the community.  In order 
to further the interest of beneficiaries of 
the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, any 
housing development for the Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands should be exempt from 
school impact fees. 

 
 Impact on the public:  This proposal further 

protects the interest of beneficiaries of 
the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act by 
exempting any housing development for the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands from 
school impact fees.   

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
More funding could be allocated toward the 
development of housing instead of fees.  

  
GENERAL FUND:  None.  
 
OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 



Page 2 

HHL-05(25) 

OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: Department of Education - School Facilities 

Authority. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 
 



 

HHL-06(25) 

__.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO THE HAWAII HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The legislature finds that the Hawaii housing 1 

finance and development corporation is tasked with developing 2 

and financing low- and moderate- income housing projects and 3 

administering homeownership programs.  The purpose of this Act 4 

is to add the chairperson of the Hawaiian homes commission, or 5 

the chairperson's designee, to the board of directors of the 6 

Hawaii housing finance and development corporation. 7 

SECTION 2.  Section 201H-3, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 8 

amended by amending subsections (a), (b), and (c) to read as 9 

follows: 10 

" (a)  There is created a board of directors of the Hawaii 11 

housing finance and development corporation consisting of [nine] 12 

ten members, of whom six shall be public members appointed by 13 

the governor as provided in section 26-34.  At least four of the 14 

public members shall have knowledge and expertise in public or 15 

private financing and development of affordable housing.  Public 16 

members shall be appointed from each of the counties of 17 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-06(25) 

Page 2 

Honolulu, Hawaii, Maui, and Kauai.  At least one public member 1 

shall represent community advocates for low-income housing, 2 

affiliated with private nonprofit organizations that serve the 3 

residents of low-income housing.  The public members of the 4 

board shall serve four-year staggered terms; provided that the 5 

initial appointments shall be as follows: 6 

(1)  Two members to be appointed for four years; 7 

(2)  Two members to be appointed for three years; and 8 

(3)  Two members to be appointed for two years. 9 

The director of business, economic development, and tourism, 10 

[and] the director of finance, and the chairperson of the 11 

Hawaiian homes commission, or their designated representatives, 12 

and a representative of the governor's office, shall be ex 13 

officio[[],[]] voting members.  The corporation shall be headed 14 

by the board. 15 

(b)  The board of directors shall select a chairperson and 16 

vice chairperson from among its members; provided that the 17 

chairperson shall be a public member.  The director of business, 18 

economic development, and tourism, director of finance, 19 

chairperson of the Hawaiian homes commission, and the governor's 20 

representative shall be ineligible to serve as chairperson of 21 

the board. 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-06(25) 

Page 3 

(c)  [Five] Six members shall constitute a quorum, whose 1 

affirmative vote shall be necessary for all actions by the 2 

corporation.  The members shall receive no compensation for 3 

services, but shall be entitled to necessary expenses, including 4 

travel expenses, incurred in the performance of their duties."  5 

SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 6 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 7 

SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 8 

 9 

INTRODUCED BY: _____________________________ 10 

BY REQUEST 11 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-06(25) 

 

 
Report Title: 
HHFDC Board of Directors; Membership 
 
Description: 
Adds the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson's designee to the Board of Directors of the Hawaii 
Housing Finance and Development Corporation. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-06(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT: Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO THE HAWAII 

HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION. 
 
PURPOSE: To add the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes 

Commission or the Chairperson's designee to 
the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development 
Corporation’s board of directors. 

   
MEANS: Amend section 201H-3(a), (b), and (c), 

Hawaii Revised Statutes.  
 
JUSTIFICATION: Allowing the Chairperson of the Hawaiian 

Homes Commission or the Chairperson's 
designee to serve on the board of directors 
of the Hawaii Housing Finance and 
Development Corporation would provide an 
opportunity for the Chairperson or the 
Chairperson’s designee to participate in 
setting policies, defining uses, and 
establishing priorities and procedures for 
the development, subdivision, and 
construction of dwelling units in housing 
projects in which the State, through the 
Corporation, shall participate. 

 
Impact on the public:  This bill protects 
the interests of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as 
amended, by allowing the Chairperson of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson’s designee to serve on the board 
of directors of the Hawaii Housing Finance 
and Development Corporation. 

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
An additional member would serve on the 
board of directors of the Hawaii Housing 
Finance and Development Corporation. 

 
GENERAL FUND: None. 
 
OTHER FUNDS: None. 
 



Page 2 

HHL-06(25) 

PPBS PROGRAM 
 DESIGNATION: HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED 
 AGENCIES: Hawaii Housing Finance and Development 

Corporation. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 



 

HHL-07(25) 

__.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO THE HAWAII COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The legislature finds that the Hawaii community 1 

development authority is tasked with promoting and coordinating 2 

public and private sector community development and to plan for 3 

the development of underutilized areas of Hawaii.  The purpose 4 

of this Act is to add the chairperson of the Hawaiian homes 5 

commission or the chairperson's designee to the Hawaii community 6 

development authority. 7 

SECTION 2.  Section 206E-3, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 8 

amended by amending subsection (b) to read as follows: 9 

"(b)  The authority shall consist of the director of 10 

finance or the director's designee; the director of 11 

transportation or the director's designee; the director of 12 

business, economic development, and tourism or the director's 13 

designee; the chairperson of the board of land and natural 14 

resources; the chairperson of the Hawaiian homes commission or 15 

the chairperson's designee; the director of planning or planning 16 

and permitting of each county in which a community development 17 

district is located or the director's designee; a cultural 18 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

Page 2 

specialist; an at-large member nominated by the president of the 1 

senate; an at-large member nominated by the speaker of the house 2 

of representatives; two representatives of the Heeia community 3 

development district, comprising one resident of that district 4 

or the Koolaupoko district, which consists of sections 1 through 5 

9 of zone 4 of the first tax map key division, and one owner of 6 

a small business or one officer or director of a nonprofit 7 

organization in the Heeia community development district or 8 

Koolaupoko district; two representatives of the Kalaeloa 9 

community development district, comprising one resident of the 10 

Ewa zone (zone 9, sections 1 through 2) or the Waianae zone 11 

(zone 8, sections 1 through 9) of the first tax map key 12 

division, and one owner of a small business or one officer or 13 

director of a nonprofit organization in the Ewa or Waianae zone; 14 

two representatives of the Kakaako community development 15 

district, comprising one resident of the district and one owner 16 

of a small business or one officer or director of a nonprofit 17 

organization in the district; and two representatives of the 18 

Pulehunui community development district, consisting of one 19 

resident of the island of Maui, and one owner of a small 20 

business or one officer or director of a nonprofit organization 21 

on the island of Maui. 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

Page 3 

 All members except the director of finance, director of 1 

transportation, county directors of planning or planning and 2 

permitting, director of business, economic development, and 3 

tourism, chairperson of the board of land and natural resources, 4 

chairperson of the Hawaiian homes commission, or their 5 

respective designees shall be appointed by the governor pursuant 6 

to section 26-34.  The two at-large members nominated by the 7 

president of the senate and speaker of the house of 8 

representatives shall each be invited to serve and appointed by 9 

the governor from a list of three nominees submitted for each 10 

position by the nominating authority specified in this 11 

subsection. 12 

The president of the senate and the speaker of the house of 13 

representatives shall each submit a list of six nominees for 14 

each district to the governor to fill the two district 15 

representative positions for each community development 16 

district.  For each community development district, the governor 17 

shall appoint one member from a list of nominees submitted by 18 

the president of the senate and one member from a list of 19 

nominees submitted by the speaker of the house of 20 

representatives, and of the two appointees, one shall meet the 21 

district residency requirement and one shall meet the district 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

Page 4 

small business owner or nonprofit organization officer or 1 

director requirement. 2 

The authority shall be organized and shall exercise 3 

jurisdiction as follows: 4 

(1) For matters affecting the Heeia community development  5 

district, the following members shall be considered in 6 

determining quorum and majority and shall be eligible 7 

to vote: 8 

(A)  The director of finance or the director's 9 

designee; 10 

(B)  The director of transportation or the director's 11 

designee; 12 

(C)  The director of business, economic development, 13 

and tourism or the director's designee; 14 

(D)  The director of planning and permitting for the 15 

county in which the Heeia community development 16 

district is located or the director's designee; 17 

(E) The cultural specialist; 18 

(F) The two at-large members; and 19 

(G) The two representatives of the Heeia 20 

community development district; 21 

(2)  For matters affecting the Kalaeloa community 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

Page 5 

development district, the following members shall be 1 

considered in determining quorum and majority and 2 

shall be eligible to vote: 3 

(A) The director of finance or the director's  4 

designee; 5 

(B) The director of transportation or the director's  6 

designee; 7 

(C) The director of business, economic development,  8 

and tourism or the director's designee; 9 

(D) The director of planning and permitting for the  10 

county in which the Kalaeloa community 11 

development district is located or the director's 12 

designee; 13 

(E)  The chairperson of the Hawaiian homes commission 14 

or the chairperson's designee; 15 

     [(E)] (F)  The cultural specialist; 16 

     [(F)] (G)  The two at-large members; and 17 

     [(G)] (H)  The two representatives of the Kalaeloa  18 

community development district; 19 

(3) For matters affecting the Kakaako community  20 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

Page 6 

development district, the following members shall be 1 

considered in determining quorum and majority and 2 

shall be eligible to vote: 3 

(A) The director of finance or the director's  4 

designee; 5 

(B) The director of transportation or the director's  6 

designee; 7 

(C) The director of business, economic development,  8 

and tourism or the director's designee; 9 

(D) The director of planning and permitting for the  10 

county in which the Kakaako community development 11 

district is located or the director's designee; 12 

     (E)  The cultural specialist; 13 

     (F)  The two at-large members; and 14 

(G)  The two representatives of the Kakaako  15 

community development district; and 16 

(4) For matters affecting the Pulehunui community  17 

development district, the following members shall be 18 

considered in determining quorum and majority and 19 

shall be eligible to vote: 20 

(A)  The director of finance or the director's 21 

designee; 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

Page 7 

(B)  The director of transportation or the director's  1 

designee; 2 

(C)  The director of business, economic development, 3 

and tourism or the director's designee; 4 

(D)  The director of planning for the county in which 5 

the Pulehunui community development district is 6 

located or the director's designee; 7 

(E)  The chairperson of the board of land and natural 8 

resources or the chairperson's designee; 9 

(F)  The cultural specialist; 10 

(G)  The two at-large members; and 11 

(H)  The two representatives of the Pulehunui 12 

community development district. 13 

In the event of a vacancy, a member shall be appointed to 14 

fill the vacancy in the same manner as the original appointment 15 

within thirty days of the vacancy or within ten days of the 16 

senate's rejection of a previous appointment, as applicable. 17 

The terms of the director of finance; director of 18 

transportation; county directors of planning or planning and 19 

permitting; director of business, economic development, and 20 

tourism; [and] chairperson of the board of land and natural 21 

resources; and chairperson of the Hawaiian homes commission; or 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

Page 8 

their respective designees shall run concurrently with each 1 

official's term of office.  The terms of the appointed voting 2 

members shall be for four years, commencing on July 1 and 3 

expiring on June 30.  The governor shall provide for staggered 4 

terms of the initially appointed voting members so that the 5 

initial terms of four members selected by lot shall be for two 6 

years, the initial terms of four members selected by lot shall 7 

be for three years, and the initial terms of the remaining three 8 

members shall be for four years. 9 

The governor may remove or suspend for cause any member 10 

after due notice and public hearing. 11 

Notwithstanding section 92-15, a majority of all eligible 12 

voting members as specified in this subsection shall constitute 13 

a quorum to do business, and the concurrence of a majority of 14 

all eligible voting members as specified in this subsection 15 

shall be necessary to make any action of the authority valid.  16 

All members shall continue in office until their respective 17 

successors have been appointed and qualified.  Except as herein 18 

provided, no member appointed under this subsection shall be an 19 

officer or employee of the State or its political subdivisions. 20 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

Page 9 

     For purposes of this section, "small business" means a 1 

business that is independently owned and that is not dominant in 2 

its field of operation." 3 

 SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 4 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 5 

 SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 6 

 7 

INTRODUCED BY: _____________________________ 8 

BY REQUEST 9 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-07(25) 

 

 
Report Title: 
HCDA; Membership 
 
Description: 
Adds the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson's designee to the Hawaii Community Development 
Authority. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-07(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT: Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO THE HAWAII 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY. 
 
PURPOSE: To add the Chairperson of the Hawaiian Homes 

Commission or the Chairperson's designee to 
the Hawaii Community Development Authority. 

 
MEANS: Amend section 206E-3(b), Hawaii Revised 

Statutes. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: Allowing the Chairperson of the Hawaiian 

Homes Commission or the Chairperson's 
designee to serve on the Hawaii Community 
Development Authority would provide an 
opportunity for the Chairperson or the 
Chairperson's designee to participate in 
promoting and coordinating public and 
private sector community development and to 
plan for the development of underutilized 
areas of Hawaii. 

 
Impact on the public:  This bill protects 
the interests of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as 
amended, by allowing the Chairperson of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission or the 
Chairperson's designee to serve on the 
Hawaii Community Development Authority. 

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
An additional member would serve on the 
Hawaii Community Development Authority. 

 
GENERAL FUND: None. 
 
OTHER FUNDS: None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM 
 DESIGNATION: HHL 625. 
 
 
OTHER AFFECTED 
 AGENCIES: Hawaii Community Development Authority. 



Page 2 

HHL-07(25) 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 



 

HHL-08(25) 

__.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO THE HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION ACT. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The legislature finds that Act 130, Session 1 

Laws of Hawaii 2024, increases the loan limit for direct loans 2 

provided by the department of Hawaiian home lands to seventy-3 

five per cent of the maximum single residence loan amount 4 

allowed in Hawaii by the United States Department of Housing and 5 

Urban Development's Federal Housing Administration, instead of 6 

fifty per cent, as currently outlined in section 215 of the 7 

Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended.  8 

The purpose of this Act is to confirm that Act 130, Session 9 

Laws of Hawaii 2024, shall take effect on the date of the 10 

Secretary of the Interior’s notification letter to the 11 

Congressional Committee Chairpersons that this Act meets none of 12 

the criteria in 43 CFR section 48.20. 13 

SECTION 2.  Act 130, Session Laws of Hawaii 2024, is 14 

amended by amending section 4 to read as follows: 15 

 "SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect [upon its approval 16 

with the consent of the Untied States Congress; provided that 17 

the amendments made to section 215, Hawaiian Homes Commission 18 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-08(25) 

Page 2 

Act, 1920, as amended, by this Act shall not be repealed when 1 

Act 107, Session Laws of Hawaii 2000, or Act 85, Session Laws of 2 

Hawaii 2008, take effect with the consent of the United States 3 

Congress.] on the date of the Secretary of the Interior’s 4 

notification letter to the Congressional Committee Chairpersons 5 

that this Act meets none of the criteria in 43 CFR section 6 

48.20." 7 

 SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 8 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 9 

 SECTION 4.  This State legislative amendment to Act 130, 10 

Sessions Laws of Hawaii 2024, shall take effect upon approval. 11 

 12 

INTRODUCED BY: _____________________________ 13 

BY REQUEST 14 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-08(25) 

 

 
Report Title: 
DHHL; Hawaiian Homes Commission Act 
 
Description: 
Amends section 4 of Act 130, Session Laws of Hawaii 2024, to 
confirm that the Act shall take effect on the date of the 
Secretary of the Interior’s notification letter to the 
Congressional Committee Chairpersons that this Act meets none of 
the criteria in 43 CFR section 48.20. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-08(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT: Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO THE HAWAIIAN 

HOMES COMMISSION ACT. 
 
PURPOSE: To amend section 4 of Act 130, Session Laws 

of Hawaii 2024, to confirm that the Act 
shall take effect on the date of the 
Secretary of the Interior’s notification 
letter to the Congressional Chairpersons 
that this Act meets none of the criteria in 
43 CFR section 48.20. 

 
MEANS: Amend section 4 of Act 130, Session Laws of 

Hawaii 2024. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: This bill will correct and confirm that the 

Act shall take effect on the date of the 
Secretary of the Interior’s notification 
letter to the Congressional Chairpersons 
that this Act meets none of the criteria in 
43 CFR section 48.20. 

 
Impact on the public: This bill protects the 
interest of beneficiaries of the Hawaiian 
Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended, by 
ensuring proper enactment of the noted 
amendment to Section 215 of the Hawaiian 
Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended. 

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
None. 

 
GENERAL FUND: None. 
 
OTHER FUNDS: None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM 
 DESIGNATION: HHL 625. 
 
 
OTHER AFFECTED 
 AGENCIES: None. 
 



Page 2 

HHL-08(25) 

EFFECTIVE DATE: This State legislative amendment to Act 130, 
SLH 2024 shall take effect upon approval. 



 

HHL-09(25) 

__.B. NO._____ 
 

 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The purpose of this Act is to provide follow-up 1 

funding for the next steps in the investigation, exploration, 2 

and identification of geothermal resources on Hawaiian home 3 

lands, as these resources may be used for the generation, 4 

transmission, or production of electricity and renewable energy 5 

resources, including but not limited to, hydrogen generation. 6 

Geothermal resources can provide stable power, community 7 

benefits, and an alternative to biofuels.    The appropriation of 8 

follow-up funding will allow the department of Hawaiian home 9 

lands to confirm data for previously speculated hot-spots of 10 

geothermal activity on Hawaiian home lands and gather more 11 

information for projected uses. 12 

SECTION 2.  There is appropriated out of the general 13 

revenues of the State of Hawaii the sum of $6,000,000 or so much 14 

thereof as may be necessary for fiscal year 2025-2026 to fund 15 

water well development for geophysical investigation, 16 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-09(25) 

Page 2 

exploration, and identification of geothermal resources on 1 

Hawaiian home lands. 2 

The sum appropriated shall be expended by the department of 3 

Hawaiian home lands for the purposes of this Act. 4 

SECTION 3.  This Act, upon its approval, shall take effect 5 

on July 1, 2025. 6 

 7 

INTRODUCED BY: _____________________________ 8 

BY REQUEST 9 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 

HHL-09(25) 

 

 
Report Title: 
DHHL; Hawaiian Home Lands; Geothermal Resources; Appropriation 
 
Description: 
Appropriates funds to the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands for 
the investigation, exploration, and identification of geothermal 
resources on Hawaiian Home Lands. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-09(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT: Hawaiian Home Lands  
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO THE DEPARTMENT 

OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS. 
 
PURPOSE: To provide follow-up funds for the next 

steps in the investigation, exploration, and 
identification of geothermal resources on 
Hawaiian Home Lands. 

 
MEANS: Appropriate funds. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: There is appropriated out of the general 

revenues of the State of Hawaii the sum of 
$6,000,000 or so much there of as may be 
necessary for fiscal year 2025-2026 to fund 
water well development for geophysical 
investigation, exploration, and 
identification of geothermal resources on 
Hawaiian Home Lands.  The appropriated funds 
would be used to complete Magnetotelluric 
surveys and for the drilling of slim holes 
at the respective sites. This appropriation 
request is in the form of a bill rather than 
a budget request as follow-up to the initial 
legislation of Act 205, Session Laws of 
Hawaii 2022. 

 
Impact on the public: This bill further 
protects the interest of beneficiaries of 
the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as 
amended, by providing funds for the 
investigation, exploration, and 
identification of geothermal resources on 
Hawaiian Home Lands, as these resources may 
be used for the generation, transmission, or 
production of electricity and renewable 
energy resources. 

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
This bill could allow for the Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands to generate, transmit, 
or produce electricity and renewable energy 
resources on Hawaiian Home Lands. 

 



Page 2 

HHL-09(25) 

GENERAL FUND: $6,000,000. 
 
OTHER FUNDS: None. 
 
 
PPBS PROGRAM 
 DESIGNATION: HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED 
 AGENCIES: None. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2025. 
 



  

 HHL-10(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO COUNTY USER FEES. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  Section 46-1.5, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 1 

amended by amending subsection (5) (E) to read as follows: 2 

"(5)  Each county shall have the power to: 3 

          (E)  Establish and charge user fees to create and 4 

maintain any stormwater management system or infrastructure; 5 

provided that no county shall charge against or collect user 6 

fees from the department of transportation in excess of 7 

$1,500,000 in the aggregate per year; provided further that no 8 

services shall be denied to the department of transportation by 9 

reason of nonpayment of the fees; no county shall charge or 10 

collect user fees from the department of Hawaiian home lands in 11 

excess of $100,000 in the aggregate per year; provided further 12 

that no services shall be denied to the department of Hawaiian 13 

home lands." 14 

   SECTION 2.  Section 46-1.5, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 15 

amended by amending subsection (23)(D) to read as follows:   16 

    "(23)  Each county shall have the power to: 17 

     18 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-10(25) 

Page 2 

          (D)  Collect rates for water supplied to 1 

consumers and for the use of sewers; provided that no county 2 

shall charge against or collect user fees from the department of 3 

Hawaiian home lands in excess of $100,000 in the aggregate per 4 

year; provided further that no service shall be denied to the 5 

department of Hawaiian home lands." 6 

SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 7 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 8 

SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 9 

  10 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 11 

      BY REQUEST  12 



  

 HHL-10(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
Counties; User Fees; County Powers; DHHL 
 
Description: 
Amends Chapter 46, Hawaii Revised Statutes, sections (5)(E) and 
(23)(D), to ensure exemption of the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands from county user fees, $100,000 in the aggregate per year; 
and to ensure county services to the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands for Hawaiian Home Lands. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-10(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO COUNTY USER 

FEES. 

PURPOSE: To exempt the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands from county user fees, $100,000 in 
the aggregate per year, while ensuring 
county services to the Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands for Hawaiian Home 
Lands. 

 
MEANS: Amend section 46-1.5 (5)(e) and (23)(d), 

Hawaii Revised Statutes.  
 
JUSTIFICATION: Funds saved by the Department of Hawaiian 

Home Lands due to exemption from county user 
fees, $100,000 in the aggregate per year, 
could be used for infrastructure and housing 
needs for Hawaiian Home Lands managed by the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands. 
 

 Impact on the public:  This bill advances 
the interest of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act 1920, as 
amended, by ensuring that the Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands will not be charged 
county user fees and by ensuring county 
services to the Department of Hawaiian Home 
Lands for Hawaiian Home Lands.   

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
Hawaii Counties would not receive revenue in 
the form of county user fees charged to the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands. 

  
GENERAL FUND:  None.  
 
OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: Hawaii Counties. 



Page 2 

HHL-10(25) 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 
 



  

 HHL-11(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO SEWER TRANSMISSION LINES. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  Section 46-20.1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 1 

amended by amending subsection (b)(1)(C) to read as follows: 2 

"(b)  Upon demand by the department of Hawaiian home lands, 3 

each county shall accept the license or dedication and ownership 4 

of any and all sewer transmission lines and other sewerage 5 

facilities servicing Hawaiian home lands and that are not 6 

subject to subsection (a), as may be identified by the 7 

department of Hawaiian home lands; provided that: 8 

     (1)  Any sewer lines or other sewerage facilities: 9 

          (A)  Not subject to subsection (a); 10 

          (B)  Existing before [July 7, 2014]; and 11 

          (C)  That the appropriate county determines are 12 

not in substantial compliance with environmental laws, rules, 13 

and regulations pertaining to the dedication or license of the 14 

sewers to the counties at the time of their construction, shall 15 

be brought into compliance with those laws, rules, and 16 

regulations by the department of Hawaiian home lands prior to 17 

acceptance by the county provided that all sewer transmission 18 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-11(25) 

Page 2 

lines and other sewerage facilities servicing Hawaiian home 1 

lands brought into compliance shall be accepted by a county 2 

within 60 days after the receipt by the appropriate county 3 

agency of a completed application for maintenance request; and" 4 

SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 5 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 6 

SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 7 

  8 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 9 

      BY REQUEST  10 



  

 HHL-11(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
Counties; Hawaiian Home Lands; Sewer Transmission Lines 
 
Description: 
Amends Section 46-20.1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, subsection 
(b)(1)(C), to ensure all county sewer transmission lines on 
Hawaiian Home Lands in compliance, are transferred to the 
respective county within 60 days after the receipt by the 
appropriate county agency of a completed application for 
maintenance request. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-11(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO SEWER 

TRANSMISSION LINES. 

PURPOSE: To ensure that sewer transmission lines 
on Hawaiian Home Lands that are in 
compliance, are transferred to the 
respective county  within 60 days after 
the receipt by the appropriate county 
agency of a completed application for 
maintenance request. 

 
MEANS: Amend section 46-20.1 (b)(1)(C), Hawaii 

Revised Statutes.   
 
JUSTIFICATION: Sewer transmission lines on Hawaiian Home 

Lands that are in compliance have not been 
transferred to the respective county. This 
bill will ensure that sewer transmission 
lines on Hawaiian Home Lands that are in 
compliance or brought into compliance by the 
Department of Hawaiian Home Lands, are 
transferred to the respective county  within 
60 days after the receipt by the appropriate 
county agency of a completed application for 
maintenance request.  The timeframe for 
acceptance is based upon other State 
statutes which has a deadline for county 
acceptance ref. HRS §46-15.25 and §46-20.2. 
 

 Impact on the public:  This bill advances 
the interest of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act 1920, as 
amended, by ensuring that sewer transmission 
lines on Hawaiian Home Lands in compliance 
are transferred to the respective county. 

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
The respective county of the various sewer 
transmission lines would assume 
responsibility of the management of the 
sewer transmission lines that are on 
Hawaiian Home Lands and in compliance or 



Page 2 

HHL-11(25) 

brought into compliance by the Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands. 
 

GENERAL FUND:  None.  
 
OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: Hawaii Counties. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 
 



  

 HHL-12(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO STATE BUILDING CODES. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  Section 107-26, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 1 

amended by amending subsection (1) to read as follows: 2 

"§107-26  Hawaii state building codes; prohibitions.  In 3 

adopting the Hawaii state building codes, the council shall not 4 

adopt provisions that: 5 

     (1)  [Relate to administrative, permitting, or 6 

enforcement and inspection procedures of each county; or] Delete 7 

the administrative, permitting, or enforcement and inspection 8 

requirements of the State building codes.  The administrative, 9 

permitting, or enforcement and inspection procedures of the 10 

State building codes do not apply to the counties unless 11 

specifically adopted by the county." 12 

SECTION 2.  Section 107-31, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 13 

amended to read as follows: 14 

"§107-31  State building code; compliance.  The design of 15 

all state building construction shall be in compliance with the 16 

state building code within one year of its effective date. 17 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-12(25) 

Page 2 

Compliance to the state building codes shall be equivalent to 1 

meeting county building codes." 2 

SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 3 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 4 

SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 5 

  6 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 7 

      BY REQUEST  8 



  

 HHL-12(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
State Building Codes; County Building Codes; DHHL 
 
Description: 
Amends Section 107-26(1) and 107-31, Hawaii Revised Statutes, to 
ensure that state building code compliance is equivalent  
to county building code compliance. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-12(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO STATE BUILDING 

CODES. 

PURPOSE: To ensure that state building code 
compliance is equivalent to county 
building code compliance. 

 
MEANS: Amend section 107-26(1) and 107-31, Hawaii 

Revised Statutes.   
 
JUSTIFICATION: To enable state agencies to administer the 

State building code. Current adoption of the 
State building codes has deleted the 
administrative provisions of the State 
building codes.  As currently only the 
counties administer the building codes. If a 
state agency assumes the administrative 
authority of the building codes there will 
be the need to adopt administrative 
provisions, this bill will specify that any 
administrative provisions only apply to the 
counties when specifically adopted. This 
amendment is intended to address when the 
State elects to apply for a county building 
permit for building construction which 
complies with the State building code.   
 

 Impact on the public:  This bill advances 
the interest of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act 1920, as 
amended, by ensuring that state building 
code compliance is equivalent to county 
building code compliance.   

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands would 
be able to ensure and confirm compliance 
pursuant to state building codes, as an 
equivalent to county building code 
compliance.  

  
GENERAL FUND:  None.  
 



Page 2 

HHL-12(25) 

OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: Hawaii Counties. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 



  

 HHL-13(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO STATE BUILDING CODE CLEARANCE. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  Section 281-56, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 1 

amended by adding a new subsection (9) to read as follows: 2 

"§281-56  Report by investigator.  (a)  On every 3 

application referred to the investigator under section 281-55, 4 

the investigator shall report in writing to the liquor 5 

commission and, if the application is for a license of any class 6 

other than class 8, class 9, or class 10, the report shall 7 

include: 8 

(9) If a county building and zoning code clearance is a 9 

condition for a license, a clearance from the appropriate county 10 

or state agency responsible for ensuring compliance with county 11 

or the state building codes and zoning codes setting forth that 12 

an agent of the agency has examined the portion of the building, 13 

or the building, or buildings, proposed to be used for such 14 

purposes, with a description sufficient to identify and locate 15 

the same; and that the same are in compliance with the agency’s 16 

building and zoning codes."  17 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-13(25) 

Page 2 

SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 1 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 2 

SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 3 

  4 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 5 

      BY REQUEST  6 



  

 HHL-13(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
Building Codes; Zoning Codes; Clearance; DHHL 
 
Description: 
Amends section 281-56, Hawaii Revised Statutes, to ensure that 
clearance from a state agency in responsible charge of a 
property is acceptable and equivalent to a county clearance for 
building and zoning code compliance. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-13(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO STATE BUILDING 

CODE CLEARANCE. 

PURPOSE: To ensure that clearance from a state 
agency in responsible charge of a 
property is acceptable and equivalent to 
a county clearance for building and 
zoning code compliance. 

 
MEANS: Adds subsection (9) to section 281-56, 

Hawaii Revised Statutes.  
 
JUSTIFICATION: If a county liquor commission uses a county 

clearance for building and zoning code 
compliance as one of the conditions for the 
granting of a license, this amendment 
clarifies that a clearance from a state 
agency in responsible charge of the property 
will also be acceptable. 

 
 Impact on the public:  This bill advances 

the interest of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act 1920, as 
amended, by ensuring that clearance from a 
state agency in responsible charge of a 
property is acceptable and equivalent to a 
county clearance for building and zoning 
code compliance. 

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 
The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands would 
be able to ensure state building code 
clearance for properties on Hawaiian Home 
Lands. 

  
GENERAL FUND:  None.  
 
OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED   



Page 2 

HHL-13(25) 

AGENCIES: Hawaii Counties. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 
 



  

 HHL-14(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO COUNTY LICENSES. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  Section 445-94, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 1 

amended to read as follows: 2 

"§445-94 [Clearance required.]  No person shall operate a 3 

short-term rental [lodging] or tenement house, group home, group 4 

residence, group living arrangement, hotel, or boardinghouse, 5 

until the person secures a clearance from the appropriate county 6 

or state agency responsible for ensuring compliance with county 7 

or the state building codes and zoning codes setting forth that 8 

an agent of the agency has examined the building or buildings, 9 

proposed to be used for such purposes, with a description 10 

sufficient to identify and locate the same; and that the same 11 

are in compliance with the agency’s building and zoning codes." 12 

SECTION 2.  Section 445-95, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 13 

amended to read as follows: 14 

"§445-95  Conditions for conditional operation.  The owner 15 

or operator of a short-term rental [lodging] or tenement house, 16 

group home, group residence, group living arrangement, hotel, or 17 

boardinghouse shall: 18 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-14(25) 

Page 2 

     (1)  Not permit noisy or disorderly conduct in the 1 

building or buildings; 2 

     (2)  Not allow any person engaging in acts of 3 

prostitution to reside therein or resort thereto; 4 

     (3)  Not allow intoxicating liquor or other 5 

intoxicating substance to be furnished or sold therein, except 6 

as authorized by law; 7 

     (4)  Keep the building or buildings and premises in 8 

good sanitary condition, in accordance with law and with the 9 

orders of the agent of the department of health; 10 

     (5)  At all times allow the police and agents of the 11 

state department of health and agents of the appropriate county 12 

and other state agencies responsible for compliance with the 13 

county's or state’s building and zoning codes access for 14 

purposes of inspection to enforce or administer this chapter and 15 

other applicable laws or rules; 16 

     (6)  Not allow any gaming; 17 

     (7)  If a lodging or tenement house, group home, group 18 

residence, group living arrangement, or boardinghouse, keep 19 

records identifying its tenants, lodgers, or boarders; and 20 

     (8)  Not deliver or purport to deliver health care 21 

services or treatment unless it is licensed, certified, or 22 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-14(25) 

Page 3 

contracted for by the State or other governmental agencies to do 1 

so." 2 

SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 3 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 4 

SECTION 4.  This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 5 

  6 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 7 

      BY REQUEST  8 



  

 HHL-14(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
State Agency; Building Codes; Zoning Codes 
 
Description: 
Amends Sections 94 and 95, Hawaii Revised Statues, to permit a 
state agency to provide a building and zoning code clearance for 
buildings on land under the state agency’s jurisdiction. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



HHL-14(25) 

JUSTIFICATION SHEET 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Hawaiian Home Lands 
 
TITLE: A BILL FOR AN ACT RELATING TO COUNTY 

LICENSES. 

PURPOSE: To allow a state agency to provide a 
building and zoning code clearance for 
buildings on land under the state 
agency’s jurisdiction. 

 
MEANS: Amend sections 445-94 and 445-95, Hawaii 

Revised Statutes.   
 
JUSTIFICATION: As there are State agencies which can 

exercise its authority over matters 
pertaining to building and zoning code 
compliance on building or buildings on land 
under their jurisdiction, this amendment is 
intended to permit a state agency to provide 
a “building and zoning code clearance” for 
these building or buildings. It does not 
assume nor change the designated agency 
responsible for enforcement or the granting 
of the operation of a short-term rental, or 
tenement house, group home, group residence, 
group living arrangement, hotel, or boarding 
house. Currently only the State Department 
of Health requests a building or zoning 
clearance for an operation of a group 
living, or group home for its licensing 
requirements from each of the counties. This 
amendment should not require the SDOH to be 
the agency responsible for compliance with 
the building or zoning code. 
 

 Impact on the public:  This bill advances 
the interest of beneficiaries of the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act 1920, as 
amended, by allowing a state agency to 
provide a building and zoning code clearance 
for buildings on land under the state 
agency’s jurisdiction. 

 
Impact on the department and other agencies: 



Page 2 

HHL-14(25) 

The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands would 
assume this function for lands under its 
jurisdiction freeing up those resources for 
the Department of Land and Natural Resources 
to service other agencies.  

  
GENERAL FUND:  None.  
 
OTHER FUNDS:  None. 
 
PPBS PROGRAM   
 DESIGNATION:  HHL 625. 
 
OTHER AFFECTED   
AGENCIES: State Agencies. 

 
EFFECTIVE DATE: Upon approval. 
 
 



 

 HHL-15(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 

A BILL FOR AN ACT 
 
 
RELATING TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS. 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII: 
 

SECTION 1.  The Department of Hawaiian Home Lands is an 1 

eligible borrower of Section 184A Loan Guarantees for Native 2 

Hawaiian Housing.  However, section 214(b)(8) of the Hawaiian 3 

Homes Commission Act of 1920, as amended authorizes the 4 

department to only pledge receivables of loan accounts 5 

outstanding as collateral to secure loans made by government 6 

agencies or private lending institutions to the department, the 7 

proceeds of which shall be used by the department to make new 8 

loans to lessees or to finance the development of available 9 

lands for purposes permitted by the Act.  In addition, the Act 10 

stipulates that any loan agreement entered into by the 11 

department shall include a provision that the money borrowed by 12 

the department is not secured directly or indirectly by the full 13 

faith and credit or the general credit of the State or by any 14 

revenues or taxes of the State other than the receivables 15 

specifically pledged to repay the loan. 16 



__.B. NO._____  
 
 
 

 
 
 

 HHL-15(25) 

Page 2 

The purpose of this Act is to allow the department of 1 

Hawaiian home lands to utilize the dwelling unit revolving fund 2 

as collateral when acting as an eligible borrower of a Section 3 

184A Loan Guarantee for Native Hawaiian Housing. 4 

Section 2.  Section 201H-191, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is 5 

amended by adding a new section to read as follows: 6 

"(c)  Notwithstanding the provisions in the Hawaiian Homes 7 

Commission Act of 1920, as amended, the department of Hawaiian 8 

home lands is authorized to utilize the dwelling unit revolving 9 

fund to develop residential homestead lots." 10 

SECTION 3.  Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed 11 

and stricken.  New statutory material is underscored. 12 

SECTION 4. This Act shall take effect upon its approval. 13 

  14 

 INTRODUCED BY:______________________________ 15 

      BY REQUEST  16 



 

 HHL-15(25)  

       __.B. NO._____ 
 
 
Report Title: 
Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund; Housing; DHHL 
 
Description: 
Allows the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands to utilize the 
dwelling unit revolving fund as collateral when acting as an 
eligible borrower of a Section 184A Loan Guarantee for Native 
Hawaiian Housing. 
 
 
 
 
The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is 
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.  



STATE OF HAWAI‛I 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

August 19, 2024 – August 20, 2024 

To: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

From: David Hoke, Administrator, Enforcement Unit 

Subject: For Information Only – Monthly Enforcement Unit Efforts and Statistics (July 8, 
2024 – August 11, 2024) 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: 

None.  For information only.  

DISCUSSION: 

Requests for Investigations:  

- Oahu: 10 
- Maui: 0 
- Kauai: 0 
- East Hawaii: 1 
- West Hawaii: 0 
- Molokai: 0 
- Lanai: 0 
- Office of the Chair: 1 
- LMD: 2 

Reports generated during window (to include follow-ups): 56 

Total repots generated in calendar year: 133 

Operation:  Commissioner Kaneakua ride along in East Hawaii, DHHL/HIEMA/FEMA meeting 
regarding Kauai flood event, DHHL/HIEMA contact regarding fire in Hanapepe, Kauai, 
DHHL/HIEMA/Dowling Company contact regarding fire in Waiehu Kou, Maui. 

Beneficiary Engagement: 

- Ekklesia Neighborhood Security Watch (NSW) 
- Kanehili Association and NSW 
- Kaupea Association and NSW 
- Maku’u Farmers Association 
- Keaukaha - Panaewa Farmers Association NSW 
- Community Leader/Former HHC Commissioner, Patty Teruya 



Interagency Collaboration: 

- Mitch Roth, Hawaii Island Mayor 
- State of Hawaii Attorney General Investigations 
- State of Hawaii Department of Law Enforcement 
- State of Hawaii Department of Health 
- State of Hawaii Emergency Management Agency 
- Hawaii County Department of Planning and Permitting 
- County Police (HPD – D8 Narco/Vice, Community Police, HCPD – Deputy Chief, CPT, 

CIU, KPD - CPT) 
- US Homeland Security Investigations 
- Federal Emergency Management Agency 
- Maui Family Life Center 

Pilot program update: 

- 0 new report of organized criminal activity in the various homesteads that fall into the 
area of the pilot program. 

- 9 reports have been submitted to HPD since the pilot program began on January 1, 2024, 
with 5 being unsubstantiated, 1 confirmed, and 3 pending a disposition from HPD. 

- Per crimempping.com as recommended by HPD, the following crimes were reported in 
the homesteads that fall into our pilot program but none of them appear to be organized 
criminal activity. 
 
• Kanehili – Theft 
• Kaupea – None 
• Kauluokahai – None 
• Lualualei – None 
• Maluohai – Theft 
• Nanakuli – Sex Assault, Indecent Exposure, Property Damage x 2, Theft x 2 
• Princess Kahanu Estates – Vandalism 
• Series Seven – None 
• Waianae Kai – Vandalism 
• Waianae Valley – Vandalism, Theft x 3, Fraud x 2 



















































































































DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

KAUA’I ISLAND
Project  Updates

Item E-1 For Information Only
   August 19-20, 2024

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

DHHL – USDA RD
Anahola Farm Lots Water System Improvements

46 Farm Lots

31 Bayview 
Residence Lots

Anahola Farm Ph 1

Anahola Farm Ph 2



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

DHHL Contribution and Funds Awarded by USDA RD

Accepted by HHC, Nov. 2018
USDA RD 2016 FUNDING PACKAGE:
DHHL CONTRIBUTION  $3,770,723
USDA RD GRANT   $3,055,137
    SUBTOTAL $6,825,860
USDA RD 2018 FUNDING PACKAGE:
USDA RD LOAN    $4,100,000
USDA RD GRANT   $1,999,946
    SUBTOTAL $6,099,946

GRAND TOTAL DHHL/USDA   $12,955,806

Grant Reimbursement to date:  $3,776,358 



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Anahola Farm Lots Water System Improvements

    Phase 1:  
  Kaiwa Construction: $3,377,709

• Replacement of transmission and distribution lines
• Improvement of pressure in mauka and makai lots
• Install smart meters, new backflow preventers
• Upgrades to fire protection; new hydrants

  Construction commencement:  Feb. 2020
  Substantial Completion: July 2021
  Expenditure to Date:                 $3,182,164



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Anahola Farm Lots Water System Improvements

    Phase 2:  
  Kiewit Infrastructure West Co.: $ 7,145,786

• Construct 100,000 gallon temporary steel bolted water tank
• Demolish 500,000 gallon steel water tank
• Install new 440,000 gallon concrete water tank
• Construct pump station upgrades and install new submersible pump 
• Construct new upper level distribution line and booster pump to 

increase pressure near tank

  Construction commencement: December 2020
  General Completion Phase 2: August 2024
  Expenditure to date:        $ 7,390,825



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Anahola Farm Lots Water System



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Removed 
Field #1 
Keālia 

Reservoir

Unregulated 
Field #3 
Keālia 

Reservoir 

Removed 
Lower 

Anahola 
Reservoir

Removed 
Upper 

Anahola 
Reservoir

Anahola Dam & Reservoir Improvements

Removed 
Field #2 
Keālia 

Reservoir

• Act 122, SLH 2014 $3.0 Million Appropriation for Dam and Reservoir Improvements
• New design engineer procured in early 2019
• Removal of Keālia Field #2 and Lower Anahola completed Nov. 2020



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Removed 
Field #1 
Keālia 

Reservoir

Unregulated 
Field #3 
Keālia 

Reservoir 

Removed 
Lower 

Anahola 
Reservoir

Removed 
Upper 

Anahola 
Reservoir

Assessment of Dams for Anahola Kuleana Lot Settlement Plan

Removed 
Field #2 
Keālia 

Reservoir

• Draft EA published May 2020; Final EA published June 2021
• Assessed Keālia Field #1 for non-potable; however not feasible

Kuleana Lot Area
Settlement Area



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Removed 
Field #1 
Keālia 

Reservoir

Unregulated 
Field #3 
Keālia 

Reservoir 

Removed 
Lower 

Anahola 
Reservoir

Removed 
Upper 

Anahola 
Reservoir

Anahola Dam & Reservoir Improvements

Removed 
Field #2 
Keālia 

Reservoir

• Based on recent dam assessment a redesign for removal of Keālia Field #1 and Upper 
Anahola dams undertaken due to high cost of improvement, no current water source to 
fill reservoirs, and  significant potential liability to maintain a regulated dam.

• Currently, demolition design review by DLNR in process.
• Additional construction funding required to demolish Field #1 and Upper Anahola dams.
• Hawaiian Homes Commission approved Trust Funds in FY24 budget for additional 

construction funding, subject to negotiation.
• Construction scheduled by early 2024, with a six-month construction duration.



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Anahola Kuleana Lot Settlement

• Boundary Survey Conducted Summer 2023
• Roadway & Drainage Master Plan anticipated Late 2023
• Preliminary Lot Layout Including Lot Descriptions and Metes & 

Bounds anticipated Early 2024



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Pi’ilani Mai Ke Kai



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Lot Assessment, Preparation for Award  & Offerings in Progress

Pi’ilani Mai Ke Kai  Total 171 Undivided Interest Leases

Phase 1
(80 Lots)

Phase 2 
(51 Lots) 

Phase 3 (40 lots)
Procurement of Design Engineer to provide plans and 
specifications for new lots in FY25.  

• HUD ERR completed.
• No wetlands permitting 

required from U.S. Army 
Corp of Engineers for 
Phase 2.

• 51 vacant lots offered in 
2022.

• To date, 29 residential lots 
awarded. 

70 lots for occupied/under 
construction
10 lots in loan/construction        
process



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Kaua’i Cesspool Assessment
Act 132, SLH 2018 requires upgrade, conversion, or sewer connection of all cesspools by 2050, unless exempted.  
DHHL is implementing ground truthing cesspool inventory data statewide.  

Project Description
Identification and survey of DHHL lots with cesspools and their subsequent conversion on the island of Kaua‘i.

Project Objectives
1. Build an accurate database of existing cesspools.
2. Create baseline engineering drawings for cesspool evaluation.
3. Assess existing conditions for conversion of cesspools to comply with Act 125 (SLH 2017) by 2050.
4. Evaluate existing infrastructure and make recommendations for possible cesspool conversions.

Summary
• Current records indicate 257 cesspools on DHHL Lands the island of Kaua‘i.
• Ground and aerial survey commenced in November 2022 and was completed February 2023.
• Final Report due by end of 2024.



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Prioritization Areas

• Replace poor performing and compromised systems as 
quickly as possible to eliminate ongoing impacts to human 
health and the environment;

• Replace systems that pose an increased threat due to 
factors such as age, propensity for flooding, and sea level 
rise; 

• Avoid the bottleneck of resources and qualified contractors 
that is expected as the statutory deadline approaches; 

• Be prepared in the event that an accelerated timeline is 
ultimately implemented; and

• Allow for DHHL to manage its financial burden by spreading 
costs over a longer period.

• House Bill 181, which would have accelerated the Act 125 
timeline, did not pass during the 2022 legislative session.

Though not codified into law, the Cesspool Conversion Working Group (CCWG) recommended that Priority 1 cesspool 
conversions be completed by 2030.  HEG concurs that the conversion process should be accelerated in order to:

Anahola

Kekaha



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Anahola & Kekaha IWS Quantities
Homestead Pre-Survey DHHL Data Current Survey Results

Kekaha

Septic System -- 58

Cesspool 57 45

Not Accessed -- 16

No IWS or Structure -- 0

Anahola AG

Septic System -- 16

Cesspool 35 45

Not Accessed -- 14

No IWS or Structure -- 5

Anahola Res

Septic System -- 139

Cesspool 280 167

Not Accessed -- 58

No IWS or Structure -- 8

TOTALS

Septic System -- 213

Cesspool 372 257

Not Accessed -- 88

No IWS or Structure -- 13

-- Data not available. DHHL data collected prior to the current assessment targeted only the
quantity of cesspools, so septic system quantities were not included.
*IWS – Individual Wastewater System



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Kekaha Cesspool Lots

57 Cesspools
Legend

•  Cesspool

Feature #

Septic 58

Cesspool 61

Existing DOH/DHHL Data Field Verified Data

*Cesspools on map not indicative of existing cesspool count data
*Lots not accessed are assumed as cesspool

Legend

Empty Lot

Lot with Cesspool

Lot with Septic



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Anahola Cesspool Lots

215 Cesspools
Legend

•  Cesspool

Feature #

Septic 155

Cesspool 284

Existing DHHL Data Field Verified Data

Legend

Empty Lot

Lot with Cesspool

Lot with Septic
*Anahola Res lots existing cesspools not shown on map

*Lots not accessed are assumed as cesspool

*Cesspools on map not indicative of existing cesspool count data



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Phase 1: Expansion of the existing 
47 homestead lots from 5,000 to 

7,500 square feet

Phase 2: 82 new residential lots

Construction cost:
$17,800,126    

Legislative Appropriation 
(SLH 2022, Act 279)

Construction schedule:
September 2023 – December 2024

Phase 1: 
Consolidation and 
resubdivision of 47 
occupied residential 
homestead lots, 
currently underway

Phase 2  New Homestead Lots

Hanapēpē Masterplan & Environmental Assessment

Phase 2: 
Groundbreaking August 23, 2023



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Hanapēpē Residential Phase 2

CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

PHASE 1 CONSOLIDATION AND RESUBDIVISION
 ADD APPROXIMATELY 1,500 SQUARE FEET

PHASE 1: CONSOLIDATION AND RESUBDIVISION TO 
      ADD APPROXIMATELY 1,500 SQUARE FEET TO 
      EXISTING LOTS

PHASE 2: SUBDIVISION OF 82 NEW RESIDENTIAL LOTS
       LOT SIZE: MINIMUM 7,500 SQUARE FEET
       
GROUNDBREAKING CEREMONY ON AUGUST 23, 2023

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS:  COUNTY STD. ROADWAY, 
POTABLE WATER, SEWER, STORMWATER DRAINAGE, 
UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL/TELECOMMUNICATIONS



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Līhu’e (Grove Farm Isenberg Parcel)

• $20,684,160 acquisition of
~295 acres in Līhuʻe, Kauaʻi.
Located near Isenberg Park, it
is about ½ a mile from Wilcox
Medical Center, one mile to the
county seat of government,
downtown Līhuʻe and Wilcox
Elementary School, and two
miles to Līhuʻe Airport.

• Future funding will allow
development of up to 1,000
single family homesteads and 
about 200 subsistence 
agriculture lots.



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Waipouli

• Tenant Meeting: Held the initial meeting on August 7, 2024, 
to outline the relocation process and address concerns.

• Consultations: Completed one-on-one meetings with over 
50% of tenants by August 14, 2024, for personalized needs 
assessment.

• Information Packets: Distributed detailed packets to all 
tenants covering rights, relocation assistance, and timelines.

• Communication Channels: Established a dedicated email 
and hotline for tenant inquiries.

• Relocation Assessment: Began evaluating individual tenant 
needs, including housing preferences and special 
requirements.



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Mahalo

www.dhhl.hawaii.gov

























































































































































































































































August 2024 

2 
  Item No. F-4 

A timeline for completion of the project and Project Team (see Exhibit "B”) 
3 years right-of-entry permit for due diligence and permit (2025-2028)  
1 year construction period (2029) 
25 years of commercial operation (2029-2054) 
 
A description of a financial plan for project financing 
HL&P and its financial partner, Lotus Infrastructure Global Operations, LLC (Lotus) would 
jointly develop, construct, own and operate the project. Lotus is a private equity investment 
firm based in Greenwich, Connecticut that specialized in energy infrastructure investments. 
 
A description of the conceptual design of the project 
The HL&P project would consist of the following on-site components, integrated into 
renewable energy power generation facility, and interconnected to the HECO electric grid on 
the island of Hawaii: 
 
1. Firm, dispatchable thermal generation from either one (1) 30MW generation operating on 

biofuel or two (2) 30 MW generators for a total 60 MW operating on liquid fuel. 
2. On site liquid biofuel storage facilities capable of providing up to 14-day supply of fuel to 

generators. 
3. Battery Energy Storage System (BESS} co-located on the premises with the generators. 
4. High-Voltage Electrical Interconnection Facilities. 
5. Maintenance and Office Facilities. 
 
The entire 12.75-acre parcel is expected to be utilized to accommodate generations biofuel 
storage, BESS, and on-site interconnection facilities. The project would be secured by fencing 
and appropriate lighting and would incorporate landscaping features along the project site 
fronting Railroad Avenue. 

All equipment would be designed with safety, redundancy, and resiliency as top priority. 
HELCO has major electrical facility directly across from the proposed project site and it likely 
the interconnection will be with existing HELCO facility at this location. 
 
A description of the business concept for the project 
HECO announced that it intends to issue the Integrated Grid Plan-Requests For Proposal (IGP-
RFP) on August 16, 2024 and for the island of Hawaii it intends to acquire 134 GWh of energy 
storage and 60 MW of Firm Capacity. If selected, HL&P would negotiate two separate power 
purchase agreements. These would provide the revenue mechanism during the commercial 
operation period and a source of compensation to DHHL. The term of the operational period is 
expected to range from 20-30 years. 
 
A description of landscape and acreage requirements including public and private lands 
The proposed site identified is a 12.75-acre parcel of Hawaiian home land located in Waiakea, 
South Hilo, Island of Hawaii. The property fronts Railroad Avenue and is located directly across 
from HELCO facilities. The land is currently vacant and not improved. State Land Use 
Classification is Urban, County of Hawaii Zoning is General Industrial District (MG-1a), and 
power generation, storage and electrical substation are permitted uses. 
 



August 2024 

3 
  Item No. F-4 

This parcel of land is designated as Industrial use on DHHL Hawaii Island Plan as well as in the 
Panaewa/Waiakea Regional Plan. 
 
Proposed timeline for Beneficiary Consultation and Public Hearings 

August 2024 HHC Informational Meeting 
September 2024 Beneficiary Consultation to be held in Hilo 
October 2024 Report to HHC on Beneficiary Consultation 
November 2024  Two Public Hearings in Hilo with the HHC and Approval for ROE & GL 
January 2024 Issuance of ROE Permit 

 
Within the 3-year Right-of-Entry permit period HL&P would develop and finalized the design 
of the project (including environmental and archeological studies}, secure project financing, 
negotiate a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA} with HECO, secure environmental permits, and 
seek approval of the PPA by the Hawaii Public Utilities Commission (PUC}. 
Once PUC approves the PPA, the HL&P would enter into a up to 30-year general lease term and 
commence final engineering, permitting and construction activities. It is anticipated construction 
would be completed within 2 years of PUC approval with commercial operation to commence 
thereafter. 
 
Proposed Compensation to DHHL 
HL&P would compensate DHHL is two ways: (1) Lease rent during the periods of Right- of-Entry 
Permit and General Lease term equivalent to that DHHL is receiving from other renewables energy 
projects on Hawaii Island and (2) Community benefit payments, including contribution to existing 
DHHL programs, job training and internships, scholarships, and/or improvements to community 
infrastructures. Both will be subject to further discussion and negotiations. 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended §204 (a)(2), states in part, “In the 
management of any retained available lands not required for leasing under section 207(a), the 
department may dispose of those lands or any improvements thereon to the public, including native 
Hawaiians, on the same terms, conditions, restrictions, and uses applicable to the disposition of 
public lands in chapter 171, Hawaii Revised Statutes; provided that the department may not sell 
or dispose of such lands in fee simple…” 
 
Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended, §171-95 (a)(2), states in part, “Lease to the governments, 
agencies, public utilities, and renewable energy producers public lands for terms up to, but not in 
excess of, sixty-five years at such rental and on such other terms and conditions as the board may 
determine;” 
(c)  For the purposes of this section, "renewable energy producer" means: 
     (1)  Any producer or developer of electrical or thermal energy produced by wind, solar energy, 
hydropower, geothermal resources, landfill gas, waste-to-energy, ocean thermal energy 
conversion, cold seawater, wave energy, biomass, including municipal solid waste, biofuels or 
fuels derived from organic sources, hydrogen fuels derived primarily from renewable energy, or 
fuel cells where the fuel is derived primarily from renewable sources that sell all of the net power 
produced from the demised premises to an electric utility company regulated under chapter 269 or 



August 2024 

4 
  Item No. F-4 

that sells all of the thermal energy it produces to customers of district cooling systems; provided 
that up to twenty-five per cent of the power produced by a renewable energy producer and sold to 
the utility or to district cooling system customers may be derived from fossil fuels. 
 
HRS [§171-95.3]  Renewable energy producers; lease of public lands without public auction, 
as amended, states in part:  (a)  The board may lease or renew a lease of public lands to renewable 
energy producers, as defined in section 171-95, without public auction only pursuant to a public 
process that includes public notice under section 1-28.5 providing other interested renewable 
energy producers opportunity to participate in the process; provided that nothing in this section 
shall be construed to prevent the board from conducting direct negotiations; provided further that 
the renewable energy producer shall be required to submit as part of the proposal for the board's 
evaluation, as assisted by the department of business, economic development, and tourism, the 
following: 
     (1)  A timeline for completion of the project; 
     (2)  A description of a financial plan for project financing; 
     (3)  A description of the conceptual design of the project; 
     (4)  A description of the business concept for the project; and 
     (5)  A description of landscape and acreage requirements including public and private lands. 
Upon completion of the board's evaluation and determination to award or not award a lease to a 
renewable energy producer, the board shall prepare a report outlining the reasons for the decision. 
 
(c)  To inform the public prior to the lease of public land or the renewal of a lease of public land 
for a proposed renewable energy project under this section, the department of land and natural 
resources shall conduct not less than two public hearings on the island where the public land to be 
leased for the proposed renewable energy project is located; provided that the notice of the hearing 
shall be published as provided in section 1-28.5.  The board shall prepare and distribute an outline 
of the proposals for the renewable energy project and receive testimony from interested parties 
and the general public at each public hearing. 
 
(d)  Any action taken by the board upon a proposal subject to this section shall take place on the 
island where the public land to be leased for the proposed renewable energy project is located. 
 
DHHL Ho’omaluo Energy Policy (See Exhibit “C”) 
Objective 2 Ko’o: Facilitate the use of diverse renewable energy resources requires the department 
to identify properties in DHHL’s land inventory that have potential for renewable projects and 
pursue the leasing of lands that are identified as suitable for renewable energy project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



August 2024 

5 
  Item No. F-4 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 



August 2024 

6 
  Item No. F-4 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 



August 2024 

7 
  Item No. F-4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 





                  - 1 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

STATE OF HAWAI‘I 
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

 
August 19-20, 2024 

 
 
To:  Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 
 
Thru: Andrew H. Choy, Planning Program Manager 
 
From: Nancy M. McPherson, Planner 
 
Subject: For Information Only – Status Update on Plan 

Implementation, Island of Kaua‘i 
 
Recommended Action 
 
 For information only. No action required. 
 
Background 
 

By request of the Chairman, the Planning Office provides the 
Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) with a status report on previously 
approved policies and/or plans that affect lands and homestead 
communities located where the HHC conducts its monthly community 
meetings. For August 2024, the Planning Office is providing an 
update on implementation of various plans and programs for the 
island of Kaua‘i. The last Kaua‘i Island update was provided to 
the HHC in August of 2023 (Item G-1). 
 
Discussion 
 
EXISTING PLANS & IMPLEMENTATION STATUS 
 
Kaua‘i Island Plan (2004)  
 

The purpose of each DHHL Island Plan is to: 
 
(1) Provide a comprehensive resource for planning and land 

management purposes, including identification of land use 
goals and objectives of the General Plan specific to each 
island, 

(2) Identify island-wide needs, opportunities, and 
priorities, and 

(3) Assign land use designations (LUD’s) for all land 
holdings to promote orderly land use and efficient 
development of infrastructure systems.  



                  - 2 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

The Kaua‘i Island Plan (KIP) was adopted by the HHC in 2004.  
The KIP defined seven planning areas – Waimea, Kekaha, Hanapēpē, 
Wailua, Kapa‘a, Anahola/Kamalomalo‘o, and Moloa‘a. See Fig. 1 and 
Table 1, below, for locations and land areas by use types. 

 

  Fig. 1 Hawaiian Home Lands on Kaua‘i 
 

         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 1 Kaua‘i Island Acreage by Land Use Designation1  
 

 
1 Per Kaua‘i Island Plan 2004 – does not reflect subsequent LUD amendments 



                  - 3 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

Kaua‘i Island Plan Residential Development Priorities and 
Implementation Status  
(for more detailed information, refer to Land Development 
Division’s Item E-1, “Kaua‘i Island Project Updates” and the 
Planning Office’s Item G-2, “Kaua‘i Water Projects Update”) 
  

1. Residential Lots in Wailua (231 lots – to be revised during 
Master Plan and Environmental Assessment process) 
• Off-site water wells and storage facilities and on-site 

roads and water and sewer transmission lines are required. 
Status: DHHL's Wailua Well #1 is now capped and cased and 
can be put into production as DHHL moves forward with 
homestead planning and development. This well will be the 
primary source of potable water for subsistence 
agricultural and residential homestead lots on DHHL's 526 
acres of land in Wailua.  

• Wailua Master Plan and Environmental Assessment has been 
funded for Fiscal Year 2024. Status: The Master Planning 
and environmental review process has been initiated. G70 
in under contract to perform the following: 
 
- Conduct technical studies to identify the constraints 

and opportunities to provide housing and homesteading 
opportunities on DHHL’s approximate 526 acres in Wailua, 
Kaua‘i 

- Provide ample opportunity for DHHL beneficiary input 
during the master planning process to inform plan 
recommendations 

- Develop homestead lot layout configurations for 
beneficiary consideration and feedback and determine an 
approximate number of new homestead lots that will be 
provided to beneficiaries on DHHL’s waiting list   

- Coordinate with Kaua‘i County on infrastructure that 
will service the new homestead community 

- Prepare an Environmental Assessment document in 
accordance with HRS Chapter 343 

- Prepare initial archaeological studies to comply with 
HRS Chapter 6E   

 
Infrastructure needs, issues and opportunities will be 
discussed with other State agencies and County of Kaua‘i 
during the planning process. In addition to water storage 
and transmission, coordination topics are likely to include 
relocation and expansion of the Wailua wastewater treatment 
plant, Kūhiō Highway intersection improvements, transit-
oriented development (TOD) opportunities, a potential 



                  - 4 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

bypass road, and surface water and topographic changes 
needed to mitigate drainage and flooding issues.   

 
2. Hanapēpē (Phase 1: 47 lots, Phase 2: 82 lots, Phase 3: 

approx. 477 lots) 
• Phase 1 (47 Residential lots) was completed in 1995 without 

major off-site infrastructure costs. Existing Phase 1 lots 
have recently been consolidated and re-subdivided to add 
an average of 1,500 square feet of land area to the backs 
of the lots, as requested by the Phase 1 lessees during 
the Phase 2 master planning process. 

• Phase 2 (82 Residential lots): Phasing of development was 
revised during the Hanapēpē Homestead Master Plan and 
Environmental Assessment process. Phase 2 will have access 
to existing County infrastructure capacity (water and 
wastewater) and will connect to Moi Road through existing 
access points.   
Status: Phase 2 final subdivision approval from County of 
Kaua‘i is in progress. Subdivision improvements are 
anticipated to begin in the first half of 2025. See Item 
E-1, “Kaua‘i Island Project Updates” for more information.   

• Phase 3 (to be broken up into smaller phases) will consist 
of up to 477 homestead lots: 366 Residential lots (max. 
7500 sq. ft.) and 111 Subsistence Agriculture lots (max. 
three acres). Non-homesteading uses include 13 acres for 
Commercial Use, 26 acres for Community Use, and 33 acres 
in Special District. Development of Phase 3 will require 
additional water and sewer capacity and off-site 
improvements such as drainage and traffic mitigation 
measures on Kaumuali‘i Highway. Investigation of surface 
water resources for subsistence agriculture will also be 
explored.      

 
3. Residential Lots in Anahola/Kamalomalo‘o (rev. to 171 lots) 

• This area is prioritized because there are larger tracts 
of undeveloped land that can be served by existing wells, 
but a sewage treatment plant may be needed.  
Status: Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai homestead subdivision is master 
planned for three phases and development is underway. See 
Item E-1, “Kaua‘i Island Project Updates” for more detailed 
information.  

 
Kaua’i Island Plan – Amendments and Updates 

 
Since the Kaua‘i Island Plan (KIP) was adopted in May 2004, 

the Hawaiian Homes Commission has approved four Land Use Amendments 
and two Kuleana Homestead Settlement Plans: 



                  - 5 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

• October 2020: Amended the Hanapēpē Land Use Plan (Fig. 5.2 
in KIP) to reflect the land use designations approved for 
the Hanapēpē Homestead Community Master Plan. 

• July 2020: Amended the Waimea Land Use Plan (Fig. 3.2 in 
KIP) to reflect the land use designations approved for the 
Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Kuleana Homestead Settlement Plan.  

• May 2021: Amended the Anahola Land Use Plan (Fig. 8.2 in 
KIP) to reflect the land use designations approved for the 
Anahola Kuleana Homestead Settlement Plan. 

• March 2023: Amended the Anahola Land Use Plan (Fig. 8.2 in 
KIP) to adjust the location of 10 acres of the Community 
Use area further makai in the Pi‘ilani Mai Ke Kai 
residential homestead subdivision.     

 
The KIP Land Use Amendments resulted in various increases and 

decreases in acreages for the Land Use Plans, which is common when 
refining land use analysis during the Master Plan or Development 
Plan phase. See Table 2, KIP Land Use Amendments Summary, below. 
 
LUD Hanapēpē 

Phase 2/3 
Waimea(Pu‘u 
‘Ōpae KHSP) 

Anahola 
(KHSP) 

Anahola 
(KKOA) 

Subsistence Agriculture -1 +387 -4 -- 
Residential Homestead -42 -709 -- N/C 
Pastoral Homestead  -- +110 -8 -- 
Supp. Agriculture -- +63 -- -- 
Community Use +4 +152 +28 N/C 
General Agriculture -- -184 -- -- 
Commercial -4 -- -- -- 
Special District +33 +181 -16 -- 
Conservation +8 -- -- -- 
Table 2, KIP Land Use Amendments Summary -- Acreage Changes 
 
Kaua‘i Regional Plans - Implementation Status 
  

Kaua‘i has three Regional Plans, for Wailua (2009), Anahola 
(Kamalomalo‘o, Anahola, Moloa‘a, 2022), and West Kaua‘i (2011). 
The Anahola Regional Plan was updated in 2021-2022 and the Final 
Plan was approved by the HHC in December 2022. Table 3, “Kaua‘i 
Regional Plans Implementation Status” below, lists Priority 
Projects for all Kaua‘i Regional Plans and reports on the current 
status of each project. 
 



                  - 6 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

Regional Plan Priority Project Description Current Status 
Wailua (2009) Cultural 

Resources 
Inventory - Malae 
Heiau 
Restoration 
Project, Wailua 
River State Park 

State-owned land to south & 
west of Malae Heiau 
conveyed to DHHL in 1994. 
ACTION: Establish 
procedures, forms, electronic 
forms & databases necessary 
to inventory, document, map 
& catalog cultural resources 
located on DHHL’s Wailua 
lands. 

No change - project lacks a 
champion. DLNR and a 
nonprofit have recently cleared 
the heiau of overgrowth, but 
ongoing maintenance is needed. 
KIP identifies cultural buffer on 
DHHL lands along Wailua River 
via Special District, but Wailua 
Regional Plan shows a different 
land use configuration. Further 
discussions on protection & 
management of cultural sites 
will occur during Wailua Master 
Plan & EA process. 

Wailua (2009) Potable Water 
Sources 
(Refer to Item G-
2, Kaua‘i Water 
Projects Update, 
for more info)  

Water Master Plan for 
proposed DHHL Wailua 
subdivision completed in 
January 2009. Source, 
storage and transmission 
lines needed to support 
development. ACTION: 
Secure funding for design, 
drilling, casing, outfitting & 
testing of two new potable 
well sources. Second well is 
needed as backup source. 

DHHL's Wailua Well #1 is now 
capped & cased, to be put into 
production when DHHL 
completes Master Plan and 
moves ahead with 
development. DHHL/DLNR/ 
State may need to secure land 
in Kālepa Forest Reserve for 
proposed 330’ elev. 0.5 MG tank 
site. Further discussions will 
occur during the Wailua Master 
Plan & EA process.  

Wailua (2009) Kalepa Ridge 
Surface Water 
System 
Maintenance  

DHHL identifying 
opportunities to utilize 
surface water resource for 
agricultural uses for 
proposed Wailua homestead 
development. Community 
has expressed interest in 
creating agricultural lots to 
feed their families. 

Staff will coordinate with 
Agribusiness Development 
Corporation (ADC) & 
Commission on Water Resource 
Management (CWRM) on 
potential allocation & use of 
surface water in the region 
during the Wailua Master Plan 
& EA process.  

Wailua (2009) Kapa‘a Relief 
Route 

State Department of 
Transportation's (SDOT) #1 
priority on Kaua‘i was Kapa‘a 
Relief Route; considered four 
alternative alignments 
through or abutting DHHL’s 
Wailua lands. 

Staff will coordinate with 
County of Kaua‘i & State DOT’s 
on transportation, road 
alignment and highway safety 
alternatives for the area during 
the Wailua Master Plan & EA 
process. 



                  - 7 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

Regional Plan Priority Project Description Current Status 
Wailua (2009) Wailua 

Wastewater 
Treatment Plant 
(WWTP) Facility 

Wailua WWTP requires 
expansion & relocation due 
to projected sea level rise 
and as a function of 
long-term wastewater 
treatment capacity needs for 
Wailua-Kapa‘a area. 

Staff will coordinate and hold 
discussions with County of 
Kaua‘i re: potential relocation & 
expansion of WWTP during the 
Wailua Master Plan & EA 
process. 

Anahola (2022) Surface Water 
Resources 
Management 
(non-potable) 
(Refer to Item G-
2, Kaua‘i Water 
Projects Update 
and Item E-1, 
Kaua‘i Island 
Project Updates, 
for more info) 

Investigate water resources 
mauka & explore watershed 
development & stream flow 
restoration projects to 
secure homestead water 
rights. This project seeks 
funding for an “Anahola 
Surface Water Resources 
Management Plan” to be 
approved by the HHC & 
implemented by DHHL. 

Surface water resources were 
re-evaluated & a study & 
recommendations prepared as 
an outcome of the Anahola 
Kuleana Homestead Settlement 
Plan process. Additional 
funding & partners will be 
needed to develop Management 
Plan & implement 
recommendations. Additional 
research & engineering will be 
needed to restore surface water 
flow & dam and ditch systems. 

Anahola (2022) Hō‘ākeolapono 
Trades Academy 
and Institute: 
Home Building 
Resources Center 

Develop a home building 
cooperative & resource 
center in conjunction with 
Ho‘akeolapono Trades 
Academy & Institute that 
brings together education, 
building materials, 
equipment, & skilled labor 
resources to provide 
affordable home building, 
repair & maintenance to the 
Anahola community while 
offering trade & vocational 
skills to area high school 
students & young adults.  

Resources are being identified 
to initiate implementation 
action steps. DHHL & project 
champion have identified a 
new location that is more 
suitable for the proposed uses. 
Campus & resource center will 
be located within a parcel that 
was omitted from land use 
designation, so a KIP LUA will 
be needed. Project proponents 
will also need to prepare a 
Master Plan & Environmental 
Assessment.  

Anahola (2022) Makai 
Management 
Plan 

Develop a plan to manage 
shoreline resources & access 
to DHHL’s coastal lands in 
Anahola; provide guidance 
on activities & actions led by 
beneficiary organizations, 
community partners & DHHL 
to manage & maintain 
shoreline resources, 
facilitate safe use of & access 
to these makai lands, remove 
trash & abandoned vehicles, 
& clear out other illegal 
activities. 

Funded in FY24. A consultant 
has been procured by ‘Āina 
Alliance, which holds a ROE to 
provide security & cleanup 
activities south of Anahola Bay; 
Kahu O Ka Pāka Kahakai O 
Anahola holds a ROE to provide 
stewardship, native plant 
restoration & cleanup activities 
in Anahola Beach Park areas 
not under license to County of 
Kaua‘i.   



                  - 8 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

Regional Plan Priority Project Description Current Status 
Anahola (2022) Anahola Place-

Based Education 
Network 

Create a network or 
community of practice made 
up of groups & organizations 
supporting ‘āina- & place-
based education in Anahola 
in order to provide a space 
for collaboration & sharing 
of knowledge, resources, & 
information & to build the 
capacity & outreach of all 
partners involved. 

Partnership between Kukulu 
Kumuhana O Anahola (KKOA) 
and Kanu I Ka Pono Public 
Charter School offers learning 
spaces for Hawaiian cultural, 
place-based learning & program 
is growing. Additional staff & 
resources are being secured & 
more partners offering other 
community-based programs 
serving Anahola youth, such as 
the Ko‘olau Limu Project, are 
being engaged. DHHL’s Land 
Management Division is 
supporting issuance of a long-
term license for the Limu 
Project - see Item F-1. 

Anahola (2022) Mauka Farm Lot 
Plan (DHHL-led 
project) (Refer to 
Item E-1, Kaua‘i 
Island Project 
Updates, for more 
info) 

Create Kuleana Homestead 
lots & issue subsistence 
agriculture & pastoral 
awards. Community will 
work with DHHL to ensure 
housing & infrastructure 
alternatives are available to 
lessees. 

Engineering consultant 
delineating metes & bounds for 
kuleana lots & designing 
roadway & drainage network. 
Beneficiaries are pursuing 
opportunities to provide 
support services to DHHL & 
beneficiaries to ensure 
successful Settlement Plan 
implementation.  

W. Kaua'i 
(2011) 

Develop 
Agricultural & 
Water Plan (Pu‘u 
‘Ōpae) 
(Refer to Item G-
2, Kaua‘i Water 
Issues and Item    
E-1, Kaua‘i Island 
Project Updates, 
for more info) 

Three-part project to 
integrate ag uses and water 
availability via: 1) land 
exchange of mauka hunting 
lands for DLNR lands at a 
lower elevation that are 
better suited for 
homesteading; 2) restoration 
of Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Reservoir & 
irrigation system; 
agricultural lease master 
plan; evaluation of increased 
water diversion from Pu‘u 
Moe Divide; diversified ag 
projects;   
3) maintenance / 
improvement & continued 
use of existing West Kaua‘i 
Water System.  

HHC issued Kekaha Hawaiian 
Homestead Association (KHHA) 
a 20-year license for 231 acres 
of land at Pu‘u ‘Ōpae to 
implement Phase I of KKHA’s 
Farm & Irrigation Plan (FIP). 
Kuleana Homestead Lot 
Settlement Plan & FEA/FONSI 
completed in August 2020 for 
1,192 acres of Waimea lands; 
coordinates planning, design, & 
implementation of land uses & 
homestead lot development 
around & adjacent to Pu‘u 
‘Ōpae. Coordination w/KIUC on 
WKEP & infrastructure 
improvements is ongoing.  



                  - 9 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

Regional Plan Priority Project Description Current Status 
W. Kaua'i 
(2011) 

Develop a Multi-
Purpose 
Evacuation & 
Education 
Center/ Shelter 

This multi-purpose facility 
would serve as a culture & 
education center when not in 
use as a disaster shelter. The 
need for a hurricane shelter 
as well as tsunami 
evacuation site was 
identified. Envisioned to be 
consistent with Mauka 
Village homesteading 
concept. 

Need for Community Resilience 
Plan for West Kaua‘i identified. 
Location identified in KIP & RP 
is in “Mauka Village” 
community use area off Koke‘e 
Rd. The Planning Office is 
working with multiple 
interested beneficiary 
organizations to coordinate on 
a project proposal & location 
that is consistent with the 
Island & Regional Plans. 

W. Kaua'i 
(2011) 

Support 
Development of 
the Kekaha 
Enterprise Center 

Kauai Community College & 
Council for Native Hawaiian 
Advancement developed a 
2,000 square foot single 
story facility on 2.629 acres 
used to provide social & 
community services to 
beneficiaries living in 
Kekaha. 

COMPLETED. Facility managed 
by the West Kaua‘i Hawaiian 
Homestead Association 
(WKHHA). 

W. Kaua'i 
(2011) 

Develop 
Renewable 
Energy Projects 
Compatible with 
Agriculture 

Community indicated a 
willingness to support 
renewable energy projects 
that meet the goal of 
compatibility with 
agriculture. 

DHHL is reevaluating options 
for renewable energy projects 
in West Kaua‘i due to the hiatus 
of the West Kaua’i Energy 
Project (WKEP) hydroelectric 
project.  

W. Kaua'i 
(2011) 

Develop 
Agricultural Uses 
for Hanapēpē 
Farm Lots/Lease 
Areas 

Existing residential lots in 
Hanapēpē are too narrow & 
feel crowded. Residents have 
expressed a desire to use 
area behind their lots for 
agricultural, recreational or 
open space uses. 

Hanapēpē Homestead 
Community Master Plan & EA 
approved for 349 acres of lands 
adjacent to existing Hanapepe 
Residential Homesteads 
(“Phase 1”). Final subdivision 
approval for Phase 2 (82 
residential lots), including 
relocating drainage & enlarging 
Phase 1 lots, is underway. Phase 
3 will provide areas for 
agricultural, cultural & 
recreational uses. 

 Table 3 Kaua‘i Regional Plans Implementation Status 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



                  - 10 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

Kuleana Homestead Settlement Plan Projects on Kaua‘i  
   
Pu‘u ‘Ōpae Special Area Plan & Kuleana Homestead Settlement Plan 
 

There are over 14,500 acres of Hawaiian Home Lands in the 
Waimea area (see Fig. 1), one of the original tracts identified in 
section 203 of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act of 1920, as 
amended. Homestead development in this area was not a priority in 
the Kaua‘i Island Plan (2004) but the area around Pu‘u ‘Ōpae 
reservoir was designated as Special District, indicating that 
additional planning would be needed. The need to do planning for 
integrated agricultural development and water management was 
identified as a Priority Project in the West Kaua‘i Regional Plan 
in 2011.  

 
A Farm and Irrigation Plan (FIP) was completed by the Kekaha 

Hawaiian Homestead Association (KHHA), and a 20-year license to 
implement the FIP was issued in 2017. In addition, a historic water 
settlement in the Waimea area facilitated a 65-year lease with the 
Kaua‘i Island Utility Cooperative (KIUC) to develop the West Kaua‘i 
Energy Project (WKEP) partially on Hawaiian Home Lands, which would 
have included road improvements, provision of potable water and 
electricity. These improvements would have significantly 
facilitate agricultural, community and homesteading uses in the 
Pu‘u ‘Ōpae area. Due to unresolved issues, the WKEP is currently 
on hiatus and DHHL is reevaluating its options for Pu‘u ‘Ōpae.     

 
Implementation of the Settlement Plan will now have to wait 

until an alternative to the WKEP to obtain funding for the proposed 
road and other infrastructure improvements can be found. The 
Kuleana Settlement Plan process, which included Chapter 343 
Environmental Review and amendment of the Kaua‘i Island Plan, was 
completed and received HHC approval in July of 2020. See Figure 2, 
Proposed Land Uses, below. See Item G-2, Kaua‘i Water Projects 
Update, for more information. 



                  - 11 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

 
  Figure 2 Proposed DHHL Land Uses in Pu‘u ‘Ōpae, Waimea, Kaua‘i  
 
Anahola Kuleana Homestead Settlement Plan 
 
 DHHL also intends to provide the following kuleana 
agriculture and kuleana pastoral opportunities on 275 acres of 
land in Anahola. See Table 4, Anahola Kuleana Settlement Plan Lot 
Strategy, below.  
  

     
Table 4 Anahola Kuleana Settlement Plan Lot Strategy 
 

The Anahola Kuleana Homestead Settlement planning process, 
including Chapter 343 Environmental Review and amendment of the 
Kaua‘i Island Plan, was completed in May 2021. Albizia clearing 
and road improvements were completed by Green Energy Team, which 
facilitates implementation of the Kuleana Settlement Plan. See 
Figure 3, Proposed Kuleana Settlement Plan, below. 



                  - 12 –                    ITEM NO. G-1 

 
 Figure 3 Proposed Kuleana Settlement Plan in Anahola, Kaua‘i 
 
 Currently, DHHL is still pursuing HRS Chapter 6E clearance 
through the State Historic Preservation Division (SHPD) and 
anticipates completion of construction plans for roads and 
drainage by early 2025. See Item E-1, “Kaua‘i Island Project 
Updates,” for more detailed information.    
 
Recommendation 
 
 For information only. No action required. 



   
 

                                                                   - 1 -                       HHC ITEM G-2 
 

STATE OF HAWAII  
DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS  

  
August 19 - 20, 2024 

  
  

To: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC)  
  
Through: Andrew H. Choy, Planning Program Manager  
 
From: Cherie-Noelle Ka'anana, Water Program Specialist 
  
Subject: Kaua'i Water Projects Update  
  
  
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION  
  

None; for information only.  
  
DISCUSSION  
  

This submittal to the Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) 
provides an update of water issues and projects of significance 
to beneficiaries and the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands 
(DHHL) on Kaua'i. It is submitted in furtherance of the HHC 
Water Policy Plan (WPP) Goal 1, to “Affirmatively communicate 
with beneficiaries regarding water decisions, performance, and 
water rights on a regional and annual basis.” 
 

This submittal is also prepared in the context of our 
overall efforts to fulfill the responsibilities of the HHC and 
DHHL as they relate to water. An overview of this context is 
included as Attachment A: BACKGROUND AND OVEREVIEW OF HHC AND 
DHHL WATER KULEANA. 
 

A general overview of DHHL tracts and implementation of 
DHHL plans is provided in the Status Update on Plan 
Implementation on Kaua'i (Item G-1). This submittal focuses on 
the following:  

 
I. DHHL Water Demands and Reservations 
II. West Kaua'i Energy Project Update 

III. Anahola Surface Water Management Plan 
IV. Kaua'i County Department of Water’s Water Use and 

Development Plan Update 
 
 



   
 

                                                                   - 2 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

V. Other Projects with Future Water Implications 
VI. Related Work with Beneficiaries and Capacity Building to 

Secure Water Resources and Address Water Issues 
 

 
Figure 1. Map of DHHL Lands on Kaua'i shown in green. 
 

I. DHHL Water Demands and Reservations 
 

As described in more detail in Attachment A, water 
reservations are a means for the Commission on Water Resource 
Management (CWRM) to protect or set aside water for DHHL future 
needs in various areas. While converting these reservations into 
“wet water” flowing into homesteads requires planning, 
financing, environmental review, and design, securing 
reservations for our future use remains a critical step in 
securing water for future homesteads and related DHHL needs. 
 

A. DHHL Calculation of Future Water Needs 
 

 The DHHL Planning Office, in cooperation with other parts 
of DHHL and other agencies, calculates future water needs for 
all of our tracts by first reviewing the land use designations 
made by the HHC through the General Plan1, in the DHHL Island 

 
1 https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/221123-DHHL-General-Plan-
Final-Draft_Adopted.pdf 

https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/221123-DHHL-General-Plan-Final-Draft_Adopted.pdf
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/island-plans/
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/221123-DHHL-General-Plan-Final-Draft_Adopted.pdf
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/221123-DHHL-General-Plan-Final-Draft_Adopted.pdf


   
 

                                                                   - 3 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

Plans2, and Regional Plans3, as well as any detailed development 
plans that are created as tracts move into homestead and other 
development.  We also examine any other information about land 
characteristics in each tract that could impact future water 
demands.  

  
Each particular land use designation for a tract (e.g. 

residential, commercial, pastoral) and any supporting 
information in the respective plans (e.g. acreage or unit 
counts) are then used, along with applicable water demand 
standards, to calculate water demands.  Applicable water demand 
standards include:  

  
• County water system standards4 for the respective county in 

which the tract is located;  
• For general agricultural land use designations, standards 

in the current approved state Agricultural Water Use and 
Development Plan5, unless more specific information is 
available from other CWRM determinations for the particular 
area  

• Lo'i kalo water demands as determined by the Office of 
Hawaiian Affairs and the US Geological Survey in the 2007 
study6 of water use in wetland kalo cultivation.     
  
A comprehensive examination of plans and land use 

designations across all tracts, along with associated water 
demands, was undertaken by DHHL and staff and consultants with 
the Department of Land and Natural Resources - Engineering 
Division for the 2017 State Water Projects Plan (SWPP), adopted 
by CWRM in May 2017.  A subsequent update to the SWPP adopted by 
CWRM in 20207 also included all of the previous calculated 
demands for DHHL.  

 
The notable difference between the calculations in the SWPP 

and ultimate DHHL needs is that by statute the SWPP looks at a 
20-year time demand, but DHHL needs go beyond that time 
horizon. This is particularly relevant in light of the fiduciary 
duties of the DHHL and the provision in the state Water Code 

 
2 https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2012/05/Island_Plan_Kauai_2004.pdf 
3 https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/regional-plans/kauai-regional-plans/ 
4 https://boardofwatersupply.com/customer-service/applications-and-
permits/water-system-standards 
5 https://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/planning/awudp2004.pdf 
6 https://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2007/1157/ 
7 https://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/planning/swpp2020.pdf 

https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/island-plans/
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/regional-plans/
https://www.boardofwatersupply.com/bws/media/files/water-system-standards-with-amendments-2002-updated-2023-03-13a.pdf
https://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/planning/awudp2004.pdf
https://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/planning/awudp2004.pdf
https://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2007/1157/
https://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2007/1157/
https://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/planning/swpp2020.pdf
https://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/planning/swpp2020.pdf
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2012/05/Island_Plan_Kauai_2004.pdf
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2012/05/Island_Plan_Kauai_2004.pdf
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/po/regional-plans/kauai-regional-plans/
https://boardofwatersupply.com/customer-service/applications-and-permits/water-system-standards
https://boardofwatersupply.com/customer-service/applications-and-permits/water-system-standards
https://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/planning/awudp2004.pdf
https://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2007/1157/
https://files.hawaii.gov/dlnr/cwrm/planning/swpp2020.pdf


   
 

                                                                   - 4 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

that requires water reservations for DHHL be for “foreseeable 
needs” (HRS 174C-101(a)). 

 
 B. DHHL Water Needs for Kaua'i Tracts 
 
 Based on the data in the 2020 SWPP and other regional 
plans, the potable and non-potable 20-year projections of medium 
range water needs for DHHL’s Kaua'i tracts are as follows (in 
millions of gallons per day [MGD]).  
 
Table 1. DHHL Water Needs for Kaua'i 
Tract Potable 

(MGD) 
Non-potable 
(MGD) 

Total 
 

Waimea 0.2635 25.806 26.0695 
Hanapēpē 0.6493 0.2924 0.9417 
Wailua 0.7075 0.3366 1.0441 
Anahola 1.3795 5.1557 6.5352 
Moloa'a 0.0235 2.9300 2.9535 
Other Tracts 0.1399  0.1399 
    
Totals 3.1632 34.5207 37.6839 
 

The estimated water demand for Moloa'a is currently 
undergoing reevaluation. The above values were taken from the 
2020 SWPP. There are 316 acres of undeveloped land at Moloa'a. 
There is a State well nearby that is currently held by a private 
party via a Revocable Permit (RP) and is in the process of being 
converted to a General License. As required by Hawai'i Revised 
Statute(HRS) 171-58(g), water reservations for DHHL lands must 
be made related to the proposed waters  prior to the issuance of 
Water Licenses. The current RP holder has reached out to DHHL 
has been in the process of updating Moloa'a’s water needs.  

 
Utilizing the aforementioned calculation method, DHHL staff 

calculated an updated water need for Moloa’a at 152,000 gpd of 
potable water and 4,592,160 gpd of non-potable water. 
Alternatively, staff at the CWRM have the ability to use their 
Irrigation Water Requirement Estimation Decision Support System 
(IWREDSS) to calculate water estimates for agriculture. Through 
that method, the water needs for Moloa'a are approximately 
5,379,000 gpd of non-potable water. DHHL will conduct 
beneficiary consultation to determine the appropriate amount of 
water reservation to request as a next step. 
 
 
 



   
 

                                                                   - 5 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

C. Existing Kaua'i DHHL Water Reservations by CWRM 
 
 CWRM can act to reserve water for DHHL on its own action, 
when petitioned for action by DHHL, or when required in response 
to a request for another party to lease or license state waters 
under HRS 171-58. In designated water management areas, CWRM has 
adopted reservations of water through a rule making process 
under HRS 174C-49(d). For non-designated areas, CWRM has 
reserved water during regular meetings under HRS 174C-101. Based 
on a request by DHHL and by CWRM action, the following 
reservations have been secured. Water was reserved from the 
water resources related to each tract -- either a Surface Water 
Hydrologic Unit (SWHU) or a Ground Water Hydrologic Unit (GWHU). 
 
Table 2. DHHL Reservations Granted by CWRM 
Aquifer System Area Date of Reservation MGD Reserved 
Waimea SWHU 6/20/17 6.903 
Wailua SWHU 10/16/18 0.513 
Wailua GWHU 9/18/18 0.708 
Anahola GWHU 9/18/18 1.47 
Kekaha GWHU 9/18/18 0.336 
Makaweli GWHU 9/18/18 0.405 
 

D. Limitations of Reservations of Water 
 
Reserving adequate water for the future needs of DHHL is 

mandated by the state Water Code (HRS Ch 174C), and progress on 
establishing reservations adds important legal protections to 
beneficiaries’ future water needs.  However, there are limits to 
what reservations are (and are not), and the kinds of issues 
that they can address.  While water reservations set aside some 
water for allocation by the Commission on Water Resource 
Management (CWRM) to any other party, there are limits:  

   
• Reservations do not instantly result in “wet water” being 

available to DHHL and beneficiaries.  Water development 
requires: 

o Funding for water exploration and development 
o Environmental review 
o Development of source, storage, and transmission 
o Development of operations plans or agreements  

• In Water Management Areas (WMAs) of the state there is an 
enforcement mechanism for protecting DHHL uses and 
reservations because all required Water Use Permits are 
“subject to the rights of DHHL”.  There are, however, no 



   
 

                                                                   - 6 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

WMAs in Kaua'i.  
  

II. West Kaua'i Energy Project Update 
 

DHHL was an essential party to the historic May 2017 
settlement agreement on a number of water issues related to the 
Waimea River, Kaua'i. The Waimea Watershed Agreement was entered 
into by the Department, Po'ai Wai Ola/West Kaua'i Watershed 
Alliance (PWO) (represented by the law firm Earthjustice), the 
State Agribusiness Development Corporation (ADC), their tenants 
the Kekaha Agriculture Association (KAA), and the Kaua'i Island 
Utility Cooperative (KIUC). It arose from the efforts by the 
Commission on Water Resource Management (CWRM) to resolve issues 
related to PWO’s Petition to Amend the Interim Instream Flow 
Standard for the Waimea River and Complaint and Petition for a 
Declaratory Order Against Waste, as well as a Petition for a 
“Reservation” of water by DHHL for its Waimea lands.  

 
One of the results of that settlement was a subsequent 

reservation of water for DHHL by the CWRM for use on DHHL lands 
in and around Pu'u 'Ōpae, from waters delivered from those 
sources by the Koke'e Ditch Irrigation System (see Figure 2, 
below). Specifically, in June 20, 2017, the State of Hawaii 
Commission on Water Resources Management granted DHHL’s Modified 
Petition for Reservation of surface water of 6.903 Million 
Gallons Per Day originating from the watershed of, and tributary 
to, the Waimea River and diverted by the Koke'e and Kekaha Ditch 
Systems (including water originating in Waikoali, Kawaikoi, 
Kauaikinana, and Koke'e Streams and other tributaries of the 
Waimea River) for use in the Waimea, Kaua`i Hawaiian Home Lands. 
This was the first surface water reservation ever issued to DHHL 
or any other entity.  

 
A major component of the agreement was the potential 

development of pumped storage and flow-through hydropower by 
KIUC. On December 13, 20238, KIUC released a statement that KIUC 
and its partner AES will discontinue active development of the 
flow-through hydroelectric portion of the West Kaua`i Energy 
Project (WKEP) due to delays caused by litigation, project 
uncertainty, and increase in costs. The development of the flow-
through hydroelectric portion would have rehabilitated the 
reservoirs at Pu'u Lua and Pu'u 'Ōpae, and provided critical 
infrastructure (roads, waterlines, and power) on DHHL lands to 
enable the Pu`u `Ōpae Settlement Plan.  The timing of 

 
8 https://www.kiuc.coop/project-delays-jeopardize-west-kauai-energy-project 

https://www.kiuc.coop/project-delays-jeopardize-west-kauai-energy-project


   
 

                                                                   - 7 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

implementing these homesteading plans is now significantly 
uncertain. 

 
Under the Agreement, KIUC is still required, however, to 

complete what were referred to as “Phase 1 modifications” of the 
stream intakes which were designed to implement the new Interim 
Instream Flow Standards stipulated in the 2017 Waimea Mediation 
Agreement for   Waiakōali, Kawaiakōī, Kaua'ikinanā, and Kōke'e 
intakes.  

 
On January 30, 2024, CWRM considered KIUC’s Stream Channel 

Alteration Permit Application (SCAP) and Stream Diversion Works 
Permit Application (SDWP) for approval so they could proceed 
with meeting these Phase I modifications. At that meeting, KAA 
and ADC objected to the immediate approval and expressed 
concerns regarding the proposed design.  They specifically 
asserted that the proposed diversions would be difficult to 
maintain, would have adverse environmental impacts, and would 
impact water delivery from the Kōke'e Ditch to DHHL and their 
tenants.  DHHL consultants were notified of these concerns the 
day before; at the CWRM meeting DHHL provided testimony 
expressing concerns with the delivery of water to beneficiaries 
currently utilizing the water. CWRM approved the SCAP and 
deferred the SDWP so that all relevant parties could meet. 

 
Since then, KAA, ADC, KIUC, DHHL, and Earthjustice have met 

regularly to discuss the Phase I modifications and related 
issues. KAA has proposed alternative Phase 1 modifications to 
the group, seeking funding from KIUC in lieu of their original 
Phase 1 design.  

 
Table 3: Waimea Watershed Settlement Timeline  
Date Event 
July 24, 2013 PWO filed a combined petition to amend the 

IIFS for Waimea River, and a complaint and 
petition for Declaratory Order against waste 
in the Waimea Watershed 
 

May 27, 2014 An inventory of the stream system, water 
uses, and water users of Waimea River was 
conducted 
 

2015 CWRM gather information on water uses from 
the agricultural interests and DHHL 
 

November 17, 
2015 

DHHL filed a petition with CWRM for a 
reservation of surface water of 33.145 MGD 



   
 

                                                                   - 8 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

2015 CWRM staff approached various parties having 
an interest in this area and its waters to 
consider participating in a mediation of the 
issues involved 
 

December 2015 A mediator was approved by CWRM to reach 
agreement between parties regarding the 
Waimea watershed 
 

February 16, 
2016 

CWRM approved the terms of reference for the 
mediations 
 

April 18, 2017 PWO, ADC, KAA, DHHL, and KIUC entered into 
the Waimea Mediation Agreement  
                  

June 20, 2017 CWRM approved a reservation for DHHL of 
surface water for 6.903 MGD 
 

August 10, 2020 DHHL published its Final Environmental 
Assessment (EA) with a Finding Of No 
Significant Impact (FONSI) for the Pu'u 'Ōpae 
Homestead Settlement 
 

January 8, 2023 KIUC and its consultants and project partner 
(AES) published a Final EA and FONSI for what 
is now referred to as the WKEP, the pumped 
storage and flow through hydropower project. 
Whether that document is sufficient under HRS 
343 has been challenged by PWO in court and 
was the subject of potential additional 
mediation 
 

August 2, 2023 PWO sent a letter to the CWRM and other 
parties to the agreement alleging ongoing 
violations of the agreement and officially 
complaining against ongoing waste 
 

January 30, 2024 CWRM brought forward KIUC’s request for a 
SCAP and SDWP for the Kōke'e Ditch. KAA and 
ADC testified against with concern regarding 
the design and water delivery. CWRM deferred 
the submittal. 
 

April 19, 2024 KIUC withdrew its Draft EA, Final EA, and 
FONSI for the WKEP 
 

 



   
 

                                                                   - 9 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

 

 
Figure 2. DHHL ’s Waimea lands currently use some irrigation water 
from the Koke'e Ditch and could be further irrigated by that system. 
From DHHL, West Kaua'i Regional Plan, at 16 (Mar. 2011). 
 

III. Anahola Surface Water Management Plan 
 

DHHL’s Regional Plans help to identify opportunities for 
partnerships among stakeholders, including the Trust, its 
beneficiaries, and other interest groups in the region. The 
participatory planning process also documents issues and 
opportunities in the homestead community and identifies priority 
projects through consensus building in the near term (two-to-
four-year period). The Anahola Regional Plan9 was last updated in 
2022. This submittal covers one of the priority projects 
identified for non-potable water uses. 
 

Surface water resources from the Kealia watershed through 
Anahola are an asset that the community would like to better 

 
9 https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Anahola-RPU-Draft-
Final_adopted-2022.pdf 

https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Anahola-RPU-Draft-Final_adopted-2022.pdf
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Anahola-RPU-Draft-Final_adopted-2022.pdf


   
 

                                                                   - 10 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

understand for safety and potential future uses. This includes 
water that runs from the Upper Anahola Ditch to the Kaneha 
Ditch, and to the Kaneha Reservoirs 1, 2, and 3.  

 
In the 2010 and 2022 Anahola Regional Plan’s priority 

project description, a Master Plan for Surface Water Resources 
was identified as a pathway forward to secure and manage surface 
water resources. The plan would map and inventory the mauka 
surface water resources, measuring capacity and infrastructure 
integrity as well as identifying proposed watershed management 
and stream restoration projects. The priority project also 
called for a strategic plan for the use and closure of 
reservoirs. The plan would be based on data collection from flow 
meters installed to measure the intake of Anahola Stream.  

 
Some work investigating and addressing the availability of 

surface water resources and safety of existing reservoirs has been 
completed by DHHL, as follows: 

 
• 2010: United States Geological Survey (USGS) Anahola     

Stream study completed 
• 2012: Kaua'i Dam Assessment completed; recommended  

remediation, removal, and deregulation of 
reservoirs 

• 2013: $3.0 million legislative appropriation for dam  
improvements 

• 2020: Demolition of Field #2 Kealia Reservoir and Lower  
Anahola Reservoir completed 

• 2021: Final Anahola Kuleana Settlement Plan and EA FONSI  
adopted by Hawaiian Homes Commission, which 
included assessment of Kealia Field #1 for non-
potable water storage; deemed not feasible 

• Underway: EA and redesign demolition of Field #1 Kealia  
Reservoir and Upper Anahola Reservoir due to high 
cost of improvements, no water source, and 
liability of maintaining a regulated dam 

 
The work on the existing reservoirs does not involve removing 

and filling the entire reservoir but does remove the lower portion 
of the dams to allow water to flow unimpeded and reduce risk of 
flooding due to dam failure. The dam improvements completed to 
date allow for the possibility of the reservoirs being restored in 
the future if funding becomes available and there is still a desire 
to restore flow into the reservoirs from Anahola Stream. 

 



   
 

                                                                   - 11 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

The first implementation action step is seeking funding for 
the plan. Additional funding is needed to complete a more 
detailed and thorough study of historic and current surface 
water resources in Anahola to accomplish the objective of better 
managing surface water resources and to restore the flow of 
surface water to DHHL’s Anahola lands. 
 

IV. Kaua'i Department of Water’s Water Use Development Plan 
Update 

 
The Hawai'i Water Plan is a master planning document for water 

resources in the state mandated by the state Water Code (HRS 
174C).  It is composed of five parts. The Water Resource 
Protection Plan and Water Quality Plan contain protection 
policies, establishing Sustainable Yields and other controls on 
water use. The State Water Projects Plan (SWPP) and Agricultural 
Water Use and Development Plan (AWUDP) address State needs. 
Lastly, the County Water Use and Development Plans are 
administered at a County level that includes County-wide demands 
and land use consistency. In compliance with the Hawai'i Water 
Plan, the preparation and updating of the WUDP are the 
responsibility of the specific entities charged with water 
planning within that County.  DHHL actively participates 
whenever any segment of the Hawai`i Water Plan is updated to 
ensure beneficiary needs are incorporated. 
 

On December 19, 2023, Kaua'i’s Department of Water (DOW) 
briefed the CWRM on their WUDP update – their only update being 
their initial draft in February 1990. At this meeting, DHHL 
testified and suggested the DOW conduct additional meetings with 
DHHL beneficiaries to ensure an opportunity for engagement is 
provided. The DOW reached out to DHHL staff to plan two meetings 
on Kaua'i for DHHL beneficiaries.  

 
On March 21 and 28, 2024, beneficiary meetings were held in 

Anahola and Kekaha, respectively. Through this, DHHL lessees and 
applicants were able to come forward with their insight and 
partake in the consultation process. 
 

On May 21, 2024, the DOW held a public hearing for the updated 
Kaua'i WUDP. Their updated report was published on their website 
in June 202410. 
 
 
 

 
10 http://kauaiwater.org/Final%20KWUDP%20(June%202024).pdf 

http://kauaiwater.org/Final%20KWUDP%20(June%202024).pdf


   
 

                                                                   - 12 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

V. Other Projects with Future Water Implications 
 

Other DHHL projects going forward will require water for 
further development. Some updates will be given in the planning 
update and other presentations. A short breakdown of a few of 
the projects is shown below from east to west. 

 
A. Moloa'a Water Reservation 

 
As referenced above in the discussion on water 

reservations, DHHL holds 316 acres of undeveloped land in 
Moloa'a. The proposed land use for this area is subsistence and 
general agricultural lots, in addition to a special district 
along the stream. The land is currently used for grazing. DLNR 
has been pursuing the conversion of a Revocable Permit into a 
water license for Well No. 2-1020-002 under HRS 171-58. As a 
part of that process, DHHL has been working with DLNR and the 
existing revocable permit holder to secure a water reservation 
for DHHL’s current and foreseeable needs.  

 
Potential connection of this well to DOW’s system instead 

of renewal of the RP or conversion into a license is an 
alternate method which could allow water transmission to DHHL’s 
lands from this well. If the County takes over the well, it 
could assist with facilitating the development of lots in 
Moloa'a and the future DHHL users would become County customers. 
 

B. Anahola Kuleana Lots 
 

The HHC approved the Anahola Kuleana Settlement Plan and Final 
Environmental Assessment - Findings of No Significant Impact in 
2021. The Settlement Plan includes 101 2-acres subsistence 
agriculture lots, 14 10-acres pastoral lots, and 28 acres for 
community use. The Kuleana Settlement Program provides a 
homesteading alternative with quicker access to raw land 
(without utilities) and an opportunity to create a new self-
sufficient community. The anticipated water demands are shown on 
the table on the next page. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

                                                                   - 13 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

Table 4: Water Use demands 
Land Use Gallons/Acre/Day Acres MGD 
Pastoral 3,800 140  0.532 
Subsistence 
Agriculture 

2,000 202 0.404 

Community 2,000 28 0.056 
Special 
District 

-- 92 -- 

    
Total  462 0.992 
 

C. Grove Farm Isenberg Property Acquisition 
 

DHHL plans to potentially acquire a 295- acre property from 
Grove Farm as a part of the Act 279 planned amendments. DHHL 
will need to secure a source of water for this property when it 
is acquired. The associated lot count and associated water 
demand are being determined. The County water system that 
services Līhue is proximate to the project area and could 
potentially service this parcel. 
 

D. Wailua Master Planning Process 
 

The master planning process for Wailua will occur in the fall. 
There are no specific needs identified yet because an 
anticipated lot count is still in progress. 
 

E. Hanapēpē Future Phases 
 

The Construction of Phase 2 (82 units) in Hanapēpē is onging. 
For subsequent additional phases, DHHL will meet with the County 
to discuss the County’s capacity to accommodate DHHL’s future 
phases. If the County system cannot accommodate additional DHHL 
demand, the Department will partner with the County to develop 
an additional source. 

 
 
VI. Related Work with Beneficiaries and Capacity Building to 

Secure Water Resources and Address Water Issues 
 

In June of 2022, the Hawai`i County Council considered a 
proposed charter amendment, that, among other matters, would 
have required that a member of the Hawai'i County Board of Water 
Supply also be a DHHL beneficiary.  While the proposal to 
include this as a charter amendment on the ballot did not 
survive second reading, it brought about significant engaged 
testimony from beneficiaries on Hawai`i Island and a high-level 



   
 

                                                                   - 14 -                      HHC ITEM G-2 
 

county discussion of the relationship between the county and 
DHHL on water development. In response to the consideration of 
the proposed charter amendment, beneficiary leadership suggested 
specific training for beneficiaries across the Pae `Āina on how 
to prepare for, apply for, and serve on water related boards and 
commissions, to help ensure DHHL perspectives and beneficiary 
voices are represented.  

 
Working with the William S. Richardson School of Law’s Ka Huli 

Ao Center for Excellence in Native Hawaiian Law, pilot training 
program was designed and scheduled and opened to an inaugural 
cohort from across the islands in the autumn of 2023 (via Zoom). 
Initially, the training took place in four parts:  Part 1: 
Foundations for Building Effective Kahuwai Pono; Part 2: A Guide 
to Serving on Agencies with Kuleana to Mālama Wai; Part 3: A 
Legal Toolkit for a Kahuwai Pono; and Part 4: Kahuwai Pono and 
their Departments. After beneficiary feedback, it has been 
adjusted to allow for more in-depth training on tools and 
resources:  Part 1: Foundations for Building Effective Kahuwai 
Pono; Part 2: A Legal Toolkit for Kahuwai Pono – Wai and the 
Public Trust; Part 3: A Legal Toolkit for a Kahuwai Pono – 
Traditional and Customary Native Hawaiian Practices; and Part 4: 
Kahuwai Pono and their Departments.  

 
Beneficiary interest for the training sessions has been 

strong, resulting in three cohorts completing the training 
sessions since then, with one cohort currently undergoing 
training. Notable graduates of the water law training include: 
 

• Donna Sterling, current Chair of the Maui Board of Water 
Supply 

• Lori Buchanan, a Nominee to the CWRM 
 
  

A current fourth cohort is beginning this month. Homestead 
organization leaders will be notified when applications for the 
subsequent cohorts are open.  

 
RECOMMENDATION  
  

None; for information only.  
 
 
 
 
Attachment A – BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW OF HHC AND DHHL WATER 

KULEANA 



                                                                - 1 -          HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 
 

BACKGROUND AND OVEREVIEW OF HHC AND DHHL WATER KULEANA 
 
 The purpose of this document is to review the water rights 
and responsibilities (kuleana) of the Hawaiian Homes Commission 
(HHC) and Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (DHHL).  It is meant 
to be a stand-alone review document for those interested in 
these matters as well as a standing attachment to submittals on 
water issues presented to the HHC, updated from time to time. 
 

The HHC and DHHL have four primary water responsibilities:  
 

1. To plan for fulfilling existing and future water needs; 
2. To advocate for water rights; 
3. To develop water sources; and 
4. To manage water systems 

 
To help fulfill these responsibilities, DHHL has distinct water 
rights based on the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act (HHCA), the 
Hawaiʻi State Constitution (HSC), Hawaiʻi Revised Statutes 
(HRS), Attorney General’s opinions and court cases. These water 
rights are tools that the Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) can 
use as needed. Evaluating which tool/right is best to use 
depends on the opportunities at hand and the costs (financial 
and otherwise) of asserting that tool/right.   
 
The Department has developed three educational handouts which 
help explain separate aspects of these issues posted on the 
Department’s website: 
 

• The “Lehua Handout” has a summary of these HHC and DHHL 
water kuleana; 

• The “Koa Handout” summarizes the HHC Water Policy Plan 
(WPP); and 

• The “Kalo Handout” summarizes the record on appeal of the 
decisions of the Commission on Water Resource Management 
(CWRM), and as they are the trustees of water in Hawai`i, 
their decision making has significant impacts on the rights 
of the Department and our ability to fulfill the WPP. 

 
The next sections go into some additional detail, prior to 
describing how DHHL interacts with CWRM and implements the HHC 
WPP. It is organized around the four responsibilities reviewed 
above, pairing the first two (planning and advocacy) due to 
their significant overlap in activity. 
 
  
 



                                                                - 2 -          HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 
 

Planning for Water Needs and Advocating for Water Rights 
 

The Department’s Water Planning and Advocacy Kuleana 
include the need to continuously determine the future water 
needs for all of the `āina ho`opulapula and then seek water 
reservations from CWRM to set aside sufficient water to meet 
those needs.   

 
What are water reservations? 
  
    Water can be “reserved” – set aside and not allocated to 
other users – by the CWRM, implementing its powers under the 
state Water Code, HRS 174C. These powers were conveyed by the 
Legislature in 1990, in part out of acknowledgement that it can 
take years between the HHC determining a proposed use of land 
and the land being developed for that use, due primarily to the 
lack of capital funds needed for development.  Absent water 
reservations, other competing public and private sector 
developers can (and in many cases have) developed most or all of 
the easily available water in an area, either precluding DHHL 
development or significantly increasing the costs of water 
development.  Reservations are one tool to address that problem. 
  
     There are two distinct methods by which CWRM can reserve 
water.  In Water Management Areas (WMAs) – parts of the state 
which are subjected to a higher level of permitting scrutiny for 
surface or ground water allocation – water reservations are 
adopted through rule making. Currently all of O`ahu except for 
the Wai`anae Aquifer Sector Area, all ground water on the island 
of Molokai, the `Īao Aquifer of Maui, and groundwater in West 
Maui are designated as Ground WMAs.  The surface waters of Nā 
Wai `Ehā and the surface waters related to the Lahaina Aquifer 
Sector Area, both on Maui, are designated as Surface WMAs. 
  
     Because of this rule making requirement as well as the 
permitting requirements in WMAs – which require that all water 
use permits are subject to the rights of DHHL – the protection 
of DHHL water rights are more robust in WMAs. 
  
     In non-WMAs, the CWRM can simply take action to vote, by a 
majority of its seven members, to reserve water for DHHL.  
Reservations by rule and by simple CWRM action are supposed to 
be included in all elements of the Hawai`i Water Plan, including 
the Water Resources Protection Plan (WRPP), the State Water 
Projects Plan (SWPP), and the County Water Use and Development 
Plans (WUDPs).   
  



                                                                - 3 -          HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 
 

     The actions that trigger CWRM consideration of DHHL water 
reservation needs vary.  The state water code (HRS 174C) in 
section 101(a) requires that: “Decisions of the commission on 
water resource management relating to the planning for, 
regulation, management, and conservation of water resources in 
the State shall, to the extent applicable and consistent with 
other legal requirements and authority, incorporate and protect 
adequate reserves of water for current and foreseeable 
development and use of Hawaiian home lands as set forth in 
section 221 of the Hawaiian Homes Commission Act.”  
 
 Some of the most common triggers for adopting DHHL 
reservations have been related to adoptions of parts of the 
Hawai`i Water Plan.  Most of the groundwater reservations 
currently held were adopted following the acceptance by CWRM of 
the 2017 SWPP update.  
 

Another key trigger has been when CWRM has adopted new 
Interim Instream Flow Standards (IIFSs), which are science and 
fact based determinations of the minimum amount of water that 
should remain in a stream before any off-stream uses of water 
are allowed.  The original IIFSs adopted by CWRM around Hawai`i 
in 1988 were “status quo” standards, only protecting the amount 
of water in the stream at that time.  Since most streams across 
Hawai`i in 1988 were diverted, and these historic diversions 
usually took 100% of the flow on non-rainy days, this has meant 
that there have been few or no legal protections for public 
trust uses of surface water.  For decades after this action, 
communities around Hawai`i have petitioned CWRM to adopt IIFSs 
that protect public trust uses of water, including DHHL needs; 
this has led to well-known litigation such as the Waiāhole and 
Nā Wai `Ehā cases.  In recent years the CWRM has begun to 
proactively propose IIFS on its own, and has worked with DHHL to 
propose associated reservations at the same time. 
  

Actions by the Board of Land and Natural Resources (BLNR) 
can also trigger the adoption of reservations for DHHL.  HRS 
171-58, which governs the issuance of water leases by the state, 
specifies in part (g) that “Any lease of water rights or renewal 
shall be subject to the rights of the department of Hawaiian 
home lands as provided by section 221 of the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission Act.”  In the case of the EMI system requests, DHHL’s 
reservation consideration is triggered by the current owners of 
EMI seeking a long-term lease of water. 
 
 
 



                                                                - 4 -          HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 
 

Limits to reservations 
  
     While water reservations are an important policy tool 
available to DHHL, CWRM, and the HHC, they have limitations. 
Some of these include: 
  

• Previously, reservation requests by DHHL have been delayed 
or denied by CWRM staff for unclear reasons 

• Reservations do not provide immediate access to “wet water” 
• Developing water will still require: 

o Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) funds 
o Detailed design and environmental review 
o Developing source, storage, transmission 
o Agreement with County or others for operation 

• In geographically large aquifer systems, locations to 
develop water can still be remote from DHHL tracts 

• The enforceability of reservations, particularly in non-
WMAs, has not been legally tested 

• DHHL along with CWRM will need to monitor other 
developments potential impact on DHHL reservations 

 
Water License Receipts 
 

As mentioned above, the issuing of water licenses by the 
state can be a trigger for the DHHL to seek a water reservation 
from a particular source proposed for license.  Receipts are to 
be deposited into the Native Hawaiian Rehabilitation Fund, which 
is the source of revenue for grants to homestead organizations.  
This arrangement originated in the HHCA as it was passed in 
1921, and are codified including in HSC Art. XII, § 1. 
 

Historically revenue from the licensing of water was 
significant; however, with the decline of large plantations, 
along with choices made by the Land Division of the Department 
of Land and Natural Resources, water license revenue has 
declined significantly. There are instances around Hawai`i where 
water originates from state land and currently there is no 
proposal to issue a water license.   
 
Public Trust Status 
 
 As the key Trustee and lead agency in managing water, CWRM 
is critical in helping DHHL preserve and implement its rights to 
water.  However, since the passage of the Water Code in 1987, a 
number of significant court decisions have made on appeals of 
decisions by the CWRM. That record will be discussed in more 

https://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/hrscurrent/Vol01_Ch0001-0042F/05-Const/CONST_0012-0001.htm
https://www.capitol.hawaii.gov/hrscurrent/Vol01_Ch0001-0042F/05-Const/CONST_0012-0001.htm


                                                                - 5 -          HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 
 

detail below.  Of significance here is that the courts have 
identified over a series of cases four “public trust uses” of 
water, which are to have priority, over private, commercial uses 
of water.  While they are not specifically listed as such under 
the Water Code, the courts identified these based on 
interpreting the Code, the specific circumstances of the cases 
they were ruling on, as well as the long legal history of water 
law dating back to the Kingdom.  Along with Appurtenant Rights -  
four Public Trust Purposes are: 
 

• Maintaining water in its natural state; 
• Water used in the exercise of the traditional and customary 

practices of native Hawaiians;  
• Water reserved for or used by DHHL; and 
• The domestic needs of the general public. 

 
Appurtenant water rights refer to the water necessary for the 
use of kuleana parcels at the time kuleana awards were made – 
and they enjoy the same high level of priority as the four 
purposes above.  
 

Private, municipal, and commercial uses of water are not 
prohibited.  However, when CWRM or other agencies make 
decisions, they need to follow particular processes to ensure 
that public trust purposes of water are provided for.   
 
 As one of the protected public trust uses of water, the 
DHHL has a particular responsibility to protect that status, as 
well as to not bring harm to the other public trust uses of 
water.  One way in which DHHL does this is to consider and 
pursue alternate sources of water when its uses may impact 
another public trust use of water. Another is to help defend all 
public trust uses against private commercial uses that could 
harm its own and other public trust uses.   
 
Water Source Development 
 
 Even after the Department has secured water reservations as 
discussed above, efforts must be made to develop water sources 
to enable homesteading. In addition to the general powers that 
state departments have to expend funds and manage programs, DHHL 
has particular powers related to water source development. 
 
 The most commonly used of these is the power to issue 
leases or licenses to trust lands.  Very frequently, DHHL will 
develop some combination of water source, storage, and 
transmission, and then lease, license, or otherwise dedicate 



                                                                - 6 -          HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 
 

those to the Board or Department of Water Supply of the county 
these lands lie in.  In exchange, DHHL, receives a certain 
number of water credits, which can be used and exchanged for 
water meters at a future time.  Water credits have also been 
obtained in the past by other parts of the state government 
developing wells and assigning credits to the DHHL, as well as 
through litigation. 
 
 While it has never used the power, the HHC also has the 
power to bring eminent domain proceedings against private 
parties to obtain sites with water sources.  It can also 
“demand” access to state controlled water systems, but like 
condemnation has not exercised this power. 
 
 As discussed above in the review of water reservations, in 
Designated Water Management Areas (WMAs), all users of water 
must obtain a “water use permit” from CWRM.  By law those 
permits are conditioned on the rights of the DHHL.  Generally, 
however, DHHS lands do not coincide with existing WMAs.  See 
Figure 1, below, showing WMAs and DHHL lands on Hawai`i Island.    
 
Water System Management 
 
 The last major water kuleana that DHHL has is the ability 
to develop and manage water systems directly.  DHHL currently 
manages four systems on Molokai, Kaua`i and Hawai`i Islands.    
 
The Commission on Water Resource Management (CWRM) Record on 
Appeal 
 
 While the HHC, DHHL and its beneficiaries have particular 
and significant water rights as described above, we are largely 
dependent on CWRM and protecting those rights.  Unfortunately, 
since passage of the code in 1987, it has been a very mixed 
history. DHHL and beneficiaries have frequently had to go to 
court to challenge decisions of CWRM. Refer to the handouts on 
the DHHL website regarding water policy. The most successful 
instances have been when the DHHL and beneficiaries have worked 
closely together on those efforts.  It is notable that 
beneficiaries on the island of Molokai have led the way, and the 
resulting cases have helped the courts describe the significance 
of DHHL water rights. 
 
 



                                                                - 7 -          HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 
 

 
Figure 1.  DHHL Lands and Water Management Areas on Kaua`i island. There are 
currently no designated water management areas on the island of Kaua`i. 
 
HHC Water Policy Plan (WPP) 
 
 In order to consistently make water decisions and protect 
the trust’s water interests, in 2014 the HHC passed a Water 
Policy Plan (WPP) under the General Plan.  This was adopted 
after two years of research, and two rounds of beneficiary 
consultation across the archipelago. It is to our knowledge, the 
first policy regarding water decisions passed by the HHC since 
passage of the HHCA in 1921.  The WPP is also posted on the 
Department’s website. 
 
 The WPP is comprised of a number of distinct sections. The 
first section, a vision statement, comes directly from Section 
101 of the HHCA.  The Mission statement derives from the 
different water kuleana described above.  The next section is on 
Values and describes four Hawaiian values key to the proper 
management of water.  This is followed by twelve policies to 



                                                                - 8 -          HHC ITEM G-2 Exhibit A 
 

guide water decisions.  The core of the WPP are nineteen goals 
identified by beneficiaries, staff, and the HHC to be the focus 
of DHHL water activities, with four identified as priority 
goals.  These are: 
 

1. Affirmatively communicate with beneficiaries regarding 
water decisions, performance, and water rights on a 
regional and annual basis. 
2. Aggressively, proactively, consistently and 
comprehensively advocate for the kuleana of the 
beneficiaries, the DHHL, and the HHC to water before all 
relevant agencies and entities. 
3. Develop and manage a Water Assets Inventory (WAI). 
4. Support watershed protection and restoration on DHHL 
lands and source areas for DHHL water. 

 
The final substantive portions of the WPP includes a statement 
on the delegation of authorities, which includes a requirement 
for the submission to the HHC by the DHHL an annual report on 
accomplishments as well as a plan for the coming fiscal year.  
Legal authorities, related plans, and legal references are also 
included.  
 

In conclusion, DHHL has significant water kuleana – 
responsibilities and rights – that it can bring to bear in order 
to bring water to lands across the `āina ho`opulapula and to 
fulfill the goals of the HHCA. The primary areas of this work 
are for water planning, advocacy, source development, and system 
management.  The CWRM and the Counties are critical partners to 
help achieve our goals.  The HHC has adopted the WPP as the key 
policy guidance for this work.  The WPP requires a number of 
actions from DHHL, including annual plans of work, reports on 
achievements, and annual regional updates on water issues and 
projects. 
 





Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting 
August 19 & 20, 2024 

J Agenda 

Requests to Address the Commission 

J-1 Kipukai Kualii  – Anahola 
J-2 Jeremie Makepa – Anahola  
J-3 Claire Niheu-Yong – Beneficiary Concern 
J-4 Starlynn Kaupu - Beneficiary Concern 
J-5 Harold Vidinha – Kauaʻi Lessee 
J-6 Rosemary Vaivao – Kauaʻi Lessee 
J-7 Lucky Kanahele – Kauaʻi Beneficiary Concern 
J-8 Makana Kia - Kauaʻi Beneficiary Concern 
J-9 Thomas Nizo – Kauʻi Lease concerns  
J-10 Janelle Kaohu-Kauahi – Nānākuli Residential Lease 
J-11 Billi Smith – Beneficiary Concern 
J-12 Chanel Josiah – Hawaiʻi Community Lending 
J-13 Noe Asuega Stark – Puʻuhona Hawaiian Homes Association 
J-14 Kapolei Kiili – Beneficiary Concerns Maui 
J-15 Blossom Feiteira – Kauaʻi Housing Concerns 
J-16 Kainoa MacDonald – Maui Mokupuni 
J-17 Craig Bo Kahui – LaʻiʻŌpua  
J-18 Bill Brown -Panaʻewa Hawaiian Home Lands Community 

Association 
J-19 Kelly Lincoln – Panaʻewa Community Alliance 
J-20 Charlene Manu – Panaʻewa Hawaiian Home Lands Community 

Association 



From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Saturday, August 03, 2024 6:40:31 PM

Name

KipuKai Kualii

Email

kipukai@hawaiianhomesteads.org

Message

J Agenda

J-1

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:kipukai@hawaiianhomesteads.org


From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Friday, August 02, 2024 4:51:52 PM

Name

Jeremie Makepa

Email

aina.alliance.808@gmail.com

Message

Aina Alliance reporting on DHHL grant project in accordance with grant requirement to present during
Kaua’i commission meeting 8/20. Updating progress on Anahola hazard mitigation and future plans.

J-2

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:aina.alliance.808@gmail.com


From: Claire Niheu-Yong
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W; clniheuyong@gmail.com
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Testifying J agenda
Date: Sunday, August 04, 2024 7:31:49 AM

My name is Claire  Niheu, I  am  a  beneficiary applicant  and I  would  like  to  request  to
speak on the J agenda.

J-3

mailto:clniheuyong@gmail.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:clniheuyong@gmail.com


From: Starlynn Kaupu
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: [EXTERNAL] J-agenda
Date: Sunday, August 04, 2024 5:06:45 PM

Aloha Leatrice,
I’m a beneficiary on Kauai.
I’m requesting time on the J agenda
Mahalo,
Starlynn Kaupu
Sent from my iPhone

J-4

mailto:kstarlynn@gmail.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov


From: Yahoo Mail
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: [EXTERNAL] J agenda
Date: Monday, August 05, 2024 2:58:05 PM

Aloha Leatrice,

I am a beneficiary from Kauai and requesting a spot on the J-Agenda for August 19th.
Harold Vidinha
808-639-1218

Mahalo for your time

J-5

mailto:haroldvidinha@yahoo.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov


From: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
To: Rosemary Vaivao
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] J Agenda
Date: Monday, August 05, 2024 12:30:00 PM
Attachments: image002.png

From: Rosemary Vaivao <rosievaivao06@gmail.com> 
Sent: Sunday, August 04, 2024 5:43 PM
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W <leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] J Agenda

Aloha Leatrice:
 I'm  a leassee on kauai.  I'm  requesting time on the J Agenda.  

Mahalo

J-6

mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:rosievaivao06@gmail.com



From: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
To: Lucky Kanahele
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] J-agenda
Date: Monday, August 05, 2024 12:32:00 PM
Attachments: image002.png

Aloha e Kathrine,

Mahalo, for your request to address the Hawaiian Homes Commission. Your aunty (can I 
get her name?)  is scheduled on the J Agenda for Tuesday, August 20, 2024, with an 
approximate start time of 9:45 AM, subject to any carry-over items from the previous day. 
You will have 10 minutes to present to the Commission.

If your presentation includes any written documents that you would like to be included in 
the Commission’s meeting packet, please forward them to me by Monday, August 12, no 
later than 9:30 AM. This will ensure that your materials are properly included in the 
packet.

Please watch your email on Tuesday, August 13. I will forward the filed agenda along with 
the Zoom link for virtual testifiers. 

For further details, please visit our landing page for Public and J Agenda Testimonies: 
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/hhc/testimony

From: Lucky Kanahele <lkanahele9@gmail.com> 
Sent: Monday, August 05, 2024 6:11 AM
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W <leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] J-agenda

"Aloha Leatrice, my aunty does not have email but wishes to speak. 
I am a beneficiary on Kauali.
I am requesting time on the J-Agenda
Mahalo,
Kathrine Kanahele

J-7

mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:lkanahele9@gmail.com
https://dhhl.hawaii.gov/hhc/testimony



From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Monday, August 05, 2024 9:51:44 AM

Name

Makana Kia

Email

ellapoipu@gmail.com

Message

Would like to give testimony on August 20 on Kauai

J-8

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:ellapoipu@gmail.com


From: Thomas Nizo
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Speak on Agenda J Aug 19 & 20
Date: Wednesday, July 10, 2024 6:11:13 PM

Aloha Leatrice,

I am a beneficiary and leasee I am requesting time to speak on agenda J on August 19 & 20

Mahalo,

Thomas Nizo

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone
Get Outlook for Android

J-9

mailto:damix808@hotmail.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://aka.ms/AAb9ysg__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!01vUpImU-NKSkKst9o7-zl3J7d7exDNVXMmpQ2rc6msqU8AeJwo-rUcgbY4RHGTB9gCzOYKH1u_f2kB-ZJL9WP-bx33ue2IRHFA$


From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Monday, August 05, 2024 6:47:55 PM

Name

Janelle Kaohu-Kauahi

Email

jkaohu7586@gmail.com

Message

Aloha
I would like to be on your J-Agenda for August 20, 2024 Meeting
Various Concerns Regarding My Ohana Property that belonged to 
GEORGE STEVEN K. MIKAELE,
Residential Lease No. 1650, Lot No. 100, Nanakuli, Oahu

J-10

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:jkaohu7586@gmail.com


From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Chanel Josiah
Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
[EXTERNAL] J Agenda - Request 
Thursday, August 06 2024 2:10:51 PM 
image001.png
image002.png

Aloha e Leah,

I hope this email finds you well!

HCL is requesting to be on the J Agenda at this month’s commission meeting. I will be meeting
with Jeff next week Monday to go over our priorities. We are hoping to present to the
commission 3 main priorities regarding housing infrastructure and what we’re seeing, hearing
and experiencing with homestead beneficiaries through our work. I can provide more details
next week but wanted to prioritize getting on the agenda first, if possible.

Please let me know if I need to provide you with any other details.

Mahalo nui, Leah! 

Chanel Josiah (she/her) (whatʻs this?)

Community Development Director
Hawaii Community Lending
Direct: 808-634-3675
www.HawaiiCommunityLending.com

Hawaii Community Lending is a 501c3 nonprofit Native community development financial institution that
increases access to credit and capital for the  economic self-sufficiency of underserved Hawaii residents with a
particular focus on Native Hawaiians.
P Please consider the environment before printing this email
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------
The information transmitted is intended only for the person or entity to which it is addressed and may contain
confidential, proprietary and or privileged material.  Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or
taking of any action in reliance upon this information by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is
prohibited.  If you received this email in error, please contact the sender and delete the material from all computers.

J-12

mailto:chanelj@hawaiiancommunity.net
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://www.mypronouns.org/what-and-why__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!yGydJKQoaUO2bdpj9ds7Cqyfbd1vgslJneeefk0tLHDMWyXmIMiUlyldp6JXEtOBE-clrqiwbgRIBxy6Rpl3m4vULK0z_UZR8ajAh-adFg$
https://urldefense.com/v3/__http://www.hawaiicommunitylending.com/__;!!LIYSdFfckKA!yGydJKQoaUO2bdpj9ds7Cqyfbd1vgslJneeefk0tLHDMWyXmIMiUlyldp6JXEtOBE-clrqiwbgRIBxy6Rpl3m4vULK0z_UZR8aipZ0R7yQ$




From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Sunday, August 04, 2024 4:59:09 PM

Name

Noe Asuega-Stark

Email

anasuegastark@yahoo.com

Message

Aloha,

I would like to be added to the J-Agenda for 8/20/2024 to present information on Puʻuhona Hawaiian Homestead
Association. 

Mahalo,
Noe

J-13

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:anasuegastark@yahoo.com


From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Blossom Feiteira
Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
[EXTERNAL] J agenda testimony 
Friday, August 06, 2024 4:23:52 PM

Aloha Lea,

Would like to speak on the j agenda for august 20, 2024 Hawaiian Homes Commission meeting.

Mahalo!

Blossom
Sent from my iPhone

J-15

mailto:blossom96708@yahoo.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov


From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Monday, August 05, 2024 5:19:59 PM

Name

Kainoa Lei MacDonald

Email

808divergentgroup@gmail.com

Message

Please confirm adding me to provide advocacy from the Association of Hawaiians for Homestead Lands
(AHHL) on Waitlist Homestead Beneficiary Association (HBA) priorities.

J-16

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:808divergentgroup@gmail.com


From: Craig Bo Kahui
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Cc: Choy, Andrew H; Makaila, Lilliane K; Sam Walker; Sharleen Kahumoku; Dora Aio; Melissa Kahui
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Request to be on the J Agenda Tues. Aug 20th
Date: Thursday, August 08, 2024 7:35:21 AM

Aloha Lea
Just checking in on our request to be on the J agenda. 
Please advise. 
Bo Kahui 

On Wed, Jul 31, 2024, 9:14 AM Craig Bo Kahui <bokahui65@gmail.com> wrote:
Aloha  Lea,
On behalf of Laiopua CDC,  I would like to request to be on the J agenda. 
Please  advise 
Mahalo 
Bo Kahui 

J-17

mailto:bokahui65@gmail.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:andrew.h.choy@hawaii.gov
mailto:lilliane.k.makaila@hawaii.gov
mailto:samuelwalkersr@gmail.com
mailto:sukahumoku@gmail.com
mailto:Doraiokola@gmail.com
mailto:melissakahui@yahoo.com
mailto:bokahui65@gmail.com


From: PHHLCA
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W; LINCOLN ASHIDA
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: J Agenda Testimony - Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting - Tuesday, July 16, 2024
Date: Sunday, July 14, 2024 11:02:04 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Aloha Leah,

Unfortunately i will not be testifying this Tuesday, we'll see "the agency" next month on 
Kauai 

Bill

J-18

mailto:phhlca@aol.com
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:lsa@torkildson.com

Burrows-NuuanuLW
Cross-Out



From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit J-Agenda Testimony
Date: Tuesday, August 06, 2024 3:09:20 PM

Name

Kelly Lincoln

Email

kelzp21@aol.com

Message

Follow up to President K. Kahapea - Panaewa Community Alliance (PCA) prior statement/testimony via
zoom.

J-19

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:kelzp21@aol.com


From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: New submission from Submit Agendized Testimony
Date: Tuesday, August 06, 2024 7:46:35 AM

Name

Charlene Manu

Email

phhlca@aol.com

Please Identify Agenda Item(s):

Community Association

Pick One:

Both - Submit Testimony Below

Message

Ongoing policies to homestead association to the community-at-large

J-20

mailto:dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
mailto:leatrice.w.burrows-nuuanu@hawaii.gov
mailto:phhlca@aol.com

	Agenda
	Agenda Exhibits

	C ITEMS
	C-1
	C-2
	C-3
	C-4
	C-5
	HHL-01(25) Independent Legal Counsel Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-02(25) Commission on Water Resource Management Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-03(25) Housing Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-04(25) Historic Preservation Reviews Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-05(25) School Impact Fees Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-10(25) County User Fees Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-11(25) Sewer Transmission Lines Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-12(25) State Building Codes Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-13(25) State Building Code Clearance Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-14(25) County Licenses Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-15(25) DURF Collateral Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____

	HHL-15(25) DURF Collateral Bill.pdf
	__.B. NO._____
	A BILL FOR AN ACT
	__.B. NO._____


	C-6

	D ITEMS
	D-1
	D-2
	D-3
	D-4
	D-6
	D-7
	D-8
	D-9
	D-10
	D-11
	D-12
	D-13

	E ITEMS
	E-1 LDD Kauai Project Updates.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Lot Assessment, Preparation for Award  & Offerings in Progress��Pi’ilani Mai Ke Kai 		Total 171 Undivided Interest Leases
	Kaua’i Cesspool Assessment
	Prioritization Areas
	Anahola & Kekaha IWS Quantities
	Kekaha Cesspool Lots
	Anahola Cesspool Lots
	Slide Number 18
	Hanapēpē Residential Phase 2
	Līhu’e (Grove Farm Isenberg Parcel)
	Waipouli
	Mahalo


	F ITEMS
	F-1
	F-2
	F-3
	F-4

	G ITEMS
	G-1
	G-2 PLO Kauai Water Projects Update.pdf
	ITEM G-2 PLO - Kauai Water Projects Update
	G-2 Attachment A


	J ITEMS
	J Agenda List.pdf
	J-1 thru J-20




